O

Win Hanverky Holdings Limited
XKeESEZRBRAT

(incorporated.in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(MRS BEEMAIIZBRAE)
(Stock Code BRE#R5E : 3322)

i’

g

ANNUAL REPORIT




XEEEZRAERAAREMBARNELHR
BREEREEDIRNGSLEE  2HREE
B -ARENEBEIAWMAE  HEER
BRIBRTEXRK TEEMEN - 1t
X PEAREREE - AEEHEADiadoral
REPBARE  BEERAMHEHEE -

ARABRBE-FEAENAANAERE
FEM L o

Win Hanverky Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries are an
integrated sportswear manufacturer, distributor and retailer for

international sports brands. We have two broad lines of
businesses, namely Manufacturing Business and Distribution and
Retail Business, with geographical markets spanning over
Europe, North America, Mainland China and Hong Kong. We are
the owner of the trademark “Diadora” in Mainland China, Hong
Kong and Macau.

The Shares of the Company have been listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange since 6 September 2006.
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B E Financial Highlights

BELFEFTEHHER Key Financial Information for the Last Five Years
BE+-A=t-BLEE/
R+t=-A=+-8H
For the year ended 31 December/
As at 31 December
“E-—F “EZ-ZEr ZEEHNFr ZEENF ZETLE
2011 2010* 2009* 2008* 2007*
BBER (FERT) Financial Performance (HK$’000)
e Revenue 3,199,934 2,869,282 2,578,833 2,998,360 2,809,282
& (FB) /a7 Operating (loss)/profit (2,952) 142,551 173,038 96,020 269,760
BT S B ATR R Profit before income tax 8,585 151,376 180,215 103,916 282,009
FELEEY (Loss)/profit from continuing
(&) /& F operations (20,944) 117,061 141,696 59,865 237,817
BRIEEEERERN/ Profit/(loss) from discontinued
(B8) operations 161,627 (44,260) (34,681) (33,091) 96,877
EERF Profit for the year 140,683 72,801 107,015 26,774 334,694
REHFE AEMLRR Profit attributable to equity holders 230,196 120,472 121,539 33,325 290,259
BEMRR (FET) Financial Position (HK$’000)
ERBEE Non-current assets 846,255 868,722 920,750 1,008,239 719,938
RBEE Current assets 2,041,171 1,950,941 1,740,662 1,768,929 1,896,482
nEEE Current liabilities 720,468 686,873 571,674 732,963 702,582
REEEFE Net current assets 1,320,703 1,264,068 1,168,988 1,035,966 1,193,900
BEELAE Total assets 2,887,426 2,819,663  2,661412 2777168 2,616,420
EERBERRDEE Total assets less current liabilities 2,166,958 2,132,790 2,089,738 2,044,205 1,913,838
mER Total equity 2,151,088 2,127,568 2,087,643 2,029,194 1,901,098
ReRBEEEEUR Cash and cash equivalents and
REHREBE=M@A bank deposits with initial terms
ZRITER of over three months 810,568 782,840 674,065 363,272 580,280
EERE Operation Indicators
FEREEY Gross profit margin from
ZEFIE (%) continuing operations (%) 21.7 241 26.4 26.9 29.9
RELEEK2F Net (loss)/profit margin from
(B8) /FIBE(%) continuing operations (%) (0.7) 4.1 55 2.0 8.5
BBEEELE %) Gearing ratio (%) * 0.2 2.1 33 5.6 4.2
Bt 2 (£2) Current ratio (times) 2.8 2.8 3.0 2.4 2.7
RN 2 BES () Trade receivable sales
period (days) 50 68 70 77 68
REZBEH(R) Inventory sales period (days) 80 71 79 71 62
Btat - Notes:

fONERBCRLEEEBREESEEBIH *
25 BBRARE FEERENLREED
EHEEY -

The income statements distinguish discontinued operations from
continuing operations. Comparative figures under financial performance
and certain operation indicators have been re-presented accordingly.

A BREELXRORTEELERUAES A
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Gearing ratio represents the ratio between total bank borrowings and
total equity.
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FERLE  Chairman’s Statement

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to announce the annual
results of Win Hanverky Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2011.

Challenging Inflated Production Cost

2011 was a year full of uncertainties in global economy, not only
was the continuous wide spreading of the Eurozone sovereign
debt crisis, but also the potential risks triggered by the US debt
crisis, national debt of Greece and inflation confronted by
Mainland China. Customers' consuming sentiment was inevitably
hindered after all these events and accordingly slowing down the
sales growth of our key customers in these countries under
Manufacturing Business.

Our Manufacturing Business is a labour intensive business,
therefore the prolonged unstable labour market in Mainland
China, although less turbulent than 2010, impacted our Group
severely. Moreover, following the successive enhancement of the
social security standard of labour and the lifting up of minimum
wage level by the local government, coupled with the persistently
high rate of GDP growth and the pressure of RMB appreciation in
Mainland China, our production cost has been pushed up which
further eroded the gross profit margin comparing with 2010.

The inflated costs are not only impacting us strongly but even more
seriously to other factories with smaller size. Looking ahead, we
will continue to improve our production efficiency. We will also
expand our production capacity in Vietham and consider setting up
new production facilities in Cambodia where the labour supplies are
more stable and less costly. To broaden the source of revenue, apart
from extensively relying on sportswear garment, we will diversify our
Manufacturing Business to include fashion garment as well.
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FE#H 4 Chairman’s Statement

Penetration into Fashion Retail Business

The sportswear market in Mainland China remained challenging
and competitive and was under adjustment period in 2011 due to
over-stock and over-expanded situation experienced by our
distributors in prior years. As a result, our Distribution Business
for Umbro Products and Diadora Products did not perform as we
expected.

For Umbro Distribution Business, the Group has sold the rights
and other assets under the Umbro Distributor Agreement to Nike,
the brand owner of Umbro, at a cash consideration of US$27.5
million (and together with the provision of certain services, a total
consideration of up to US$40.0 million will be secured) in April
2011. Such business will be terminated on 30 June 2012.

For Diadora Distribution Business, as “Diadora” is the Group’s
first self-owned brand in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China,
definitely it will be one of our focuses. However, amid the
unfavourable sportswear market situation in Mainland China, its
shop expansion plan will be conservatively and strictly monitored
so as to minimize the loss while at the same time maintaining
sufficient level of presence in the market.

Regarding our Retail Business for multi-brand products in Hong
Kong, with the vibrant local retail market especially brought by
the Mainland tourists and our management team’s continuous
effort in shop restructuring and cost control, the situation has
ultimately turned around with profit making in 2011 comparing
with the contracted loss in 2010. However, the economy of scale
and high rental problems are still our main concerns. In view of
this, we are always looking for opportunities of expanding
“Futbol Trend” concept to Mainland China to strike for economy
of scale when time fits.

In August 2011, the Group has entered into a subscription
agreement (“Subscription Agreement”) with the Shine Gold
Group who is engaged in the retailing of fashion wears and
accessories. Under the Subscription Agreement, the Group has
agreed to subscribe for the convertible bonds in two tranches to
be issued by Shine Gold in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$70.0 million. The first tranche bond has been issued as at the
date of this report. It has a self-managed retail network for self-
owned brands like “D-mop” and “Blues Heroes” etc in Hong Kong
and Mainland China and for brands under exclusive distribution
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FE#|E Chairman’s Statement

rights like “Y-3” in Hong Kong and Mainland China and
“moussy” and “SLY” in Hong Kong. The entering of the
Subscription Agreement provides an opportunity for the Group to
broaden its brand portfolio and expand its retail network by
leveraging on the market recognitions of the self-owned brands. It
also affords the Group an opportunity to move upstream from
sportswear retail business to fashion retail business. Looking
forward, we will focus on developing both self-owned brands and
licensed brands. For licensed brands, we target to open more
shops in Mainland China.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt
gratitude to our employees for their devotion and dedication that
overcome the hurdles during the year. | would also like to take
this opportunity to thank our shareholders and business partners
for their continuous support and recognition of our aspiration and
strategies during the current difficult time.

LI Kwok Tung Roy
Chairman

Hong Kong, 14 March 2012
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E& &2 Management Discussion and AnalySIS

OVERALL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group has recorded a
revenue of HK$3,199.9 million (HK$2,869.3 million for the year
2010) from continuing operations, representing an increment of
11.5%.

Gross profit from continuing operations amounted to HK$695.4
million, representing an increase of 0.4% year-on-year. Gross
profit margin reduced to 21.7% in 2011 (2010: 24.1%). The
decrease in gross profit margin was mainly resulted from the
increase in labour costs and other overhead costs of production
under the Manufacturing Business. In addition, a significant
amount of impairment loss on intangible asset related to
“Diadora” trademark of HK$112.0 million (2010: HK$54.0 million)
has been charged to the consolidated income statement during
the year. Profit attributable to the shareholders increased to
HK$230.2 million in 2011 (2010: HK$120.5 million). Excluding
such impairment loss on intangible assets and the discontinued
operations of the distribution of Umbro Products (as described in
the section headed “Discontinued Operations” below) in both
years, profit attributable to the shareholders would have been
decreased by 38.4% to HK$111.1 million in 2011 (2010:
HK$180.2 million).

The Board has declared and paid the interim dividend of HK5.0
cents per Share during the year. In consideration of the strong
net cash position and the continued cash inflow from operations,
the Board proposed the payment of a final dividend of HK3.0
cents per Share for the year ended 31 December 2011.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is an integrated manufacturer, distributor and
retailer for renowned sports brands. The financial performances
of the two business segments, namely “Manufacturing” and
“Distribution and Retail” are summarised as below.
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i N 2 #T Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Manufacturing Business

The Group’s Manufacturing Business operates mainly on OEM
arrangement for various renowned sports brands. Most of the
Group’s products are exported and sold to Europe, Mainland
China and other countries around the world. The Group has a
long history and a remarkable position in sportswear garment
manufacturing, and has established long term business
relationship with its key customers. Under the difficult global
economic environment, overall Manufacturing Business still
recorded a growth in sales revenue by 11.3% to HK$2,937.7
million, although it was still lower than our expectation, (2010:
HK$2,639.5 million), accounting for 91.8% of the Group’s total
sales revenue (same percentage for 2010).

During the year 2011, the Chinese Government has further
enhanced the social security standard and lifted up the minimum
wages of labour. Together with the unstable labour force in
Mainland China, which in turn resulted in a high labour turnover,
shortage of supply and inevitably increment of retention cost,
have pushed up the labour costs by more than 25%. Although
customers have generally accepted the escalation in production
costs in Mainland China, the Group could not transfer all the
inflated costs to customers. As a result, the segmental gross
profit margin decreased to 20.1% (2010: 22.8%) under the
Manufacturing Business. The segmental operating profit also
decreased by 32.9% to HK$165.1 million (2010: HK$246.1
million). Such decrease was, apart from the reduction of gross
profit margin as explained above, due to the increase of general
and administrative expenses brought by the second phase
expansion of the Group’s factories in Vietham and Wuzhou in
Guangxi province, Mainland China, for sportswear products and
the establishment of a new factory in Qing Yuan in Guandgong
province, Mainland China, for golf-wear products.
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EIE B & 2 Management Discussion and Analy;sis

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Distribution and Retail Business

This segment includes the businesses of distribution of Diadora
Products through the Winor Group and retailing of multi-brand
and mono-brand products and distribution of sportswear products
through the Win Sports Group. Sales revenue of the segment
increased by 12.4% to HK$263.6 million (2010: HK$234.6
million), representing 8.2% of the Group’s total sales revenue
(same percentage for 2010). The segmental gross profit and its
margin also increased to HK$103.9 million (2010: HK$91.2
million) and 39.4% (2010: 38.9%), respectively. Operating loss in
this segment increased by 62.4% to HK$168.1 million (2010:
103.5 million), which included the amount of HK$112.0 million for
the impairment loss on “Diadora” trademark (2010: HK$54.0
million). Excluding such impairment loss on intangible assets in
both years, operating loss would have been increased by 13.3%
to HK$56.1 million (2010: HK$49.5 million). Further discussion of
the performance in each stream of this segment is set out below:

Distribution of Diadora Products

The Winor Group owns the trademark of “Diadora” in Mainland
China, Hong Kong and Macau and hence has the respective right
to manufacture, sell and distribute Diadora Products. Under the
competitive retail market in Mainland China, the Winor Group
recorded sales revenue at HK$65.7 million (2010: HK$60.2
million) with gross profit margin at 33.0% (2010: 36.4%), which
was lower than our expectation. Therefore, in addition to an
annual trademark amortization of HK$4.3 million, a provision of
impairment loss on the “Diadora” trademark amounting HK$112.0
million has been made.

As at 31 December 2011, the Winor Group had a sales network
comprising approximately 40 Diadora distributors operating
approximately 135 points-of-sales in Mainland China. The Win
Sports Group is also one of the distributors selling Diadora
Products, details of which are presented as below. The Winor
Group also self-managed 35 retail shops in Mainland China,
Hong Kong and Macau.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Distribution and Retail Business (Continued)
Retail of Multi-brand Products

The Win Sports Group mainly operates sportswear retail business
selling Umbro Products and Diadora Products in Mainland China
and sportswear products of various brands in Hong Kong.
Compared with last year, sales revenue from this business
increased to HK$206.4 million (2010: HK$180.1 million) and
gross profit and its margin both improved by 35.5% to HK$80.9
million (2010: HK$59.7 million) and to 39.2% (2010: 33.1%),
respectively. Gross profit and its margin were improved due to the
improvement from over-stock situation and from shop efficiency,
so that it was able to sell sportswear products with higher profit
margin during the year. In addition, a recent boom in retail market
in Hong Kong in the last quarter of 2011 gave life and vitality to
the sales of the Win Sports Group. In Mainland China, the Group
continued to work closely with the brand owner of Umbro to push
up its sales and improve its profitability. As a result, the Win Sport
Group has reduced its operating loss to HK$5.8 million during the
year (2010: HK$12.7 million).

As at 31 December 2011, the Win Sports Group had
approximately 93 mono-brand shops in Mainland China, majority
of which were selling Umbro Products and the remaining were
selling Diadora Products, and 12 self-managed retail shops in
Hong Kong, of which 2 were traded under the name of “Futbol
Trend’, 6 were under the name of “Sports Corner’ and 4 mono-
brand shops for several international sports brands made up the
rest.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Discontinued Operations
Distribution of Umbro Products

On 21 April 2011, the Group entered into an agreement with UIL
for the early termination of the Umbro Distributor Agreement
dated 8 February 2007 which granted T&S HK exclusive
distribution rights of the Umbro branded products in the Greater
China from March 2007 to December 2020. The consideration to
the surrender of such distribution rights was US$27,500,000
(equivalent to HK$214,500,000) and this transaction was
completed on 2 June 2011. In this connection, the Group
recognised a gain on termination of HK$214,500,000 during the
year. Concurrent with the termination of the Umbro Distributor
Agreement, the Group agreed to acquire the remaining 40%
equity interests in T&S HK from UIL at a consideration of US$4.0
million. The acquisition was completed on 2 June 2011. As a
result, the difference between the consideration and the carrying
value of the 40% equity interests in T&S HK as of the completion
date, amounting to HK$15.6 million was charged to reserves. On
the same day, the Group entered into a transition services
agreement with UIL and its related entities, under which the T&S
Group will provide services to UIL and its related entities for the
period from 2 June 2011 to 30 June 2012 to assist them in
avoiding disruption in the transition and operation of the
distribution business after the termination of distribution rights by
T&S HK. The fees for the above services are US$5,000,000
(equivalent to HK$39,000,000) and further cost will be incurred
for these services. As a result of the above transactions, the T&S
Group has the rights to distribute Umbro branded products up to
30 June 2012 only. Therefore its results were presented as a
discontinued operation and its assets and liabilities were
classified as a disposal group, as assets/liabilities held for sale.

During the current year, sales revenue and gross profit from this
business decreased to HK$113.1 million (2010: HK$212.5 million)
and HK$34.8 million (2010: HK$74.0 million), respectively.
Operating profit in 2011 was HK$161.7 million (2010: loss of
HK$31.6 million) which included a gain of HK$214.5 million from
termination of the Umbro distribution rights during the current
year. Excluding such gain, operating loss would have been
increased to HK$52.8 million (2010: loss of HK$31.6 million).



EEEWR

RE

ARPEAERFNAARERZRERER
B —E-—FHAREMSNATMHE
B -BE-—T-—FELEXRBNEFIE
RTAMARE  BEREAEREBNEED
FEEER  EXAKENEIEARSEN
RABOARESRTENABLERIE

TER®

RRRRYFPEAENS TRASTE L
HOBRMEEFTHERERBHEERY
HEZEFPEEEUDHRLBRER ©

AREERAEEMENEERKE LR
RERBEUEABELENRERBE-BL
WERFER ZSHERUAUBENS
BOARBENEIHA - HAMAE - AN
BIERARBRESEARREELANEN
B2 AREXMASEANBRAEETE
ZHRF o O HMEXTEEFEFERE
RAREEBFE=ZNAERALZLEN
ERE LE-FRERMAN-RRTHH
X o BRMTHARERRERRAMNEESR
BREERERS -

e

%4 Management Discussion and Analysis

PROSPECTS

2011 was very challenging for the Group due to the unfavourable
cost environment in Mainland China and the uncertain global
economy. Although customer orders indication under the
Manufacturing Business for the year 2012 is still stable and the
retail markets in both Mainland China and in Hong Kong are
growing, the Group is still concerned about the continuous cost
pressure and the adjustment impact of sportswear market within
Mainland China.

Manufacturing Business

It is expected that the labour cost in Mainland China will continue
to increase in the coming years; whereas more and more
customers have been requesting their strategic supply chain
partners to expand its non-China production capacity to diversify
the cost inflation risk.

The Group is expanding its production facilities in Vietnam and
considering to acquire a land in Cambodia for the new production
capacity using its internally generated cashflow. Those areas
provide relatively stable labour supply with lower labour costs.
We believe our overseas expansion strategy will offer us a more
cost-effective position so that the Group could restore its profit
margin back to an acceptable level. In addition, we are working
ahead with our major customers to minimise the cost impact
during the slack season in third quarter every coming years and
to further crackdown our general and administrative expenses.
We also start exploring the opportunities to diversify our
Manufacturing Business to include fashion garment.
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PROSPECTS (Continued)
Distribution and Retail Business

In order to maintain a healthy and sustainable economic growth,
the Chinese Government will keep on its effort to stimulate the
domestic demand. The urbanization process, continued increase
in disposable income, and the consumption upgrade driven by
consumers’ demand for higher quality of life, will contribute to the
encouraging sales momentum of fashion and lifestyle products in
Mainland China including Hong Kong where retail performance is
driven by the Mainland tourists. To capture these opportunities,
the Group, in August 2011, entered into a Subscription Agreement
with the Shine Gold Group, which is principally engaged in
retailing of high fashion wears and accessories. Pursuant to the
Subscription Agreement, the Group agreed to subscribe for
convertible bonds of Shine Gold in an aggregate principal amount
of HK$70,000,000 which would be issued in two tranches. The
convertible bonds bear interest from its date of issue at a rate of
5% per annum on the principal amount of the convertible bonds
outstanding on the interest payment date, and may be converted
in full into 60-70% of the issued share capital of Shine Gold any
time over five years, depending on certain conditions. On 16
August 2011, the Group acquired the first tranche of convertible
bonds with principal amount of HK$31,200,000.

The Shine Gold Group has a self-managed retail network for self-
owned brands “D-mop” and “Blues Heroes” etc in Hong Kong
and Mainland China and for brands under exclusive distribution
rights, including “¥Y-8” in Hong Kong and Mainland China and
“moussy” and “SLY” in Hong Kong. Upon completion of the
subscription together with the existing sportswear retail network
under the Win Sports Group, the Group will run a series of self-
owned retail brands including “D-mop”, “Futbol Trend” and
“Sports Corner’ and self-owned product brands including
“‘Diadora”, “Blues Heroes” and “Loveis” in Mainland China and
Hong Kong. The Group will also run retail mono-brand shops for
“Y-3”, “moussy” and “SLY” and some international sports brands.

We believe the over-stock situation still exists in the sportswear
market, the adjustment period will last for one year or more. This
is the main reason we did early terminate our distribution
relationship with Umbro. As Diadora is our self-owned trademark
in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau, we will operate the
brand in a very conservative way waiting for the completion of
industry consolidation which will provide excellent future
opportunities for the survivors.
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PROSPECTS (Continued)
Discontinued Operations
Distribution of Umbro Products

As mentioned in Business Review section above, the T&S Group
will continue to provide services to UIL and its related parties until
30 June 2012. Concurrent with the termination of the Umbro
distribution rights, a key account agreement (“KAA”) has been
entered. The Group will, according to the KAA, continue to act as
a key account of Umbro by operating a certain number of shops
for a certain period of time. Details of which have been included
in the announcement of the Company dated 16 August 2011.

FINANCIAL POSITION AND LIQUIDITY

The Group generally finances its operations with internally
generated cashflow and bank facilities. The Group maintained an
outstanding financial position during the year under review. As at
31 December 2011, it had cash and cash equivalents and bank
deposits with initial terms of over three months amounting to
HK$810.6 million (31 December 2010: HK$782.8 million). The net
increase of cash balance was mainly attributed by the cash inflow
from operations and the termination fee of its Umbro distribution
rights offsetting by the cash outflow to the subscription of Shine
Gold’s convertible bonds and loan advances to the Shine Gold
Group, capital expenditures, the payment of dividends and the
repayment of bank loan.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had bank borrowings
amounting to HK$4.7 million (31 December 2010: HK$45.1
million). The Group did not enter into any interest rate swap to
hedge against risks associated with interest rates. As at 31
December 2011, the Group still had unutilised banking facilities
amounting to HK$226.8 million (31 December 2010: HK$309.7
million). The gearing ratio, being total bank borrowings divided by
total equity, as at 31 December 2011, was 0.2% (31 December
2010: 2.1%).
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EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had approximately 16,000
December 2010: 15,000
employees). The Group remunerates employees based on their

employees (31 approximately
performance, working experience and prevailing market
conditions. Other employee benefits include retirement benefits,
insurance, medical coverage and a share option scheme.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2011, bank deposit of HK$1.8 million was
pledged to secure banking facilities for the Group.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The Group’s sales and purchases were mostly denominated in
US Dollars and RMB. During the year, approximately 77.7%,
17.4% and 4.8% of sales were denominated in US Dollars, RMB
and Hong Kong Dollars, respectively, whereas approximately
70.8%, 11.4% and 17.7% of purchases were denominated in US
Dollars, RMB and Hong Kong Dollars, respectively. Further, as at
31 December 2011, approximately 57.0%, 39.7% and 3.2% of
cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits with initial terms of
over three months were denominated in US Dollars, RMB and
Hong Kong Dollars, respectively.

The Group considered that the foreign currency exchange
exposure arising from the above transactions and cash balances
was minimal during the year on the ground that Hong Kong
Dollars were pegged against US Dollars and the recent pressure
from appreciation of RMB was manageable during the year.
Accordingly, the Group considered the use of any derivative
instruments to hedge against foreign currency exposure arising
from the above transactions and cash balances was not critical
and determined during the year under review.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group has no significant contingent liabilities, litigation or
arbitration of material importance as at 31 December 2011.
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EENSREBEABERE Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

LI Kwok Tung Roy, aged 61, is our executive Director, our co-
founder and Chairman. He was appointed as an executive
Director in December 2005. Mr. Ll is the elder brother of Mr. LEE
Kwok Leung. Mr. LI is responsible for strategic planning and
overall management of our Group. Mr. LI has over 30 years of
experience in the apparel industry and handling client
relationship. Mr. LI is a committee member of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference in He Yuan city,
Guangdong province of Mainland China.

Mr. LI is currently the director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. He is also the director of Quinta Asia Limited, which
has an interest in such number of shares of the Company under
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of Securities and Futures Ordinance
as disclosed in the section headed “Substantial Shareholders’
Interests and Short Positions in the Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company” in this annual report.

LAI Ching Ping, aged 61, is our executive Director, our co-founder,
Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. He was appointed as
an executive Director in December 2005. Mr. LAl oversees the
merchandising functions including production and purchasing teams
within the Manufacturing Business of our Group and is also
responsible for the overall management of our Group. Mr. LAl has
over 30 years of experience in the apparel industry. Mr. LAl is a
committee member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference in Yun Fu city, Guangdong province of Mainland China.

Mr. LAI is currently the director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. He is also the director of Quinta Asia Limited, which
has an interest in such number of shares of the Company under
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of Securities and Futures Ordinance
as disclosed in the section headed “Substantial Shareholders’
Interests and Short Positions in the Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company” in this annual report.

CHEUNG Chi, aged 45, is our executive Director and Chief
Financial Officer. He was appointed as an executive Director in
February 2006 and is currently the director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. CHEUNG is responsible for our overall
financial management, merger and acquisition and corporate
finance projects. Prior to joining us in 2005, Mr. CHEUNG had
been the executive vice president and chief financial officer of
Aspire Holdings Ltd. which is a member of China Mobile
Communications Corporation. Mr. CHEUNG had also been the
chief financial officer of eBIS Co., Ltd., and the financial controller
of Liuzhou ZF Machinery Co. Ltd. and a senior consultant of
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Arthur Andersen & Co. in which he was responsible for several
initial public offering projects. He has over 18 years of experience
in financial management. Mr. CHEUNG obtained a Bachelor of
Arts degree in Accountancy from the City Polytechnic of Hong
Kong and an Executive Master of Business Administration degree
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1992 and 2004
respectively. Mr. CHEUNG is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants.

LEE Kwok Leung, aged 49, is our executive Director and Chief
Operation Officer. He was appointed as an executive Director in
February 2006 and is currently the director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. LEE is the younger brother of Mr. LI Kwok
Tung Roy. Mr. LEE is responsible for the Group’s supply chain,
including product research and development, product costing,
raw material procurement, garment production, quality control,
logistic arrangement and technology implementation and
overseeing the fabric knitting and dyeing business of our Group.
Mr. LEE has been with us for over 20 years after his graduation
from the York University in 1987 with a Bachelor of Arts degree.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

CHAN Kwong Fai, aged 65, is our independent non-executive
Director. Dr. CHAN joined us in April 2006. Dr. CHAN has been in
the academic field for over 30 years and is currently an Associate
Professor at the Department of Management and Marketing of
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Dr. CHAN is also an
author of several publications in the business management area.
Dr. CHAN graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong
with a Bachelor degree in Social Science in 1971 and obtained
his Master of Business Management from the University of
Adelaide and Doctor of Philosophy from the University of South
Australia in 1981 and 2004 respectively.

KWAN Kai Cheong, aged 62, is our independent non-executive
Director. He joined us in April 2006. Mr. KWAN is currently the
president of Morrison & Company Limited, a business
consultancy firm, and an independent non-executive director of
several listed companies in Hong Kong including Henderson
Sunlight Asset Management Limited, Hutchison Harbour Ring
Limited, Goldpoly New Energy Holdings Limited and SPG Land
(Holdings) Limited. He is also a non-executive director of China
Properties Group Limited, shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange. He has since October 2010 become an independent
non-executive director of Galaxy Resources Limited, a company
listed on the Australian Securities Exchange.
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Mr. KWAN previously worked for Merrill Lynch & Co. Inc. and was
the president for its Asia Pacific region. He was an independent
non-executive director of Hutchison Telecommunications
International Limited since August 2004 and resigned in May
2010 after its privatisation. He was also previously an
independent non-executive director of Soundwill Holdings Limited
until January 2011 and a non-executive director of JF Household
Furnishings Limited until August 2011.

Mr. KWAN completed the Stanford Executive Program in 1992.
He also holds a Bachelor of Accountancy (Honours) degree from
the University of Singapore. He is a member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in Australia and a Fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors.

MA Ka Chun, aged 60, is our independent non-executive
Director. Mr. MA joined us in June 2006. Mr. MA has been in the
apparel industry for over 20 years and is currently a director of
Fashionmark Holdings Limited, principally engaging in the
manufacture of apparels for some international fashion brands
with production bases in Zhuhai and Zhongshan, Mainland China.
Mr. MA holds a Bachelor of Social Science degree from the
University of Hong Kong.

WUN Kwang Vincent, aged 62, is our independent non-
executive Director. Mr. WUN joined us in April 2006. He is
currently the managing director of Pinefield Industries Ltd, a
manufacturer of wooden products. Mr. WUN obtained a Master of
Business Administration degree from the Harvard University in
1979.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

TAM Keung, aged 60, is the managing director of our Distribution
Business for the brand “Diadora” and has over 30 years of
experience in wholesale and retail industry. Mr. TAM joined us in
2003 as the sales director of our Distribution Business for the
brand “Umbro” and was promoted to be the managing director of
Distribution Business for the brand “Diadora” in June 2008
responsible for overseeing the distribution business of Diadora
Products. Prior to joining us, Mr. TAM had been the sales and
merchandising manager of Isetan department store in Hong Kong
and the general merchandising manager of Robinson department
store in Singapore. He obtained a Bachelor degree in Chinese
Arts and Literature from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in
1976.
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kEREEAERE Biographical Details of Directors and Senio: Management

CHAN Yuk Lin, aged 44, is the managing director of our Retail
Business and has 20 years of experience in retail industry. Ms.
CHAN joined us in July 2008 as the general manager and was
promoted to be the managing director of our Retail Business in
March 2011 overseeing the retail business in Mainland China and
Hong Kong. Prior to joining us, she had been the general
manager of Lafuma HK Limited, the division manager of retail
merchandising and the department manager of sourcing of Swire
Resources Limited, assistant section manager of China retail
operations of Texwood and Apple Limited. She obtained a Master
degree in Clothing (Marketing and Distribution) from the
Manchester Metropolitan University in UK in 1993.

LAM Choi Ha, aged 33, is our company secretary responsible for
handling the company secretarial, compliance and financial
affairs of the Group. Ms. LAM joined us in November 2005 and
was promoted to be the company secretary in September 2010.
Prior to joining us, Ms. LAM has worked in the accountancy
profession with PricewaterhouseCoopers. Ms. LAM obtained a
Bachelor degree in Business Administration from the Hong Kong
Baptist University in 2001. Ms. LAM is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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The Board recognises the importance of incorporating elements
of good corporate governance into the management structure and
the internal control procedures of the Group so as to ensure that
all business activities of the Group and the decision making
process are properly regulated.

During the year under review, the Company has applied the
principles and complied with the Code Provisions in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules save for the following deviation.

Code Provision E.1.2

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the Chairman
of the Board should attend the annual general meeting of the
Company. Due to other business commitments, Mr. LI Kwok Tung
Roy, the Chairman of the Board, was unable to attend the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 27 May 2011. The
Deputy Chairman took the chair and, together with another
director, made themselves available to answer shareholders’
questions regarding the activities of the Company and various
Board Committees.

To ensure compliance with this Code Provision in the future, the
Company will arrange to furnish all Directors with appropriate
information on all general meetings and take all reasonable
measures to arrange the schedule in such a cautious way that all
Directors (including the Chairman of the Board) can attend the
annual general meetings.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions as set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, they all have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard as set out in the Model
Code throughout the year under review.
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Board of Directors

The overall management of the Group’s business is vested in the
Board.

The Board is responsible for governing the Group and managing
the Shareholders. Its principal
responsibilities include formulating the Group’s business

assets entrusted by
strategies and management objectives, monitoring and
overseeing the performance of the Group, setting the Group’s
values and standards and ensuring a prudent and effective
framework of internal control is in place to enable risks to be
assessed and managed.

The day-to-day operations of the Group are delegated to the
Chief Executive Officer and the management of the Group. The
delegated functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed.

Composition

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors and four
independent non-executive Directors, whose biographical details
and family relationships among the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 17 to 20.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director
having sound knowledge, experience and/or expertise relevant to
the business operation and development of the Group.

All Directors are aware of their collective and individual
responsibilities to the Shareholders and have exercised their
duties with care, skill and diligence, contributing to the successful
performance of the Group.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the roles of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are segregated. The
Chairman of the Board is Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy. The Chief
Executive Officer is Mr. LAl Ching Ping. There is a clear
segregation between the Chairman’s responsibility for the
management of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer’s
responsibility for the management of the day-to-day operations of
the Group’s business.
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Appointment of Independent Non-Executive Directors

Independent non-executive Directors serve the function of
bringing independent judgment on the development, performance
and risk management of the Group. Each of the independent non-
executive Directors has been appointed for a term of three years
and subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years.

All of them have satisfied the independence criteria and the
Company confirmed that it has received an annual confirmation
from each of them pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Directors consider them to be independent.

Certain committees have been set up under the Board to
supervise the management and administrative functions of the
Group. They include:

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 18 April
2006 with written terms of reference. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee include making recommendations to the
Board on the policy and structure of all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policy on such remuneration.
The Company’s emolument policy is to ensure that the remuneration
offered to employees including executive Directors and senior
management is based on skills, knowledge, responsibilities and
involvement in the Company’s affairs. The remuneration packages
are also determined by reference to the Company’s performance
and profitability, remuneration benchmark in the industry and the
prevailing market conditions. The emolument policy for independent
non-executive Directors, mainly comprising directors’ fees, is subject
to an annual assessment with reference to the market standard.
Individual director and senior management would not be involved in
deciding their own remuneration.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee has
reviewed, determined the remuneration packages for the
Directors. The remuneration of Directors comprises basic salary,
pensions and discretionary bonus. Details of the amount of
emoluments of Directors for the year ended 31 December 2011
are set out in Note 25(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

Members of the Remuneration Committee comprise Dr. CHAN
Kwong Fai (Chairman), Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy and Mr. KWAN Kai
Cheong, two of whom are independent non-executive Directors.

SE-—FFH
2011 Annual Report -~ Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

AEEEBRRAERLA



AEEEERARLA

Win Hanverky Holdings Limited 2071 Annual Report

REZBSg

ARARZEEAFOATNERIREER
EE UWHITEABREEE REZ8EX
REENESEFHERZAEEZRESE
EEHEAMNER REZEEEEWER
EBEZEAE  F2ETNBEESIEREES
WEXRMBRTRER BAARE  HAER
BERN REZEERAZFERTEZEIN
REXTERBNERE NESSRHEH
DERLENER -

REBEE REZEENEZSREMA
EEFRES -

REZEEREAFERELEE (R - %
BIREE BREFRE  BRELERRK
Bt HF=H£ABIYFATES -

EREES

AREAR-EERFNATNBRELHR
ARV EREES  UHIEAREHE -
ERZEENIERECERSY  EERE
BEARAMBREREF  AHEEHNERE
BEENRNY BERZEETREEHERR
NARANEEERRERER  XEHNA
ARHLITRARENEEERTANES
&R -

i

TEERHE Corporate Governance Report

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 18 April
2006 with written terms of reference. The Nomination Committee
is mainly responsible for making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment of Directors and the management of the
Board succession. It carries out the process of selecting and
recommending candidates for directorship with reference to the
selection guidelines which include appropriate professional
knowledge and industry experience, personal ethics, integrity and
personal skills. The Nomination Committee also considers
referrals and engagement of external recruitment professionals
when necessary and makes recommendations to the Board for
selection and approval.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee has
recommended the re-election of all the Directors to the Board for
approval.

Members of the Nomination Committee comprise Mr. WUN
Kwang Vincent (Chairman), Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy, Mr. LAl Ching
Ping, Mr. MA Ka Chun and Dr. CHAN Kwong Fai, three of whom
are independent non-executive Directors.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 18 April 2006
with written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing
Rules. The primary duties of the Audit Committee include
reviewing, overseeing and supervision of the effectiveness of our
financial reporting processes, internal control systems and risk
management. The Audit Committee is also responsible for
developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and reviewing the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code as required under the Listing
Rules.
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review of and recommendation for the Board’s approval of the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2010 and unaudited interim consolidated financial
information for the six months ended 30 June 2011 with a
focus on compliance with accounting standards, the Listing
Rules and other requirements in relation to financial
reporting;

discussion with the external auditor and the management on
accounting policies and practices;

review of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
system covering financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions;

consider the adequacy of resources, qualification and
experience of staff of our Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function, and training programmes and budget;

approval of the audit fees and terms of engagement of the
external auditor; and

review of independence of the external auditor and
recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of the
external auditor.

ERNZEENREEEBIFHTESHMSE Members of the Audit Committee comprise Mr. KWAN Kai

EE(ERE) - BEXREE  BABEBELRS Cheong (Chairman), Mr. WUN Kwang Vincent, Dr. CHAN Kwong

REREE - Fai and Mr. MA Ka Chun, all being independent non-executive
Directors.
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BEREEE Attendance of Meetings

EEgTHETESEEE  FHZzaeg The Board holds regular Board meetings, Remuneration

2 REZECSERENKZEEEE 5 Committee meeting, Nomination Committee meeting and Audit

AAEEMNEY 28 ZERERT - FF Committee meetings to discuss the Group’s businesses,

EEEEURBEITm SESHE LM operations, development and conduct. All important issues are

ERNEHEHAIMOT ¢ discussed in a timely manner. The attendance record of each
Director at the aforesaid meetings is set out below:

BE-_F-—-¥+-A=t—-AL
EEHRE/SCEREREERE
Number of meetings attended/
eligible to attend for the year ended
31 December 2011

FMESE REZEE FTHKREET
Exggd Ef Ef Ef
Remuneration Nomination Audit

Board Committee Committee Committee

EEpns Name of Director Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
HITEE Executive Directors

TEIRAELE Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy'? 4/4 11 11 N/A
REFHRE? Mr. LAI Ching Ping® 4/4 N/A 171 N/A
RELE Mr. CHEUNG Chi 4/4 N/A N/A N/A
ZEREE Mr. LEE Kwok Leung 2/4 N/A N/A N/A
BUFBITEE Independent Non-Executive Directors

PR X1 £ 238 Dr. CHAN Kwong Fai?35 3/4 111 N/A* 2/2
BRI LE Mr. KWAN Kai Cheong'® 4/4 11 N/A 2/2
BEREAES Mr. MA Ka Chun35 3/4 N/A 11 2/2
BIEN S Mr. WUN Kwang Vincent*s 4/4 N/A 11 2/2
HaF Notes:

1. THMZEERE 1.  Members of Remuneration Committee

2. FMZEEXE 2. Chairman of Remuneration Committee

3. REZEERE 3. Members of Nomination Committee

4, RELZEEIRE 4. Chairman of Nomination Committee

5. BERZEEHE 5.  Members of Audit Committee

6. BERZEGIRE 6. Chairman of Audit Committee

*

HEABEIR-_E-——F=FNBAEZTAE *  Dr. CHAN Kwong Fai was appointed as a member of Nomination
EEEGHE MARTELE-ZT— Mg Committee on 9 March 2012, therefore not yet required to attend the
& e meetings in 2011,
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Accountability and Audit

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group. In preparing the financial
statements, the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants have
been adopted. The principal accounting policies, which have
been consistently applied to all the years, adopted for the
preparation of financial statements of the Group are set out in
Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

The responsibility of the Company’s external auditor on the
financial statements of the Group is set out in the independent
auditor’s report on pages 47 to 48 of this annual report.

During the year under review, the remuneration paid to the
Company’s external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers is set out

as follows:
TER
Nature of services HK$’000
Audit services 3,200
Non-audit services (Note) 841
4,041

Note: Non-audit services include review of interim financial information,
certain agreed-upon procedures, limited assurance engagement
and taxation related services.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the Group’s internal control
procedures and for reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control system which includes financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions.

The Group is committed to the identification, monitoring and
management of risks associated with its business activities. The
Group’s internal control is designed to provide reasonable
assurance against material misstatement or loss and to manage
and eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and
fulfillment of business objective.

During the year under review, the Board has conducted a review
of, and is satisfied with, the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Group.
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=2 % Report of the Directors

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements of the Company
and of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011.

Principal Activities and Geographical Analysis of
Operations

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing, distribution
and retailing of garment products, including sportswear, golf and
high-end fashion apparel and related accessories. Sales are
primarily under an OEM arrangement to customers in Europe,
North America and Asia and distribution and retail modes in
Mainland China and Hong Kong.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
and geographical segments is set out in Note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Results and Dividend

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 51 of this
report.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK3.0
cents per Share for the year ended 31 December 2011, subject to
Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general
meeting to be held on Friday, 25 May 2012, payable to the
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on Thursday, 31 May 2012. The dividend will be
paid on or about Friday, 15 June 2012.

The Board has also declared an interim dividend of HK5.0 cents
per Share for the six months ended 30 June 2011.

Closures of Register of Members

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on Friday, 25 May
2012, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Wednesday, 23 May 2012 to Friday, 25 May 2012 (both days
inclusive), during which period no transfer of Shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to qualify for attendance and
voting at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company, all transfers of Shares of the Company accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Hong
Kong share registrar and transfer office of the Company, Tricor
Investor Services Limited of 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28
Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 22 May 2012.
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EESH% Report of the Directors

For determining the entitlement to the proposed final dividend,
the register of members of the Company will be closed on
Thursday, 31 May 2012, during which no transfer of Shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to qualify for the proposed
final dividend, all transfers of Shares of the Company
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Hong Kong share registrar and transfer office of the
Company, Tricor Investor Services Limited of 26th Floor, Tesbury
Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 30 May 2012.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the
Group during the year are set out in Note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 53 to 54 of this report, respectively.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

As at 31 December 2011, the Company’s reserves available for
distributions to Shareholders amounted to HK$779.9 million.
Details of movements in the reserves of the Company are set out
in Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company are set
out in Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in Note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Donation

During the year under review, the Group made charitable and
other donations totaling HK$0.1 million.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 4 of this
report.
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Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association and there is no restriction against such rights under
the laws of Cayman Islands where the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

Tax Relief and Exemption

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company'’s securities.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year under review.

Directors

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors
Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy
Mr. LAI Ching Ping
Mr. CHEUNG Chi

Mr. LEE Kwok Leung

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dr. CHAN Kwong Fai

Mr. KWAN Kai Cheong

Mr. MA Ka Chun

Mr. WUN Kwang Vincent

In accordance with Articles 87(1) and 87(2) of the Articles of
Association, Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy, Dr. CHAN Kwong Fai and Mr.
KWAN Kai Cheong shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.



EEREREEAEBRE

AEBEERSREBAENERFABHR
F17E20E

EERBEH

BHTESCNARTTIAR=FHRH
AR THAM-FREFPIRAEBAER
BAMAL - BREZSERBEN  HEES
SHtE SUTEZTRAREZETEY
BEENRESFEEERLA

BEBUFHTEZCRARATEEER
EEEH=F TREMN-FHHAIR=
BREEBALIL -

BRADAEERRBFAS LEREMEN
EEHMET IR -—FRERDTLLM
BRELEE CEERERN) 2RBEEH -

ESRENNFE

BREGHBRRMETHRENBEEL XS
o RUBEEZERIAMBRFEETMED
W BEFEEMESKSEEBRERE A
DR EERAARIEEMMBERTRETLY
FREZEERABEAREARENEARS
2o

-

EESH% Report of the Directors

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
of the Group are set out on pages 17 to 20.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive Directors has a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years and is subject to termination
by either party giving not less than six months’ written notice.
Under the service contracts, each of the executive Directors is
entitled to an annual discretionary management bonus in respect
of each complete financial year of the Group as the Board may
approve.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company with a fixed term of
office for three years which is determinable by either party giving
not less than three months’ written notice.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company has a service contract
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Directors’ Interest in Contracts

Save for the related party transactions disclosed in Note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements, no contract of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the financial year or at any time
during the financial year.
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Directors’ Disclosure of Interests

As at 31 December 2011, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive(s) of the Company (if any) in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which any such director or chief executive has taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) and were
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or which were notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as

(a) AR2ARBHEAE

EEgR

Name of Directors

FEMREE
Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy

RBFRE
Mr. LAI Ching Ping

wEEE
Mr. CHEUNG Chi

FERLE
Mr. LEE Kwok Leung

follows:

(a) Long positions in the Shares of the Company

HARRQF]

ERBE D

g g Percentage of

5% Number interest in

Capacity of Shares the Company*

ZEGEERES 743,769,967 58.64%
Interest in a controlled corporation (MFEE1)
(Note 1)

BEREAA 4,186,000 0.33%

Beneficial owner

BEREAA 10,650,000 0.84%
Beneficial owner (Bt 5% 2)
(Note 2)

BEXEEA 2,000,000 0.16%
Beneficial owner (Bt 5 3)
(Note 3)

AEEEERARLA

* PLEDNREBE-E-——F+-A=
‘i’ — B B # 17 1,268,400,0008% IR 19 5t
o

—E-—FEH
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited 2071 Annual Report

*  The calculation of percentages is based on 1,268,400,000
Shares in issue as at 31 December 2011.
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Directors’ Disclosure of Interests (Continued)

(a) Long positions in the Shares of the Company (Continued)

(b) ZARHEBEE (ERRESFRE ()
BB KRB TR
R

EEHE Associated
Name of Directors corporation
TEREE Quinta

Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy

HEFEE Quinta

Mr. LAl Ching Ping

REXFBBEEN RZB——%F+=
A=+-R 8% ARAKAEZE
BHNBEAYEERAHERAEEAD
AR LABEE (28RBS RBE KA
EXVE) 2B ARG R ESZEF
REAAA -

Notes:

1.

Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy holds 70% of the issued share capital of
Quinta Asia Limited (“Quinta”). Mr. LI Kwok Tung Roy has a
controlling interest in Quinta and is therefore deemed to be
interested in Quinta’s interest in the Company for the purposes
of the SFO.

Mr. CHEUNG Chi is interested in 650,000 Shares held and is
also interested as a grantee of options to subscribe for
10,000,000 Shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

Mr. LEE Kwok Leung is interested as a grantee of options to
subscribe for 2,000,000 Shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme.

Long positions in the shares of the Associated
Corporation of the Company (as defined in the SFO)

14 B B A

ERBEI

Percentage of

BB EE interest in

g % Number associated

Capacity of shares corporation

EREEA 7 70%
Beneficial owner

ERERA 3 30%

Beneficial owner

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, none of

the Directors, chief executive(s) or any of their respective

associates had any interest or short position, whether

beneficial or non-beneficial, in the shares, the underlying

shares and debentures of the Company and its associated

corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares of
the Company

As at 31 December 2011, as far as the Directors were aware, the
following persons (other than the Directors or chief executive(s)
of the Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO or were recorded in the register required
to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

B#7iFE Long positions in the Shares
LR NVNETE: 53
BHE
Approximate
vk = percentage of
7B 5% Number interest in
Name Capacity of Shares the Company*
Quinta BEEEEA 743,769,967 58.64%

Beneficial owner

Templeton Asset REKE 177,534,235 14.00%

Management Limited

24171,268,400,000/R )R D51 & o

REXFIBREEN RZ2-——F+ZA=
T—R  ARAUERBEAAL (FA2TE
ERTHARRIN) BH - RIREXIRH
RHBROTFERRERSRBERMEXV
BE2RID W2 HEXABARTAHEBEIRE
BERBERHIFEIBHEETRARAFEN
BREMNERIAR

EERHBFER2ER

BRAEEXB)  ESVETRAEEEY
FHEBFAVRERAEHERERTE 2EM
EBuEAREL -

i

Investment manager

*  The calculation of percentages is based on 1,268,400,000 Shares in
issue as at 31 December 2011.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, the Company
had not been notified by any person (other than the Directors or
chief executive(s) of the Company) who had interests or short
position in the Shares and underlying shares of the Company
which were required to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which
were recorded in the register kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Business

None of the Directors is interested in any business apart from the
Group’s business which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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Pre-IPO Share Options

In recognition of the contributions made by employees and a
consultant of the Group towards its growth and success, on 10
May 2006, Pre-IPO Share Options (the exercise of which would
entitle these grantees to an aggregate of 44,400,000 Shares)
have been granted by the Company to, and accepted by, among
others, certain employees.

Movements of the Pre-IPO Share Options for the year ended 31
December 2011 are as follows:

ERARERABERESE
Number of Pre-IPO Share Options
BRTEE
Exercise price RZE--F RERATE RERXH RZE--F
per Share THEEE -A-H Exercised Lapsed T—A=1—-8
ARA BT SEAH Exercise As at during during As at
Grantee HK$ Vesting date period 01/01/2011 the year theyear  31/12/2011
REEE 1.596 06/09/2006 06/09/2006- 1,960,000 — — 1,960,000
HTEE 09/05/2016
Mr. CHEUNG Chi 30/06/2007 30/06/2007- 3,960,000 — — 3,960,000
Executive Director 09/05/2016
30/06/2008 30/06/2008- 4,080,000 — — 4,080,000
09/05/2016
10,000,000 — — 10,000,000
ZEREE 2.28 06/09/2006 06/09/2006- 404,000 — — 404,000
HITEE 09/05/2016
Mr. LEE Kwok Leung 30/06/2007 30/06/2007- 804,000 — — 804,000
Executive Director 09/05/2016
30/06/2008 30/06/2008- 792,000 — — 792,000
09/05/2016
2,000,000 — — 2,000,000
AEELE WD 1.14 30/06/2008 30/06/2008- 9,000,000 — — 9,000,000
Mr. CHOW Chi Waiete) 09/05/2016
9,000,000 — — 9,000,000
Eoh 21,000,000 — — 21,000,000
Total

K BSEEXEE-ZENF-B-thAR
WEHTES -

Note: Mr. CHOW Chi Wai resigned as an executive Director with effect
from 29 January 2009.
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ROHERABRE@® Pre-IPO Share Options (Continued)

B
BEXLHERANBRENEEMRAB AN A summary of the principal conditions attached to the Pre-IPO
T Share Options is set out below:

1. RE 1. Consideration
BRAHERMERESARACS XA A cash consideration of HK$1.00 has been paid by each
BERE1.008 T o grantee of the Pre-IPO Share Options.

2. BRERXNE 2. Option Period

BRTIEMGEHEZSEREN  FERD Subject to other conditions as set out below, 10 years from

HERNBREENHRR10F EE the date of the offer of the respective Pre-IPO Share Options

BU2REMNEEALH (LEHBILEH unless extended in writing by the Board (and approved by the

TESHE) - BERLHERABRE Independent Non-Executive Directors) in its absolute

EXHERE MERTENZZEER discretion. Each of the Pre-IPO Share Options (to the extent

BEEEERM - not already exercised) shall lapse automatically at the end of

such option period.
3. THEBRITEE 3. Exercised Periods and Exercise Price

HMNEE35E - As set out on page 35.

4, Hfttixr#@ 4, Other Conditions

BHE /STESERLORERANBER The grant and/or exercise of each of the Pre-IPO Share

BHBRETIME R Options is subject to the following additional conditions:

() RO HBEEREBARTE]T (a) the Pre-IPO Share Option cannot be exercised within the
BERAHEERABRE first six months after the commencement of dealings in

the Shares;

(b) BREADT s BRAR/SHEADTH (b) any exercise of the Pre-IPO Share Option may be made
FHREAAFRE AiER®D in part or in full subject to any further restrictions imposed
THTREEMSERSIIN > BRD by the Company, the Stock Exchange and/or the sponsor
HERAMBRETN 22 ET to the Company’s listing as any of them see fit for the
®; purposes of obtaining the Stock Exchange approval to

the listing of and permission to deal in the Shares;

(c) TREXAHERMBRETEE (c) any exercise of the Pre-IPO Share Option shall be further
FEARAATKARELTHRAME subject to any guidelines issued by the Company from
EaE Sl time to time in order to ensure full compliance with the

Listing Rules;

(d BXAHERIBEREBEBAR (d) the Pre-IPO Share Option is personal to the relevant

AFE  FAEESEE grantee and may not be transferred or assigned;

KEEBBEBRERLIA —FT— —FF5H
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Pre-IPO Share Options (Continued)

4. Other Conditions (Continued)

(e) the Pre-IPO Share Option (to the extent not already

(f)

exercised) shall lapse at the expiry of the option period
as described in paragraph 2 above or otherwise in the
following manner:

(i) the grantee’s personal representatives (if any) may
exercise the Pre-IPO Share Option within 12 months
from his death, upon the expiry of which the Pre-IPO
Share Option (to the extent not already exercised)
shall lapse automatically unless extended by the
Board in its absolute discretion;

(ii) the grantee’s right to exercise the Pre-IPO Share
Option shall not be affected by his/its cessation of
employment, unless such cessation of employment
arises from any serious misconduct, bankruptcy or
conviction of any criminal offence involving integrity
or honesty, in which case the Pre-IPO Share Option
(to the extent not already exercised) shall lapse
automatically on the his/its last date of employment
with the Group;

(iii) if the grantee breaches any term or condition of the
Pre-IPO Share Option as described herein, the Pre-
IPO Share Option (to the extent not already
exercised) shall lapse automatically (unless
otherwise directed by the Board in writing in its
absolute discretion); and

the grantee of the Pre-IPO Share Option shall adhere to
any undertakings or restrictions that may be further
imposed on them by the Stock Exchange or the sponsor
to the Company’s listing.

SE-—FFH AREBABERERLA
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Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the Shareholders passed on
8 August 2006, the Company has established a share option
scheme (the “Scheme”) whereby the Board may, at their
discretion, invite any Directors, employees, consultants,
professionals, customers, suppliers, agents, partners or advisers
of or contractors to the Group (subject to the eligibility
requirements as set out therein) to take up options which entitle
them to subscribe for Shares representing up to a maximum in
nominal value of 30% of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time. The total number of Shares available for issue
under the Scheme and any other schemes must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
Listing Date unless further Shareholders’ approval has been
obtained. The total number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon the exercise of the options granted and to be granted
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12
months’ period up to the date of grant to a substantial
Shareholder or an independent non-executive director or their
associates would not exceed 0.1% of the shares in issue or an
aggregate value of HK$5,000,000 unless further Shareholders’
approval has been obtained; and to each other eligible person

would not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue.

The purpose of the Scheme is to recognise and acknowledge the
contributions that eligible participants have made or may make to
the Group. It also provides the eligible participants with an
opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company with a
view to (a) motivate the eligible participants to optimise the
performance and efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and (b)
attract and retain or otherwise maintain ongoing business
relationship with the eligible participants whose contributions are,
will or expected to be beneficial to the Group.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten years
ending on 7 August 2016. The exercise price of options shall be
determined by the Board and shall not be less than the highest of
the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the options and the
average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer and the nominal value of
a Share. An option may be exercised at any time during a period
as the Board may determine which shall not be more than ten
years from the date of grant of the option subject to the
provisions of early termination thereof.
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Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The accounting policy adopted for the share options is described
in Note 2.22(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2011, no share options had been granted or
were outstanding under this scheme.

Retirement Schemes

The Group participates in several defined contribution retirement
plans which cover the Group’s eligible employees in Mainland
China and Vietnam, and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for
the employees in Hong Kong. Particulars of these retirement
plans are set out in Note 25(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
was entered into or existed during the year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

Sales and purchases from the continuing operations and
discontinued operations of the Group attributable to its major
customers and suppliers respectively for the year ended 31
December 2011 were as follows:

HHEER DL HRBEOL

% of Sales % of Purchases

The largest customer/supplier 79.3% 12.1%
Five largest customers/suppliers 87.8% 29.6%

To the best knowledge and belief of the Directors, none of the
Directors, their associates or any Shareholder owning more than
5% of the issued share capital of the Company, has any interest
in any of the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers as
disclosed above.
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Connected Transactions

Certain related party transactions, disclosed in Note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements also constitute connected
transactions under the Listing Rules, required to be disclosed in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company
confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure requirement as
applicable to the following continuing connected transactions
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The following transactions between certain connected parties (as
defined in the Listing Rules) and the Company have been entered
into and/or ongoing for which relevant announcements, if
necessary, had been made by the Company in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules.

1. Connected Transaction

On 21 April 2011, the Group entered into an asset purchase
agreement (“APA”), a transition service agreement (“TSA”)
and a key account agreement (“KAA”) with various Umbro
related entities. Details of each of these agreements are set
out below:

(i) the APA was entered into by and among the Company,
T&S HK and Team & Sports (BVI) Limited, a subsidiary of
our Company, as sellers, and Nike Global Services Pte.
Ltd (“Global Services”) and UIL as purchasers, pursuant
to which T&S HK has conditionally agreed to sell and
Global Services has conditionally agreed to acquire the
assets (“Sale Assets”) under the Umbro Distributor
Agreement, including, among others, (i) all of T&S HK'’s
rights, title to and interest in the Umbro Distributor
Agreement; and (ii) all goodwill associated with the Sale
Assets and the corporate activities of T&S HK permitted
and licensed under the Umbro Distributor Agreement for
a cash consideration of US$27.5 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$214.5 million) (“Business Transfer”).
Concurrent with the closing of the Business Transfer on 2
June 2011
conditionally agreed to acquire and UIL has conditionally

(“Closing Date”), the Company has
agreed to dispose of all of its shares (representing 40%
of the issued share capital) (“T&S HK Sale Shares”) in
T&S HK for a cash consideration of US$4.0 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$31.2 million);
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EE2HE Report of the Directors

Connected Transactions (Continued)

1.

Connected Transaction (Continued)

(ii) the TSA was entered into by and among the Company,
Team & Sports (Shenzhen) Limited (“T&S Shenzhen”),
the subsidiary of T&S HK, and T&S HK as sellers, and
Global Services and UIL as purchasers, pursuant to
which the Company, T&S HK and T&S Shenzhen shall
provide or procure to provide certain transition services
to assist Global Services, UIL and any wholly owned
subsidiaries of Nike Inc. as designated by it in avoiding
disruption in the transition and operation of the Umbro
business in the PRC, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
from the Closing Date to 30 June 2012 for a transition
service fee of US$5.0 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$39.0 million); and

(iii) the KAA was entered into by and among the Company
and Win Sports on one part and Umbro Hong Kong
Limited (“Umbro HK”) on the other part, pursuant to
which Win Sports should be appointed as a retailer and,
if requested, a distributor of Umbro HK on a non-
exclusive basis in certain PRC provinces, Hong Kong and
Macau for a period commencing on the Closing Date and
ending on 31 December 2013. The Company may receive
key account service fees of up to US$7.5 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$58.5 million) from
Umbro HK in relation to certain marketing and advertising
costs and expenses and other investments as mutually
agreed by the parties.

The Business Transfer can enhance resources allocation of
the Group to focus on the development of its distribution and
retail of sportswear products. The provision of transition
services and key account services can reinforce the
cooperative business arrangement with Global Services and
Umbro related entities in the long term and provide the
backbone for continuous and sustainable business
relationships with the multinational sportswear companies in
the future.

At the time when the APA, TSA and KAA were entered into,
UIL was a substantial shareholder of T&S HK, it was a
Connected Person of the Company. Umbro HK, which was
100% held by UIL, and Global Services, which was a fellow
subsidiary of UIL, were associates of UIL, and therefore
Connected Persons of the Company. Accordingly, the
transactions under the APA, TSA and KAA constitute
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

e
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Connected Transactions (Continued)

1.

Connected Transaction (Continued)

Upon completion of the acquisition of T&S HK Sale Shares by
the Group on the Closing Date, UIL ceased to have interest in
T&S HK, and it is no longer a Connected Person of the
Company.

Continuing Connected Transactions

(A) (i) Sales of products bearing UMBRO brand to the
Umbro Group

Prior to the entering into of the transactions as
mentioned in the section headed “1. Connected
Transaction” above, we were an authorised supplier
of the Umbro Group for products bearing UMBRO
brand for the Umbro Group’s distribution in the
European Union. We, through Win Hanverky
Sportswear Company Limited (our wholly-owned
subsidiary) had been supplying such products to the
Umbro Group since 2004. Apart from engaging
independent third party contractors for the
manufacture of such products, our Group had also
commenced the manufacture of these products since
2008.

Prior to the acquisition of T&S HK Sale Sales by the
Group on the Closing Date, UIL was a substantial
shareholder of T&S HK, hence it was a Connected
Person of our Company. However, commencing from
the Closing Date, UIL was no longer a substantial
shareholder of T&S HK, and therefore ceased to be a
Connected Person of the Company.

Our sales to Umbro Group amounted to
approximately HK$12,781,000 for the period from 1
January 2011 to the Closing Date, which did not
exceed the relevant annual cap disclosed in the
announcement dated 26 May 2010.
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BERXS @) Connected Transactions (Continued)

2. RERERS @)

(A) (i) %2 8 UmbroZE f & Umbro%k

2. Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

(A) (i) Payment of royalty to the Umbro Group and

BXHEEEE K B Umbrofk
B EUmbroE @&

RETLEX. BERSZI—H
Frift I 5 A1 » RI5EUmbros 88
W AEEEATESEERE
UmbroEfm « ZZERNEEM
UILZ, Umbrofe B 32 A] 1 FE R =5
FERUmbroff B B2 B AT
A ([FA]) K - Umbrop 881
BRE AEBEATESH
UmbroE M BEBBREETE
Umbrok B T EEEE 28
BIHETEIRNETE ©

AEERERBHUBRER
THERMA - UILAXREFT
WEBRR RUBALFH
BEAL - AW BERAH
Bt ULABAREFTHNE
ERR  MEABRAARIAMN
BEAL -

R-ZE——H—HB—HE#X
BEHE  REBE [ Umbrok
BXfHNELEREREEER
2 Bl 4 A 8,478,000/ T K
1,941,000 T » FEBH B H
AZEZZEAFTATEAHNAD
HHRFENEEFELR -

purchases of Umbro Products from the Umbro Group
for distribution of the Umbro Products

Prior to the entering into of the transactions as
mentioned in the section headed “1. Connected
Transaction” above, pursuant to the Umbro
Distributor Agreement, we distributed various Umbro
Products in the Greater China. These products were
sourced from UIL or suppliers approved by the Umbro
Group directly or via an internet platform operated by
the Umbro Group (“Platform”). As part of the Umbro
Distributor Agreement, we paid, through T&S HK,
royalty to the Umbro Group for our distribution of
Umbro Products in the Greater China calculated in
accordance with the terms set out therein.

Prior to the acquisition of T&S HK Sale Sales by the
Group on the Closing Date, UIL was a substantial
shareholder of T&S HK, hence it was a Connected
Person of our Company. However, commencing from
the Closing Date, UIL was no longer a substantial
shareholder of T&S HK, and therefore ceased to be a
Connected Person of the Company.

Our royalty to and purchases from the Umbro Group
amounted to approximately HK$8,478,000 and
HK$1,941,000 respectively for the period from 1
January 2011 to the Closing Date, which did not
exceed the relevant annual caps disclosed in the
announcement dated 15 October 2009.

(B) MEEBEXERAT (TXB)HE

Em

ARANMBLAAERRRERE
RAR(TEEER) RXEGHES
RAR(TXEHB) ZER-ET
NFE+—BZ+-HEXBIT LA
& BEZE--F+ZA=+
—BERH=F Bt (()HEHZEH
LEMBRARABSAXERENE
AREERAREE ;K (i)K 55
BEBXEBHERE -

(B) Sales to Amerseas Enterprises Limited (“Amerseas”)

Each of Bowker Garment Accessories Company Limited
(“Bowker Accessories”) and Win Hanverky Textile
Limited (“Win Textile”), the subsidiaries of our Company,
has entered into a master agreement with Amerseas on
21 November 2008 for a term of three years ending 31
December 2011, pursuant to which (i) Bowker
Accessories and its subsidiaries agreed to supply
garment accessories to Amerseas and its subsidiaries;
and (ii) Win Textile agreed to supply fabrics to Amerseas.

SF-—FFH ABEEEBRAERAS
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Connected Transactions (Continued)

2. Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

(B) Sales to Amerseas Enterprises Limited (“Amerseas”)

AEEEERARLA
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(C)

(Continued)

TSG BVI is a substantial shareholder of a subsidiary of
our Company, hence it is a Connected Person. Amerseas
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of TSG BVI, therefore it is
an associate of TSG BVI, hence it is also a Connected
Person of our Company.

Our sales by Bowker Accessories Group and Win
Hanverky Textile Limited to the Amerseas Group
amounted to approximately HK$2,732,000 and
HK$33,054,000 respectively for the year ended 31
December 2011, which did not exceed the relevant
annual caps disclosed in the announcement dated 21
November 2008 and 12 July 2010 respectively.

Purchases of fabrics by the Group

Rich Form (HK) Limited, a subsidiary of our Company,
has entered into a master agreement with Oceanjade
Corporation Limited (“Oceanjade”) on 19 November 2008
for a term of three years ending 31 December 2011 for
sourcing of fabrics and related fabric-samples (“Fabrics”)
from Oceanjade for the production of products bearing
the brand “New York Laundry’.

Given that Oceanjade is beneficially and wholly-owned by
the brother of Mr. Chan Kam Cheong (“Mr. Chan”) and
that Mr. Chan is a chief executive of Al-Aham, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company, Oceanjade is
therefore an associate of Mr. Chan, and hence a
Connected Person of our Company.

No purchases of Fabrics from Oceanjade has been made
for the year ended 31 December 2011.
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BERXS @) Connected Transactions (Continued)
2. FEBERS @) 2. Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

(D) MAREEBEHE UmbroE @
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(D) Purchases of Umbro Products from the TSG Group

T&S HK, a subsidiary of our Company, has entered into a
on 21
November 2008 for a term of three years ending 31

master agreement with TSG International
December 2011 for sourcing of Umbro Products from the
TSG Group for distribution pursuant to the Umbro
Distributor Agreement prior to its early termination on 2
June 2011 as described in the section headed
“BUSINESS REVIEW - Discontinued Operations”.

TSG BVI is a substantial shareholder of a subsidiary of
our Company, hence it is a Connected Person. TSG
International is a wholly-owned subsidiary of TSG BVI,
therefore it is an associate of TSG BVI, hence it is also a
Connected Person of our Company.

BE-2-—-5+-RA=t—-RL
FE ARBYTEQXRESEFH
REE -

No purchases from the TSG Group has been made for
the year ended 31 December 2011.

EX(BRBUFHTER)CEREECER
——F+ZAZ+t-HLFENFERER
5 TRIAZERS :

The Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors,
have reviewed the continuing connected transactions made
during the year ended 31 December 2011 and confirmed that
these transactions were entered into:

(1) REAEEHEXERBREPTL (1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2 BR—RBRAXRAIUTBERNRQARALETE (2) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable
VE=ZFREBYE=FRM E’Jﬂz’k?ﬂ to the Company than terms available to or from independent
X third parties;

(B) RELAEFBEIZNEBHRERLTE
EHHAQNARREEBEFNNGKIE
TR

(3) in accordance with each of the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole;
and

(4) WEBYU AN GHRAENEBEEE L (4) have not exceeded the relevant annual caps as disclosed in
PR o previous announcements.

—FE——fFFH
2011 Annual Report
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Connected Transactions (Continued)

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an
unqualified letter containing findings and conclusions in respect
of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group
on pages 40 to 45 of this annual report in accordance with
paragraph 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s
letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Code on Corporate Governance Practices

Save for the deviation from the CG Code as described in the
Corporate Governance Report set out in this annual report, the
Company has applied the principles and complied with the code
provisions in the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules throughout the accounting period covered by this
annual report. Principal corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 21 to 27 of this report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float as required
under the Listing Rules as at the latest practicable date prior to
the issue of this report.

Auditor

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011
have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of the Company for the
year ending 31 December 2012.

By order of the Board

Win Hanverky Holdings Limited
LI Kwok Tung Roy

Chairman

Hong Kong, 14 March 2012
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
WIN HANVERKY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Win
Hanverky Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 49 to 173, which
comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31
December 2011, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

—E-—FFH
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2011, and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 14 March 2012
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R-—ZE——F+=-F=+—H As at31 December 2011

At AR

Consolidated Company
“§--&  E-¥F Z§--&  C3-3f
t=A +=A = .
Er=f ==k Er=F Er=F

As at As at As at As at
i 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
Note 2011 2010 2011 2010
TEn TAn THr TiEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FRBEE Non-current assets
AELHRIHEAE Leasehold land and land use rights 6 19,733 40,066 - =
nE - KBREE Property, plant and equipment 7 580,337 593,998 = =
EVEE Intangible assets 8 61,946 192,913 - =
REBARZRE Investments in subsidiaries 9 - - 1,505,357 1,404,542
REEAE 2 ER Interests in associates 10 33,010 32107 = =
BEfEHEE Deferred income tax assets 19 12,194 9,138 — =
BATEHAERABE2EBEE  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss  11(a) 31,790 = - =
HEHECREE Available-for-sale financial assets 11(b) - 500 - =
ERTHELR Loans to an associate 14 107,245 = - =
846,255 868,722 1,505,357 1,404,542
RHEE Current assets
g Inventories 12 638,677 509,787 - -
EHEZRAREE Trade and bills receivable 13 436,552 568,660 - —
HE N fER Current income tax recoverables 2,560 = = —
&e RAFERAMERER Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 14 86,829 88,470 527 198
BERBAEH Pledged bank deposits 15 1,839 1,184 - -
REBRER=EAZRTER Bank deposits with initial terms of over
three months 15 10,016 18,866 - -
BeRBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 15 790,075 763,974 88,083 43
SIAGEHE HEARNERE Assets of disposal group and other non-current
REERDEE asset classified as held for sale 32 73,7123 = - =
2,041,171 1,950,941 88,610 241
RBEE Current liabilities
EREZERREE Trade and bills payable 16 353,232 332,658 - =
Bt RS R LM EMIRS Accruals and other payables 17 262,818 239,690 14,473 5,948
HARERER Current income tax liabiliies 65,425 61942 382 250
g Borrowings 18 4,659 45,083 - -
REMBEAAEERRENES Loan from non-controlling shareholder of
a subsidiary 37 7,500 7,500 - -
ERHBAATE Amounts due to subsidiaries 37 - = 134,748 5
SIAGEHECHEARER Liabilities of disposal group classified
as held for sale 32 26,834 - - -
720,468 686,873 149,603 6,203
RBEE/ (8% FA Net current assets/(liabilities) 1,320,703 1,264,068 (60,993) (5,962)
BEENRBER Total assets less current liabilities 2,166,958 2,132,190 1,444,364 1,398,580

ESTEE1T3ENM B BEHRR—HD - The accompanying notes on pages 57 to 173 are an integral part
of these financial statements.

ST FFH ABEEBRBRERAS
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W=Z——F+=-H=+—H As at31December 2011

A AR

Consolidated Company
Z§--F -3-3F  Z§--F C3-%f
T=7 = ey =
=t-8 =t-8 =t-8 =t-8

As at As at As at As at
iR 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
Note 2011 2010 2011 2010

TEx TR TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FragE Non-current liabilities

BEMEHER Deferred income tax liabilties 19 15,870 5,002 - =
FEE Net assets 2,151,088 2,127,568 1,444,364 1,398,580
Ex Equity

K ARESEAEEERR itk Capital and reserves attributable to
equity holders of the Company

S Share capital 20 126,840 126,840 126,840 126,840
fife Reserves 21 981,676 974,829 1,204,552 1,204,552
BEF Retained earnings pii
-BRREREARE — Proposed final and special dividends 38,052 38,052 38,052 38,052
-Eft - Others 930,360 802,703 74,920 29,136

2,076,928 1,942,424 1,444,364 1,398,580

FERER Non-controlling interests 74,160 185,144 - -
aER Total equity 2,151,088 2,127,568 1,444,364 1,398,580
ESTEZ173ENMTBHEHRER —HD o The accompanying notes on pages 57 to 173 are an integral part

of these financial statements.

ZER REF
LI Kwok Tung Roy LAI Ching Ping
EZ EZE
Director Director

ABEMBRARAA —T——FFH
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6t FIER Consolidated Income Statement
HE-Z——F+-_HA=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2011
M & —E-—-F CZE-Zf
Note 2011 2010
THER FTAET
HK$°000 HK$’000
BFELSEER Continuing operations
I &= Revenue 5 3,199,934 2,869,282
HE R A Cost of sales 24 (2,504,545) (2,176,826)
EA Gross profit 695,389 692,456
HER D HEAR Selling and distribution costs 24 (180,527) (161,012)
- BRERTBAX General and administrative expenses 24 (529,919)  (401,452)
H Al A Other income 22 2,226 4,403
Hihl iz — F 5 Other gains — net 23 9,879 8,156
K (R RA Operating (loss)/profit (2,952) 142,551
AE WA Finance income 26 13,409 7,393
& & R A Finance costs 26 (1,523) (604)
MEWA - FE Finance income — net 11,886 6,789
e AT (B8) /EA  Share of (losses)/profits of associates 10 (349) 2,036
BR it 15 Bt A 28 Profit before income tax 8,585 151,376
FEHAX Income tax expense 27 (29,529) (34,315)
BESELE (BR) A (Loss)/profit from continuing
operations (20,944) 117,061
BERIEREER Discontinued operations
BRIELEERER (BB Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations 32 161,627 (44,260)
FERA Profit for the year 140,683 72,801
R AR Attributable to:
RARBREFEA Equity holders of the Company 230,196 120,472
FELE R R Non-controlling interests (89,513) (47,671)
140,683 72,801
KATBREREAEGLHEE Earnings per share from continuing
BEREEEREAL operations and discontinued
REXEB2BRER operations attributable to
(A8 BB ED) the equity holders of the
Company during the year
(expressed in HK cents per share)
- TN — basic 29 18.1 9.5
-#E — diluted 29 18.1 9.5
®E Dividends 30 101,472 86,251

BEETEZ173EMNMEF BB REZ—BD °

of these financial statements.
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HE-Z——F+-A=F+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2011

Sff2HEWE R Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

B 3E —E-—-F ZE-ZfF
Note 2011 2010
TER TERT
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE A Profit for the year 140,683 72,801
Hfth 2 [ W & Other comprehensive income
e AR E e ks Share of other comprehensive
income of associates 21 1,252 639
EMBnEER Currency translation differences 22,657 26,622
REEMBARER Settlement of estimated
BT SE 1 IR R i 2 consideration receivable from
HEREEM non-controlling interests in relation
to disposal of interest in a subsidiary — 10,031
FEZHEWGZHEE Total comprehensive income
for the year 164,592 110,093
UTALTELEZEWELE . Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
RATREFEA Equity holders of the Company 251,590 153,177
FERESR Non-controlling interests (86,998) (43,084)
164,592 110,093
KAFBREZFEA Total comprehensive income
EhE2ERZRAEEER . attributable to equity holders of
the Company from:
STERE XK Continuing operations 65,120 179,032
EREREER Discontinued operations 186,470 (25,855)
251,590 153,177

FSTHEITBEANMEBUBRE -2 -

AEEEERERLA

Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

of these financial statements.

e

2011 Annual Report

The accompanying notes on pages 57 to 173 are an integral part



A N

=

SHtHEZEER Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE_T——F+Z-ZA=1+—HLFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2011

AAARERE AR
Attributable to equity holders
of the Company
FER
i
R Non- BREH
Share 1] @3t controlling Total
capital Reserves Total interests equity
(M&200  (HEE21)
(Note 20) (Note 21)
TER TER TER TER TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
W-B-BE-F-AMEHE  Balance at 1 January 2010 126840 1729632  1,856472 231171 2,087,643
2EWE Comprehensive income
EgRHN/ (B8) Profit(loss) for the year = 120,472 120,472 (47,671) 72,801
H2mEkE Other comprehensive income
EMREER Currency translation differences = 22,035 22,035 4587 26,622
FHERBAAERENR Settlement of consideration receivable
FERERZ from non-controlling interests in
REEM relation to disposal of interest
in a subsidiary — 10,031 10,031 — 10,031
EiEBENT Share of other comprehensive income
A2 EKE of associates — 639 639 — 639
Ht2EREEE Total other comprehensive income = 32,705 32,705 4,587 37,292
2EKEAR Total comprehensive income - 153,177 153,177 (43,084) 110,093
HERARS Transactions with owners
EEHEEZHERT Changes in ownership interests in
WEAAREREZNED subsidiaries without change of
(K 3£35(b) control (Note 35(b)) _ _ _ 1,337 1,337
O EAREERER Dividends paid to non-controlling
RS interests of subsidiaries - — — (4,280) (4,280)
EffRE Dividends paid
-ZEENERH - 2009 final — (19,026) (19,026) — (19,026)
-ZE-ZEABREH - 2010 interim and special — (48,199) (48,199) — (48,199)
BEEARZEE Total transactions with owners - (67,225) (67,225) (2,943) (70,168)
R-B-%F
TZRA=T-BH&ER Balance at 31 December 2010 126,840  1,815584 1,942,424 185,144 2,127,568

FS7TEEIBENMEBHBHRER B2 -

of these financial statements.
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SR EE R Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE_ZT——F+-A=1+—HLFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2011

RARRERE AELR
Attributable to equity holders
of the Company
FER
i
S Non- BREs
Share i @3t controlling Total
capital Reserves Total interests equity
(M320) (HEE21)
(Note 20) (Note 21)
TER TEL TEL TEL TETL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=Z--5-A-BH&H Balance at 1 January 2011 126,840  1,815584 1,942,424 185,144 2,127,568
2Ek# Comprehensive income
EERR/ (BB) Profit/(loss) for the year - 230,196 230,196 (89,513) 140,683
Htt2 AR Other comprehensive income
ERBEESR Currency translation differences - 20,142 20,142 2,515 22,657
EEBE DR Share of other comprehensive income
2 E A of associates - 1,252 1,252 - 1,252
Ht2EREEE Total other comprehensive income - 21,394 21,394 2,515 23,909
2ERGEE Total comprehensive income - 251,590 251,590 (86,998) 164,592
HBEEARS Transactions with owners
ERHRESZBERT Changes in ownership interests in
WEAREERERNED subsidiaries without change of
(Wt zE35(a)) control (Note 35(a)) - (15,614) (15,614) (15,586) (31,200)
aEA Dividends paid to non-controlling
FEREZIARE interests of subsidiaries - - - (8,400) (8,400)
ERRE Dividends paid
-ZE-ZERBREH - 2010 final and special - (38,052) (38,052) - (38,052)
-ZE--F4f ~ 2011 interim - (63,420) (63,420) - (63,420)
HEEARGAE Total transactions with owners —  (117,086)  (117,086) (23,986)  (141,072)
R=Z--%
TZA=t-HH&% Balance at 31 December 2011 126,840 1,950,088 2,076,928 74,160 2,151,088

BEITEZE173ENHEB KRR -5 o

AEEEERERLA
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BHRERE

BEZZ——FtZA=T—RHIEE

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2011

(o3 - C"2-%F
Note 2011 2010
TER TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
REXKRBERE Cash flows from operating activities
REmBRE Cash generated from operations 31(a) 205,844 275,583
2R E Interest paid (2,411) (3,567)
ENEBFE Hong Kong profits tax paid (12,751) (34,897)
ENFBERECERSH Mainland China enterprise
income tax paid (5,222) (2,672)
2N EMTER Overseas income tax paid (671) —
REXKMEB Net cash generated from
ReF8 operating activities 184,789 234,447
RETBHRERE Cash flows from investing activities
W BB BT 1B A B HBR Acquisition of subsidiaries,
BANRS net of cash acquired 31(c) — (423)
RBEH=EAAN Subscription of additional
BHIRAE share capital of an associate 10 — (2,388)
Ez E%T?‘%HQF% Subscription of convertible bonds 11(a) (31,200) —
AT HE QA Loans to an associate (105,060) —
Euﬁl AE Interest received 10,885 7,437
BEYX  HERKE Purchase of property, plant and
equipment (78,759) (69,809)
HEME  KER Proceeds from disposal of property,
REBERE plant and equipment 31(b) 290 12,291
HETHEESRMEE Proceeds from disposal of
P15 718 available-for-sale financial assets 11(b) — 780
HE D Proceeds from disposal of
FEMIEFE distribution rights, net 31(d) 183,300 —
MNEEARITEN New pledged bank deposits 15 (605) (1,184)
REHREB=@EAZ Decrease in bank deposits
RITEFRD with initial terms of over three months 9,150 5,754
REZBFMEREFE Net cash used in investing activities (11,999) (47,542)

ESTHRZ1BENMEBHBRR -2 -

of these financial statements.

The accompanying notes on pages 57 to 173 are an integral part
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SFELARER Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BE-Z——F+-A=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2011

Pt =E 2§ C"T-2F
Note 2011 2010
TER THER
HK$’000 HK$’000
METHBREERE Cash flows from financing activities
REMBARFERRRE Loan from non-controlling shareholder
NE & of a subsidiary 37(d) — 7,500
BEMBHNE Proceeds from borrowings 31,647 18,719
EBEEE Repayments of borrowings (72,911) (43,926)
ENARARRERFEARE Dividends paid to the Company’s
equity holders (101,472) (67,225)
ENFERERRE Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (8,900) (3,780)
HEMB AR ERMERE Proceeds from disposal of interest
in a subsidiary 35(b) — 1,337
METHMERSFHE Net cash used in financing activities (151,636) (87,375)
ReREASEEY Net increase in cash and
12 hn 58 cash equivalents 21,154 99,530
FUNRERBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year 763,974 649,493
REeERBAECEEY Exchange gains on cash and
E 5 & cash equivalents 15,424 14,951
800,552 763,974
FIABFEHEBEBENEHE Cash and cash equivalents of disposal
HAMWBRERFASLEED group classified as held for sale 32(b) (9,577) —
FHREER Cash and cash equivalents at
REEEY end of the year 15 790,975 763,974

EHTEZ173ENMEBHEHRER—B2 - The accompanying notes on pages 57 to 173 are an integral part
of these financial statements.
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General information

Win Hanverky Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are engaged in the
manufacturing and selling of garment products, including
sportswear, golf and high-end fashion apparel, active and
outer wear, and related accessories. Sales are primarily
under Original Equipment Manufacturing (“OEM”)
arrangements to customers in Europe, North America and
Mainland China, and under distribution and retail modes in
Mainland China and Hong Kong. Its production bases are
primarily located in Mainland China. Details of the principal
subsidiaries of the Group are set out in Note 9 to these
consolidated financial statements.

The Company is an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law, Cap.22, (Law 3 of 1961, as
combined and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address
of the Company’s registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands.

The Company has its primary listing on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated, and
have been approved for issue by the Company’s board of
directors on 14 March 2012.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

SFE-—FFH ABEERBARALA
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SO HmRMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“‘HKFRS”). These consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the available-
for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(a) Revised and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The following revised standard and amendments to
standards are mandatory for the first time for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2011.

«  HKAS 1 (Amendment), ‘Presentation of financial
statements’ is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2011. The
amended standard clarifies that an entity will
present an analysis of other comprehensive
income for each component of equity, either in
the statement of changes in equity or in the notes
to the financial statements. The amendment has
had no material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) Revised and amended standards adopted by the
Group (Continued)

(b) Amendments and

HKAS 24 (Revised), ‘Related party disclosures’ is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2011. The revised standard clarifies
and simplifies the definition of a related party and
removes the requirement for government-related
entities to disclose details of all transactions with
the government and other government-related
entities. The revised standard has had no
material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

HKFRS 7 (Amendment), ‘Financial instruments:
Disclosures’ is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2011. The
amended standard clarifies seven disclosure
requirements for financial instruments, with a
particular focus on the qualitative disclosures and
credit risk disclosures. The amendment has had
no material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

interpretations to existing

standards effective in 2011 but not relevant to the
Group

Amendment to HKAS 32, ‘Classification of rights
issues’ is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 February 2010. This is not currently
applicable to the Group, as it has not made any
rights issue.

Amendment to HK(IFRIC) — Int 14, ‘HKAS 19 — The
limit on a defined benefit asset, minimum funding
requirements and their interaction’ is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2011. This is not currently relevant to the Group, as
it does not have a defined benefit retirement
scheme.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1 B EE ®m) 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) RZE——F4EYEELXEF
BEMNERMYBEFELNE
Z (&)

(b) Amendments and interpretations to existing

standards effective in 2011 but not relevant to the

60 SRS I

Win Hanverky Holdings Limited
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Group (Continued)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 19, ‘Extinguishing financial
liabilities with equity instruments’ is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010.
This is not currently applicable to the Group, as it
has no extinguishment of financial liabilities
replaced with equity instruments currently.

Amendment to HKFRS 1, ‘Limited exemption
from comparative HKFRS 7 disclosures for first-
time adopters’ is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2010. This is not
relevant to the Group as the Group is not first-
time adopter of financial statements.

Amendment to HKFRS 1, ‘First time Adoption of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards’ is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2011. This is not relevant to the Group
as the Group is not first-time adopter of HKFRS.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1 IREEE (3 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) RZE——F4EYEELEF
BRI A E R B E QB
=N E))

(b) Amendments and interpretations to existing
standards effective in 2011 but not relevant to the

Group (Continued)

o FHEBHKREEREINR +  Amendment to HKFRS 3 (Revised), ‘Business

(BRIEF]) [EBEHINE
R-H-E-—F-8-—
ARz E&RARNFERE
AW ZERBHTER
RAKE  BARZER
ERAMALESR IR
REHEKSH -

S EELELCIGE
BEE Y BT
——F—A-BRZAMA
{05 B IR A6 - BRI
AREARKEE  BAK
EELE 250 A
B

ERETERE2IRG5E
RBYMBEREINER -
H-ZE—-——%-F—-HA%
CERENFERBRE
Mo ZEBEHRENTEAR
AEE BRAZEHRER
ERMBREERE IR
mERRE -

58 ERNEREREBE
BE)-REBERIEF
BEEFTEINBEHR =
E——F—-F-HBHz%M
BMNEERREN - ZRE
BRITEARASE BB
AEBTE/EF BHET

éuo

combinations’ is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2011. This is
currently not applicable to the Group as there is
no business combination that involved contingent
consideration prior to the effective date of the
standard.

Amendment to HKAS 34, ‘Interim financial

reporting’ is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2011. This is not
applicable to the Group as the Group does not

present the interim financial statements.

Amendment to HKAS 27, ‘Consolidated and
separate financial statements’ is effective for the
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2011. This is currently not applicable to the
Group as the amendment is only relevant to first-
time adopter of HKFRS.

Amendment to HK(IFRIC) — Int 13, ‘Customer
loyalty programmes’ is effective for the annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011.
This is currently not applicable to the Group as
the Group has no customer loyalty programmes.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) The following new standards and amendments to

standards have been issued but are not effective for

the financial year beginning 1 January 2011 and have

not been early adopted:

HKAS 1 (Revised), ‘Presentation of Financial
Statements’ (effective for periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2012)

HKAS 12 (Amendment), ‘Deferred tax: Recovery
of underlying assets’ (effective for periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2012)

HKAS 19 (Amendment), ‘Employee benefits’
(effective for periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment), ‘Severe hyperinflation
and removal of fixed dates for first-time adopters’
(effective for periods beginning on or after 1 July
2011)

HKFRS 7 (Amendment), ‘Disclosures — transfers

of financial assets’ (effective for periods

beginning on or after 1 July 2011)

HKFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments’, (effective for
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013)
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2 EESHEBERE @ 2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
21 B EE @) 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) ATHATEARENNERE (c) The following new standards and amendments to
HBEBLFR=_F——F—A4 standards have been issued but are not effective for
—HRRNEBEEEER K the financial year beginning 1 January 2011 and have
BERERS (@) not been early adopted: (Continued)

o FEBHHMEENSE 105 +  HKFRS 10 ‘Consolidated financial statements’,
GO BHRR] (R — (effective for periods beginning on or after 1
=E-A-HBZ#EMBAR January 2013)

i 58 78 4 )

o ERBMBHREEHE1H +  HKFRS 11 ‘Joint arrangements’, (effective for
[BERH] (RZE—=F periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013)
—B-—HEZEBRBNH
e

o EBRUBHRSEAE 125 + HKFRS 12 ‘Disclosure of interests in other
(HEREMEENER] entities’, (effective for periods beginning on or
(R=Z—=F—-H—B% after 1 January 2013)

Z & B A E B A )

o BENBHREEDE1IR +  HKFRS 13 ‘Fair value measurement’, (effective
[AEEFE2I(R=E—= for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013)
F-A-—HRZ2RHBRH
HR A )
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SO HmRMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of
the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential
voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether
the Group controls another entity. The Group also
assesses existence of control where it does not have
more than 50% of the voting power but is able to
govern the financial and operating policies by virtue of
de-facto control. De-facto control may arise from
circumstances such as enhanced minority rights or
contractual terms between shareholders, etc.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and
expenses on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Profits and losses resulting from inter-
company transactions that are recognised in assets
are also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

22 B AR @ 2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
22126 R B (&) 2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)
(a) EHEH (a) Business combinations
REBEDEBRBLIAE The Group applies the acquisition method to
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account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. ldentifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at
their fair values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition related costs are expensed as
incurred.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred
and the fair value of non-controlling interest over
the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If this consideration is lower than the
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, the difference is recognised in profit or
loss.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(b) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries

(c)

without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that
do not result in loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions — that is, as transactions
with the owners in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses
on disposals to non-controlling interests are also

recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured to
its fair value at the date when control is lost, with
the change in carrying amount recognised in
profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the group had
directly disposed of the related assets or
that
previously recognised in other comprehensive

liabilities. This may mean amounts

income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

22K B AT @ 2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
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2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the company on the basis of
dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

2.3 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the group has
significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50%
of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.
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SO HmRMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.3 Associates (Continued)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the income statement, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount
of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in
an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in the
associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to
‘share of profit/(loss) of an associate’ in the income
statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and its
associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of associates have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in
associates are recognised in the income statement.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.4 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the executive directors who make strategic
decisions.

2.5 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong Dollars (HK$), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the income statement within ‘finance
income or cost’. Translation differences on non-
monetary financial assets such as equities classified
as available-for-sale are included in other
comprehensive income. All other foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in the income
statement within ‘other gains/(losses) — net’.
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2 EESHEBERE @ 2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.5 IERE @) 2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c) KEAQA (c) Group companies
HI)HEREEINERTEAMN The results and financial position of all the group
FESEEAR (ZELRANEY entities (none of which has the currency of a
MEHRAEUEBERKRNEHE hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
MRR) WEERBBEAMR > IR currency different from the presentation currency are
UTHABERZ2IER ! translated into the presentation currency as follows:
(i) REEEERLINEER (i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
BENDREEBNERME presented are translated at the closing rate at the
=B date of that balance sheet;
(i) ERNERLHOBEZHEF (i) income and expenses for each income statement
HEERE BRIEZFIE are translated at average exchange rates (unless
EWHRSZ HEEEZG this average is not a reasonable approximation of
FENEEM > BB the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
RT WX BIEERSHE the transaction dates, in which case income and
HHEZRBRE) &k expenses are translated at the rate on the dates

of the transactions); and

(iii) TERAELZEREAM (iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised

2HKREER o in other comprehensive income.
RKWEBEIRAMEENEE Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
RAFEABERBEIHNDF acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
MEEHRESRE WRETEXR and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
BE EEWERZHEIT the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are
AR o recognised in equity.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise mainly manufacturing
factories and offices. Leasehold land classified as finance
leases and all other property, plant and equipment other
than construction in progress are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items.

Construction in progress represents buildings and
leasehold improvements in which construction work has
not been completed and plant, machinery and equipment
pending for installation. It is carried at cost which
includes construction expenditures and other direct costs
less any impairment losses. On completion, construction
in progress is transferred to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. No depreciation is provided for
construction in progress until it is completed and
available for use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
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2.6 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
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Freehold land with unlimited useful life is not depreciated.
Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences
amortisation from the time when the land interest
becomes available for its intended use. Amortisation on
leasehold land classified as finance lease and
depreciation on other assets is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Leasehold land classified Over the lease terms
as finance lease

— Buildings 10 to 50 years
— Leasehold improvements 3 to 10 years or
over the lease terms,

whichever is shorter
— Plant and machinery 4 to 10 years
— Furniture and equipment 3 to 10 years

— Motor vehicles and yacht 5 to 10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognised within ‘other gains — net’ in the income
statement.
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27 HELT R T EAE 2.7 Leasehold land and land use rights
HELH R T FERAENEMSRE The up-front prepayments made for leasehold land and
AR BLEHE  NESEEHR land use rights are accounted for as operating leases.
HARFBEERZE  EFRE" They are expensed in the income statement on a
WENEFNBERATE - straight-line basis over the periods of the lease, or when

there is impairment, the impairment is expensed in the
income statement.

SEIEE 2.8 Intangible assets
(a) B2 (a) Goodwill

BAERKBHRBLARIREEA Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and
AREL  RMEZRERL associates and represents the excess of the
FEBRBEBWEAZAREEE consideration transferred over the Group’s interest in
E -BERIREEAFTFEE net fair value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities
Frib e R 0 R B A R B and contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the fair
BZAFEZEBD o value of the non-controlling interest in the acquiree.
BREARTS  BEBEH For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
ESvHBgsBERELS acquired in a business combination is allocated to
HASELBN([REELE each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or
ful)  FEHEZERE M2 groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the
AXME EIEFB2EEN synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
FERAENEARNDBEEREN units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the
MEBBETEZ2ERSZ lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill is
RIKAKE - BERLE DK monitored for internal management purposes.
FHETER- Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.
BEESFETHERS R Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually
ELREHGERNEETRA or more frequently if events or changes in
REHBRHER  FLEEER circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
o MBIREMERETKE S carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
Eb® > JRESBEAEFERE recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in
HEATLEREENEAZES use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any
ZEoRAARENEERAR impairment is recognised immediately as an expense
Y BEZFEHM - and is not subsequently reversed.
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SO HmRMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.8 Intangible assets (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Trademarks

Separately acquired trademarks are shown at
historical cost. Trademarks acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Trademarks have a finite useful life
and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the cost of trademarks and

licences over their estimated useful lives of 25 years.

Customer relationships

Customer relationships represent the fair value
attributable to the customer base or existing
contractual bids with customers taken over as a
result of business combination, and are recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. The contractual
customer relations have a finite useful life and are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method over the
expected life of the customer relationship.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.9 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and

associates and other non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortisation, and are tested at least annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (CGUs). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.
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SO HmRMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are mainly loans and
receivables, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the purposes for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

(a) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in
current assets, except for the amounts that are
settled or expected to be settled more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group’s
loans and receivables comprised loan receivables,
trade and other receivables, pledged bank deposits,
bank deposits with initial terms of over three months,
and cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet.

(b) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset
is classified in this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives
are also categorised as held for trading unless they
are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to be settled
within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as
non-current.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are
included in non-current assets unless management
intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months
of the end of the reporting period.

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value,
and transaction costs are expensed in the income
statement. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables
are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
the ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’
category are presented in the income statement within
‘other (losses)/gains — net’ in the period in which they
arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss is recognised in the income
statement as part of other income when the Group’s right
to receive payments is established.
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SO HmRMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

Recognition and measurement (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available for sale are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available for sale are sold
or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the income statement
as ‘gains and losses from investment securities’.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using
the effective interest method is recognised in the income
statement as part of other income. Dividends on
available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in
the income statement as part of other income when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.

2.11 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.12 Impairment of financial assets

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.
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2 BEEEHEEHSEZ@ 2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
LN ERMEERE @ 2.12 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(a) REBHEAAIIR2EE (B) (a) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)
BEFKAIEE—AR—ARB Evidence of impairment may include indications that
MAFTHBREALERE - 2 the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
NEREEBEFNEI KRS - & significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in
ERNREBEEIETEMUE interest or principal payments, the probability that
BEH URBUBESIZH they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
BREREARREAERELR reorganisation, and where observable data indicate
AFtEZRD X HEE that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
SZENEREENEE KK future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
AR o economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
RERRERIERMS @ BB For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss is
CHREEREERERERE measured as the difference between the asset’s
ERBRRERIE 2 H5H KRR carrying amount and the present value of estimated
ReERBRETEREREEZ future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
AREEEE) BEHAE - & have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
ERTES T UEDE > mEE asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
SHENEHFIBRER o amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the
EXRSBEZEBRERED loss is recognised in the consolidated income
MEFE - AFFEEMRES statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment
BeHBRRARBENEEL has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
BITBEBRFE EBEREF measuring any impairment loss is the current
b REBETRUATEBETE effective interest rate determined under the contract.
BEENEZIAATEARE As a practical expedient, the Group may measure
STERE - impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value

using an observable market price.

HEREHBE  HESESE If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
B BiERAJEERBER impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
BECEHEHBE (flNEH related objectively to an event occurring after the
AEEFRHE) » BIREHF impairment was recognised (such as an improvement
BREABAIRIZAEESE in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
Mmoo previously recognised impairment loss is recognised

in the consolidated income statement.
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SO HmRMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(b) Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. For debt securities, the group uses the
criteria referred to in (a) above. In the case of equity
investments classified as available for sale, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is also evidence that the
assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative
loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity
and recognised in the profit or loss. Impairment
losses recognised in the consolidated income
statement on equity instruments are not reversed
through the consolidated income statement. If, in a
subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument
classified as available for sale increases and the
increase can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in
profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through
the consolidated income statement.

2.13 Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held-for-sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as
assets held for sale when their carrying amount is to be
recovered principally through a sale transaction and a
sale is considered highly probable. They are stated at the
lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

2.14 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
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2.15 Trade and other receivables
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Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less.

2.17 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction
from the proceeds.

2.18 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade payables are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if
longer). If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

21968 2.19 Borrowings
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Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, and the fee is deferred until the draw-down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet
date.

2.20Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
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2.21 Current and deferred income tax
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The tax expense comprises current and deferred income
tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case,
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries and associates operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except for any deferred income tax liability where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.22 Employee benefits

(a) Pension obligations
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Group companies operate several defined contribution
retirement schemes.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions if
the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee service
in the current and prior periods.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays fixed
contributions to publicly or privately administered
trust funds on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expenses when they are due. Prepaid contributions
are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in the future payments is
available.
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22 EEEA @) 2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)
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The Group operates two equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference to
the fair value of the options granted:

* including any market performance conditions;

* excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and

* excluding the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save).

Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to vest. The total expense is recognised
over the vesting period, which is the period over
which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be
satisfied. At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest based on the non-market
performance and service conditions. It recognises the
impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in
the income statement, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any
directly attributable transaction costs are credited to
share capital (nominal value) and share premium.
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SO HmRMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

(d)

Share-based compensation (Continued)

The grant by the Company of options over its equity
instruments to the employees of its subsidiaries is
treated as a capital contribution. The fair value of
employee services received, measured by reference
to the grant date fair value, is recognised over the
vesting period as an increase to investment in
subsidiary, with a corresponding credit to equity.

The social security contributions payable in
connection with the grant of the share options is
considered an integral part of the grant itself, and the
charge will be treated as a cash-settled transaction.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses. It recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice
that has created a constructive obligation.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits.
The Group recognises termination benefits when it is
demonstrably committed to terminate the
employment of current employees without possibility
of withdrawal. In the case of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination
benefits are measured based on the number of
employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period are discounted to their present
value.

2.23 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.
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Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

2.24 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services
in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue
is shown, net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and
discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities as described below. The amount of revenue is
not considered to be reliably measurable until all
contingencies relating to the sale have been resolved.
The Group bases its estimates on historical results,
taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a) Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity
has delivered products to the customer, the customer
has accepted the products and collectability of the
related receivables is reasonably assured.

(b) Subcontracting income

Subcontracting income is recognised when
subcontracting services are provided.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
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2.24 Revenue recognition (Continued)
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(c) Concessionaire sales service income

Concessionaire sales service income is recognised
when the sales services are provided.

(d) Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method.

2.25 Leases (as the lessee for operating leases)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

2.26 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be
required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements. When a change in
the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is
probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

2.27 Dividend distributions

Dividend distributions to the Company’s equity holders
are recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s equity holders.
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3 Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors
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The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk.

The Group’s risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and, where considered
necessary, seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance. The Group has not used
derivative financial instruments to hedge its risk exposures to
changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest
rates.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to the Chinese Renminbi and United
States Dollars. Foreign exchange risk arises from
future commercial transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities, and net investments in foreign
operations.

As at 31 December 2011, if Chinese Renminbi had
strengthened/weakened by 5% (2010: 4%) against
the Hong Kong Dollars with all other variables held
constant, profit for the year and equity holders’ equity
would have been approximately HK$12,638,000
(2010: HK$6,344,000) higher/lower mainly as a result
of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of
Chinese Renminbi denominated cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other receivables, and trade
and other payables.

The foreign currency exchange exposure on assets
and liabilities denominated in United States Dollars is
considered to be minimal as Hong Kong Dollars is
currently pegged to United States Dollars.
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2011 Annual Report -~ Win Hanverky Holdings Limited



3 SREREE@
SMeRAREE @

(b) FERR

FERRRERERREEE
W BROBRUARREFEE
ZEERR  BRERKEEEY
RRARCEERS o

ARENEBATEIREL
BREERBRERBESN
g EMTERSEERIX
EEGEENED - EBALE
RERL TURFEEER
HESRENEARERRE
BENMGE - RARGHEER
B EEBERRENRER
AHREERREBTRBARR
BE RO RH G

AEBECERNEE  BRHEE
TRERFFEELENEF -
AEEERHEREFETREE
etk EE -

BRUEZRREIEZEREEER
FRELZNEF - FEER
FEHEFHEEHN FI0E90
R AKBHHERI D AR
RANET  MANEEFH
HEERARTREENEAMRS
A RITE MO RS

e

5_0

B < = smeERERAR —F —FFH

Win Hanverky Holdings Limited 2077 Annual Report

SO HmRMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
deposits with banks, as well as credit exposures to
customers, including outstanding receivables and
committed transactions.

Debtors of the Group may be affected by the
unfavourable economic conditions and the lower
liquidity situation which could in turn impact their
ability to repay the amounts owed to the Group.
Deteriorating operating conditions for debtors may
also have an impact on management’s cash flow
forecasts and assessment of the impairment of
receivables. To the extent that information is
available, management has properly reflected
updated estimates of expected future cash flows in
their impairment assessments.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales
are made to customers with an appropriate credit
history. It performs periodic credit evaluations/
reviews of its customers.

Majority of trade receivables are with customers
having an appropriate credit history. The Group
grants its customers credit terms ranging from 30 to
90 days. Most of the Group’s sales are on open
account, while sales made to a small number of
customers are covered by letters of credit issued by
banks or settled by documents against payment
issued by banks.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(c)

As at 31 December 2011,
receivables due from one group of customers (2010:

the Group’s trade

one group of customers) represent approximately
68% (2010: 77%) of its total trade receivables from
third parties (Note 13). The Group has no other
significant concentrations of credit risk.

The Group has policies to place deposits and cash
and cash equivalents only with major financial
institutions. Management does not expect any losses
from non-performance by these financial institutions
as they have no default history in the past.

Liquidity risk

Prudent
maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of

liquidity risk management includes
funding from an adequate amount of committed credit

facilities.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s
liquidity reserve comprising undrawn borrowing
facility and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of
expected cash flows. Surplus cash held by Group
entities over and above balances required for working
capital management is invested in interest-bearing
bank accounts and term deposits with appropriate
maturities or sufficient liquidity to provide sufficient
head-room as determined by the above-mentioned
forecasts.

e i
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3 TRAREE@® 3 Financial risk management (Continued)
SMeRARREE @ 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) RBELRE (&) (c) Liquidity risk (Continued)
TREBRNEEARTHEZS The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
NEHAMNERBEEBAR DA into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
SENESHERE  RPEES period at the balance sheet date to the contractual
BRAGHNARTERESRE - K= maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are
E——fR-ZE-ZF+ZA= the contractual undiscounted cash flows. As at 31
t—B  ARFANAEESRERE December 2011 and 2010, all financial liabilities of the
R—FREH - ARITRNZE Company are due within one year. Balances due within
EAREXR  M+=EA R 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact
EHEHREERES - of discounting is not significant.
—EWEF —EEE
PR—F Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 and &t
1 year 2 years 5 years Total
TET TET TET TET
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
=R Consolidated
R-E——F At 31 December
+=-—A=+-8 2011
BERFERE Borrowings and
interest payment 4,772 — - 4,772
REMEL A Loan from
FERBR non-controlling
NE X shareholder of
a subsidiary 7,500 — — 7,500
EAEZRAZREE Trade and bills payable 353,232 - — 353,232
FESTIR R R Accruals and
H o FE IR 3R other payables 262,818 — — 262,818
628,322 — — 628,322
R-E—-Z2F At 31 December
+=—A=+-8 2010
BERFERE Borrowings and
interest payment 46,846 — — 46,846
REH B Loan from
FERBR non-controlling
NE X shareholder of
a subsidiary 7,500 — — 7,500
EAEZRAREE Trade and bills payable 332,658 — — 332,658
FESTIR R R Accruals and
H 1 FE TR K other payables 239,690 — — 239,690
626,694 — — 626,694

AEEBRRERAA —F- —FFH

Win Hanverky Holdings Limited 2077 Annual Report



& {3t Bt #& 3} R Mt 3= Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 tRAREE @

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

JMeREARREE @

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d RERERDFENZER

R-ZEBE-——+-A=+-—-
A REFEDHK2.4%(ZF—
ZF BF3.3%) 3.1%(=ZF
—ZF 5F23%) K1.7% (=
T—ZF BF1.1%) KWNEF
HARGFENCEFRTER
1,839,000 T (=2 —FF :
1,184,000% 7t) R B HA IR & 18
=18 B R 17 77 5% 10,016,000
T (ZZ—Z% 18,866,000/
T) kBB RITHEX
766,537,0008 T (= & — &
% : 737,143,000/ T) 4 © &K
SETEHEMEAGTEREE -

DEGEBRABIBRIETER -

BRRA-ZE——F+=-HF=+—
A #jE 5 f& & 4,659,000 T
(ZZ—ZF : 45,083,000%
To) A REBIWEE M E A
BB

REBZEER » 7 EE
SRD1% > MEBEMTER
ERETE BE_T——F
+t-B=t-HLEFEXEH
FABEEN RPN
7,737,000 T (—ZE—F F :
7,121,000 ) - FEEFEH
REERBTER  REHR
BR=EAZRTERREH
BTERZFNERARETE
EZFIERZE -

(d) Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk

As at 31 December 2011, except for the pledged
bank deposits of HK$1,839,000 (2010:
HK$1,184,000), bank deposits with initial terms of
over three months of HK$10,016,000 (2010:
HK$18,866,000) and short-term bank deposits of
HK$766,537,000 (2010: HK$737,143,000) which
carried weighted average interest rates of 2.4% per
annum (2010: 3.3% per annum), 3.1% per annum
(2010: 2.3% per annum) and 1.7% per annum (2010:
1.1% per annum), respectively, the Group has no
other significant interest-bearing assets. Majority of
these balances are at floating rates.

Except for the short-term borrowings of
HK$4,659,000 as at 31 December 2011 (2010:
HK$45,083,000), the Group has no other significant
interest-bearing liabilities.

At the respective balance sheet dates, if interest
rates had been increased/decreased by one
percentage-point and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s net profit would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$7,737,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2011 (2010:
HK$7,121,000). The fluctuation is attributable to
interest income from pledged bank deposits, bank
deposits with initial terms of over three months and
short-term bank deposits, and interest expense on
bank borrowings.
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SO HmRMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for the Company’s
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group was in a net cash
position (total borrowings were less than cash and cash
equivalents).

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as total borrowings divided by total equity.

The gearing ratios at 31 December 2011 and 2010 were

=St-HZEEEELENT : as follows:
—®=—FN —_2-TF
2011 2010
TER TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEHRE (FE18) Total borrowings (Note 18) 4,659 45,083
kB M B AR IR Loan from non-controlling
BRERBNE R shareholder of a subsidiary
(B=E37(d)) (Note 37(d)) 7,500 7,500
12,159 52,583
AL Total equity 2,151,088 2,127,568
BREEELE Gearing ratio 0.6% 2.5%

TR REEERF O T EMRNE
BRTEEHRH -

SE-——FEH
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The decrease in the gearing ratio above resulted
primarily from the repayment of bank borrowings.



& {3t Bt #& 3} R Mt 3= Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 tRAREE @ 3 Financial risk management (Continued)
3.3 AFEMLE 3.3 Fair value estimation
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The method by which the fair values of financial
instruments are established are categorised as follows:

(i) Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities.

(ii) Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (for
example, as prices) or indirectly (for example,
derived from prices).

(iii) Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data.

Level 3
HK$'000
R-Z——F+=-H=+—H As at 31 December 2011
BAFER AR EE Financial assets at fair value
ZEMEE through profit or loss 31,790
R-Z-ZF+-H=1+—H As at 31 December 2010
AtHESHERE Available-for-sale financial assets 500

AEEREEBEMALNELD
ARABRTHNTRRESZNREDE
REATFEFAGHNIBEE 2SR
EE (ME11a) - TRESRES
REATFEFE - AVEEBRA
BERMETE - ZFHERITTR
ERAUBEETSBE (FIHER)
REBNARMGS -

AEBREXFBERE ([XE])
HMARLEE LT R T Z10%E 5
THEATMHEESREE (&
11(b)) * DREDBE=ZRIEDF
B2 R-ZE——F+-HA=+
—H B ELREELATER
BEREANTAZALEZY B M
woUNEREEEFEIEEE I
RERMSEAGFERERIER
NEBEREEEFEE - o

The Group’s investment in convertible bonds issued by
an unlisted company incorporated in Hong Kong, which
was classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Note 11(a)), was measured at fair value
according to Level 3 under the hierarchy. The fair value is
determined by using valuation techniques. These
valuation techniques involve the use of observable
market data where it is available and entity specific
estimates.

The Group’s 10% equity interest in an unlisted company
incorporated in the United States of America (“USA”),
which was classified as available-for-sale financial assets
(Note 11(b)), was measured at fair value according to
Level 3 under the hierarchy. The fair value of the
available-for-sale financial assets was determined by
using ‘share of net asset’ approach which was based on
the unaudited financial position of the investee company
as at 31 December 2011 with a discount for non-
controlling interests according to the market practice.
This valuation technique is consistent with the previous
year.
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The following table presents the changes in the carrying
amounts of Level 3 instruments for the year ended 31
December 2011:

BRAYE

5T AR R

REEZ

TREE

A E Financial

EMEE assets

Available- at fair value

for-sale through

financial assets profit or loss

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$’000

F4) Beginning of the year 500 —

RBETERES Subscription of convertible bonds — 31,200
ARRES R Interest income accrued from

Z A B A convertible bonds — 590

BERE Provision for impairment (500) —

FHR End of the year — 31,790

REEREREZRARENES
RABERBERAREQAFEZEEN
B mRBERRE  UREAE
EREEERIATEDSA XN
RAERRGNREREMMAETE
BMEENATE-
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The carrying value less impairment provision of trade
receivables and payables are a reasonable
approximation of their fair values. The fair value of
financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
current market interest rate that is available to the Group
for similar financial instruments.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a) Impairment of property, plant and equipment,
leasehold land and land use rights

Property, plant and equipment, leasehold land and land
use rights are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. The recoverable
amounts are determined based on value-in-use
calculations or market valuations. These calculations
require the use of judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event
has occurred that may indicate that the related asset
value may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, being the higher of fair value less costs to sell or
net present value of future cash flows which are
estimated based upon the continued use of the asset in
the business; and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions to
be applied in preparing cash flow projections including
whether these cash flow projections are discounted using
an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management in assessing impairment, including the
discount rates, could materially affect the net present
value used in the impairment test and as a result affect
the Group’s financial position and results of operations. If
there is a significant adverse change in the projected
performance and resulting future cash flow projections, it
may be necessary to take an impairment charge to the
income statement.
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4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)
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equipment and intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and residual values (if applicable) and
consequently related depreciation/amortisation charges
for its property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets. These estimates are based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets of similar nature
and functions, or based on value-in-use calculations or
market valuations according to the estimated periods that
the Group intends to derive future economic benefits from
the use of intangible assets. Management will increase
the depreciation/amortisation charge where useful lives
are less than previously estimated lives, and it will write-
off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful
lives; and actual residual values may differ from
estimated residual values. Periodic review could result in
a change in depreciable lives and residual values and
therefore depreciation/amortisation expense in future
periods.
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4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(c) Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.8. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates (Note 8).

(i) Golf and high-end fashion apparel manufacturing
business

The goodwill being allocated to the golf and high-end
fashion apparel manufacturing business resulted
from the acquisition of Charmtech Group (Note 36),
which is included in the manufacturing segment. No
impairment was recognised against this goodwill
during the year ended 31 December 2011.

If the budgeted gross margin used in the value-in-use
calculation for this CGU had been one percentage-
point lower than management's estimates at 31
December 2011 (that is, 25% instead of 26%), and
the estimated cost of capital used in determining the
pre-tax discount rate for the CGU had been one
percentage-point higher than management’s
estimates (that is, 12% instead of 11%), still no
impairment against goodwill would be recognised by
the Group.

(ii) Sportswear distribution business in Mainland China

Full impairment of HK$14,851,000 (2010: Nil) was
recognised against the goodwill attributable to the
sportswear distribution business in Mainland China
(included in the discontinued operations (Note 32(b)))
following the termination of Umbro distribution rights
during the year ended 31 December 2011.
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4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(d) Estimated impairment of trademarks

(e)

The Group tests whether the trademarks have suffered
any impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.8. The recoverable amount of the
trademarks has been determined based on relief from
royalty valuation. These calculations require the use of
estimates.

Impairment of HK$112,000,000 (2010: HK$54,000,000)
was charged against the trademarks during the year
ended 31 December 2011.

If the royalty rate used in the relief from royalty valuation
for the trademarks had been 0.4 percentage-point lower
than management’s estimates at 31 December 2011 (that
is, 2.5% instead of 2.9%), additional impairment against
the trademarks of HK$3,900,000 would be recognised by
the Group. In addition, if the estimated cost of capital
used in determining the pre-tax discount rate for the
trademarks had been one percentage-point higher than
management’s estimates (that is, 17.2% instead of
16.2%), the Group would have recognised a further
impairment of trademarks of HK$1,600,000.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses. These
estimates are based on current market conditions and the
historical experience of manufacturing and selling
products of similar nature. It could change significantly as
a result of changes in customer taste and competitor
actions in response to changes in market conditions.
Management reassesses these estimates at the end of
each reporting period.
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4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Trade, bills and other receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment of trade, bills and other receivables based on
an assessment of the recoverability of the receivables.
This assessment is based on the credit history of
customers and other debtors and current market
conditions, and requires the use of judgements and
estimates. Management reassesses the provision at the
end of each reporting period.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current income tax and deferred income tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is

made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management expects it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available to utilise the temporary
differences or tax losses. Management reassesses its

expectation at the end of each reporting period.

Fair value of convertible bonds

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. The Group uses its judgement to select a
variety of methods and make assumptions that are mainly
based on market condition existing at the end of each
reporting period. The Group has used discounted cash
flow analysis for financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss that are not traded in active markets.

e i
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SO HmRMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Segment information

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
Executive Committee comprising the executive directors of
the Company’s Board of Directors. The Executive Committee
reviews the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess
performance and allocate resources. Management has
determined the operating segments based on these reports.

The Executive Committee reviews the performance of the
Group mainly from a business operation perspective. The
Group is organised into two main business segments, namely
(i) Manufacturing, and (ii) Distribution and Retail. The
Manufacturing segment represents manufacturing of
sportswear, golf and high-end fashion apparel, and active and
outer wear, primarily under OEM arrangements to customers
mainly in Europe, North America and Mainland China. The
Distribution and Retail segment represents the distribution
and retail of ‘Umbro’ and ‘Diadora’ branded sportswear,
footwear, accessories and sports equipment in Mainland
China and Hong Kong. The discontinued operations
represent the Umbro distribution business which will be
terminated on 30 June 2012 (Note 32(b)).

The Executive Committee assesses the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of operating results
of each segment, which excludes the effects of non-recurring
earnings and expenditures and finance income and finance
costs in the result for each operating segment. Other
information provided to the Executive Committee is measured
in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated financial
statements.
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Segment information (Continued)

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2011

FgUlS are as follows:
BRIEEE
$ha8
(Umbro
ARER)
Total
BEEE  discontinued
EHBE  operations
AEREE Total (Umbro
£E  Distribution  continuing distribution @i
Manufacturing and retail  operations business) Total
TEn TEn TR TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
PHARE Total segment revenue 2,087,735 263595 3,201,330 113,099 3,314,429
AHEKE Inter-segment revenue (1,396) - (1,396) - (1,396)
& Revenue 2,936,339 263,595 3,199,934 113,099 3,313,033
EERA (58) /DHEE  Operating profit (oss)/segment results 165,122 (168,074) (2,952) 161,654 158,702
BEWA Finance income 13,660
HERE Finance costs (2411)
ElEBEATER Share of losses of associates (349) - (349) - (349)
B R & B R Profit before income tax 169,602
FasiE% Income tax expense (28,919)
EEEdA Profit for the year 140,683
—r-—s#g xxemersR2a N
2011 Annual Report  Win Hanverky Holdings Limited
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5 oHER @) 5 Segment information (Continued)
BE-Z——-F+tZR=+t-HLEE Other segment items included in the consolidated income
SFAGHABERNEMSBEENT ¢ statement for the year ended 31 December 2011 are as

follows:
BRAILEE
£33 L
(Umbro
AHER)
Total

HELE  discontinued
£HAE  operations

PHERZE Total (Umbro
4F  Distribution  continuing distribution @t
Manufacturing and retail operations business) Total

TR TR TR TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

HELHER Amortisation of leasehold land and
TiFERERE land use rights 1,020 - 1,020 - 1,020
N% KERZHENE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 79,526 11,150 90,676 4,353 95,029
BREERS Amortisation of intangble assets - 4,314 4,314 - 4,314
NE KERZEHE Impairment of property, plant and equipment - 2,746 2,746 9,487 12,233
BHEERE Impairment of intangible assets - 112,000 112,000 14,851 126,851
IHEESREERE Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets 500 - 500 - 500
BFERE/(BE)FE  Impairment/(write-back) of inventories, net 8,307 4,475 12,782 (1,086) 11,696
BWIE A EFE Impairment of receivables, net 275 7,362 7,637 13,568 21,205
HENE KRR Loss on disposal of property,
FEEE plant and equipment 29 7 36 79 755
KIEHHBWE (MEE32(b) Gain on termination of distribution
rights (Note 32(b)) - - - (214,500) (214,500)

I k= EBERBERARD —F-——FFH
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited 2077 Annual Report
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Segment information (Continued)

& {3t 51 7 38 % B 5 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2010

DEERNT : are as follows:
BALEE
(Umbro
PHER)
Total
BELE  discontinued
£HBE  operations
PHREE Total (Umbro
4£E  Distribution continuing ~~ distribution &%t
Manufacturing and retail operations business) Total
TEn TEn TERL TERL TEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
P HENE Total segment revenue 2,639,544 234,553 2,874,097 212,481 3,086,578
PHERE Inter-segment revenue (4,815) — (4,815) — (4815)
W Revenue 2,634,729 234,553 2,869,282 212,481 3,081,763
S AR (B8) /HBEE  Operating profit(oss)segment resuls 6060 (103509) 142551 (31565) 110,986
REWA Finance income 7,838
BERA Finance costs (3567)
EiBE A 7R Share of profits of associates 2,036 = 2,036 = 2,036
B AT B B A A Profit before income tax 117,293
FEHEY Income tax expense (44,492)
EERA Profit for the year 72,801
—r——4¢4y5 xxedzraR2a TR
2011 Annual Report -~ Win Hanverky Holdings Limited
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5 2 EE R @)

BHE-Z-ZH5+-A=1T—HLFE
SAGHABRNEMIBEENT ¢

5 Segment information (Continued)

Other segment items included in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2010 are as

follows:
BALEE
$hEE
(Umbro
AHEH)
Total
HEEE  discontinued
£HE%  operations
PHEREE Total (Umbro
EE Distribution continuing distribution @it
Manufacturing and retail operations business) Total
T8 TR TR TER  TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HELHER Amortisation of leasehold land and
TihERERS land use rights 1,001 = 1,001 = 1,001
nE - KRRZENRE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 78,574 7,015 85,589 16,422 102,011
BREEHEH Amortisation of intangible assets - 8,856 8,856 = 8,856
BHEERE Impairment of intangible assets = 54,000 54,000 = 54,000
FERERE-F8 Write-back of impairment of inventories, net (3.211) (591) (3.802) (612) (4414)
BWED (BE) /HESE  (Write-back)impairment of receivables, net (2,651) 9,536 6,885 (3,200) 3,685
HENE KRR (Gain)/loss on disposal of property,
%fE (Wi /B plant and equipment (5,795) 7 (5,788) 2 (5,762

Inter-segment transactions are conducted at terms mutually

PEHERZDEAEEET 2 AR
ERIRRET -

agreed among group companies.

PHMEETEREAE LR LHER
BME - BERRRB BREE R
BENANRE BATVEF SRR
FR-.EREE THHESHEE
FE RBUESRARIEEREMENR
R RERRESEEY  SEARST
FREREHRBEB=ZEANKTHE
R RPEEETERREBFELEEAR
WREERRESEEY  TREHERE
EFREHREE -

Segment assets consist primarily of leasehold land and land
use rights, property, plant and equipment, intangible assets,
investments in associates, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, available-for-sale financial assets,
inventories, trade, bills and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, pledged bank deposits and bank deposits with
initial terms of over three months. Unallocated assets mainly
comprise cash and cash equivalents held for corporate uses,
tax recoverables and deferred income tax assets.

106 KEEBERERL2A
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited
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5 2HER @) 5 Segment information (Continued)
ITHEETEAEREERE - X9 EE Segment liabilities comprise mainly operating liabilities.
BEFXrEERECHESHEERDBHME Unallocated liabilities mainly comprise deferred income tax
BasE - liabilities and current income tax liabilities.
EXARAYEREEEL R L hFERE - Capital expenditure comprises additions to leasehold land
¥ BERZEREFEENFE - and land use rights, property, plant and equipment, and
BREEBEBEGHNKREBMRELENAR intangible assets, including additions resulting from
go acquisitions through business combinations.
RZB-—5+ZA=Z+—-H2Z2%E& The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2011 and
ERBERBE-Z——%+t-A=+ capital expenditure for the year then ended are as follows:
—HIEFENERBRINOT :

géLEE
E3 8t
(Umbro
PHER)
Total

HEQE discontinued

£HB%E  operations

PHEREE Total (Umbro
4% Distribution  continuing distribution A0E @it
Manufacturing  and retail  operations  business) Unallocated Total
TERL TERL TER TERL TER TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BE Assets 2311186 367,133 2,698,319 53,260 102,837 2,854,416
BENT Associates 33,010 - 33,010 - - 33,010
BEE Total assets 234419 387,133 2,731,329 53260 102,837 2,887,426
BaE Total liabilities 574,007 54112 628,209 25,222 82907 736,338
BRAx Capital expenditure 66,364 11,100 71,464 960 - 78,424

SFE-—FFH ABEERBARALA
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Segment information (Continued)

ABEBI TSR F ST Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2010 and

capital expenditure for the year then ended are as follows:

—BLEENERBAINT :
THREE
£E  Distribution an A8 @z
Manufacturing and retail Total  Unallocated Total
TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets 2,249,396 528,595 2,777,991 9,565 2,787,556
AN Associates 32107 — 32,107 = 32,107
BgE Total assets 2,281,503 528,595 2,810,098 9,565 2,819,663
BeER Total liabilities 508,440 116,491 624,931 67,164 692,095
EXBX Capital expenditure 86,995 12,856 99,851 = 99,851
ZiEE D NEBRENREE 2K The Group’s revenue from external customers by
mAE geographical location is as follows:
—2-—-& -z-%f%
2011 2010
THERT FTET
HK$’°000 HK$’000
Iy &= Revenue
58 Hong Kong 210,095 142,776
H B K BE Mainland China 635,992 524,336
H it 55 M Bl =X Other Asian countries 578,078 441,291
&M Europe 1,213,188 1,250,165
= United States of America 236,235 215,852
mEX Canada 57,441 67,525
HAth Others 268,905 227,337
3,199,934 2,869,282
KEEBRABEBRERL2A T —FFHK

Win Hanverky Holdings Limited
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PHBER @

AEEZBEEINUEIREERR
RNEENHETE -

Segment information (Continued)

The Group’s revenue by geographical location is determined
by the final destination of delivery of the products.

—F-——% =ZT-%F
2011 2010
TERT TET
HK$’000 HK$’000

BRI N Analysis of revenue by category
HEER Sales of goods 3,189,850 2,861,660
RIEDERS Provision of subcontracting services 7,714 7,622
RMSHFERBEERBEWA  Provision of concessionaire sales service income 2,370 —
3,199,934 2,869,282

BHWEAD < RBEE (ERIARE
EFRBHERERN) BEMNT :

The total of non-current assets other than financial
instruments and deferred income tax assets by geographical
location is as follows:

—E-—F C—IZ-ZF

2011 2010

FTERT FTERT

HK$’000 HK$’000

&8 Hong Kong 36,336 39,276
Hh Bl K BE Mainland China 612,845 778,981
H xR Other countries 45,845 40,827
695,026 859,084

BE-_Z——F+t-A=+t—-HL#F
E » W3 #2,536,955,000%8 7T (=& —
F 4 2,260,468,00058 T) IR EHE—
HRNREE - ZEWBEDRELEEE
j‘g o

For the year ended 31 December 2011, revenues of
approximately HK$2,536,955,000 (2010: HK$2,260,468,000)
were derived from a single group of external customers.
These revenues are attributable to the manufacturing
business.

SFE-—FFH ABEERBARALA
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6 HEITHRLHERE- 56 6 Leasehold land and land use rights -
Consolidated

AEEMEAENEEL R T FERE The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use rights
EalEMCEHENEREREFE represent prepaid operating lease payments and their net
DMMT : book amounts are analysed as follows:

—®— -5 -—ET-TF
2011 2010
T Tt

HK$’000 HK$’000

EREARERE In Mainland China held on:

T ERAEN F10E505 Land use rights of between 10 and 50 years 19,733 40,066

—E——F —EZ-ZF
2011 2010
FER FB T
HK$’000 HK$’000

=230 Beginning of the year 40,066 39,938
BN EH Exchange differences 1,150 1,129
1 85 Amortisation (1,020) (1,001)
WABELEFRRBEE Land use rights classified as non-current

iy L i 5 A (M EE32(a)) assets held for sale (Note 32(a)) (20,463) —
F K End of the year 19,733 40,066
BRKEHENENRECTH A —RR Amortisation of prepaid operating lease payments has been
THHAX - included in general and administrative expenses.

O kK EEEEBRERRAA — - —FFH
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited 2071 Annual Report
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7 MR HBERRE-GH

7 Property, plant and equipment - Consolidated

KAER HENE BRRRE SERKE
1 1HEEF £6 BEREE  Furniture Motor ~ KEIE
Freehold Landand  Leasehold  Plantand and vehicles Construction @
land buildings improvements  machinery  equipment  andyacht in progress Total
TEn TER TiEn TER TiEn TER TiEn T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-2-%%-5-H At1 January 2010
A Cost 2,700 124,495 240,219 393,272 164,191 33,642 34,489 993,008
ZHERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment — (1883)  (88454)  (158222)  (102734)  (12,352) —  (3785%)
REFE Net book amount 2,700 105,661 153,765 235,050 61,457 21,290 34,489 614,412
HE-E-2F% Year ended 31 December 2010
T-A=T-RALEE
ENRERE Opening net book amount 2,700 105,661 153,765 235,050 61,457 21,290 34,489 614,412
EXZR Exchange differences — 1,288 5,749 5,852 1,645 194 1,658 16,386
WERRI B 22 &) (K3 36) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 36) - - 384 4,698 368 189 - 5639
B Additions - 5,254 9,094 21,439 15,160 1,431 1,723 66,101
g5 Transfers B XAl 6,269 572 83 - (3641) -
e Disposals - (5,975) - (213) (341) - - (6,529)
i Depreciation - (352)  (4988)  (387%)  (30960)  (3805) —(0201)
EREETE Closing net book amount 2,100 131,423 150,273 234,662 47412 19,299 8,229 593,998
RZE-ZE+-A=+-RA  At31 December 2010
A Cost 2,100 152,162 262,510 436,965 184,365 35,213 8,229 1,082,204
ZHAERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impaiment —@O7)  (112297)  (02303)  (196953)  (15914) —  (488206)
FEFE Net book amount 2,700 131,423 150,273 234,662 47412 19,299 8,229 593,998
B2-%--% Year ended 31 December 2011
T-A=t-BLEE
EOREFE Opening net book amount 2,700 131,423 150,273 234,662 47412 19,299 8,229 593,998
ERZEH Exchange differences = 2,494 5,787 6,400 1,218 207 457 16,563
B Additions - 2,300 14,923 34,264 17,380 4,466 5,091 78,424
g5 Transfers - - 1,256 = - — (1,256) —
e Disposals - - - - (790) (255) - (1,045)
B Impairment - - (105) - (1) (229) - (1223)
il Depreciation - (@557)  (T014)  (39542)  (0047)  (3.869) )
BRAOAMEELER Transferred to discontinued
(HizE32(b)) operations (Note 32(b)) - - - - (3#1) = = (341)
FAREFE Closing net book amount 2,700 131,660 144,520 235,784 33,533 19,619 12,521 580,337
R=F--5+-B=+-H  At31 December 2011
A Cost 2,100 157,257 287,317 480,022 115,063 38,008 12,521 1,092,888
ZHNERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impaiment —(BET)  (M2797)  (44238)  (81530)  (18389) — (1251
FEFE Net book amount 2,700 131,660 144,520 235,784 33,533 19,619 12,521 580,337
—rz——#%#% insmzrared KETINGE
2011 Annual Report  Win Hanverky Holdings Limited
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7 Property, plant and equipment - Consolidated
(Continued)

Freehold land is located in the Hashemite Kingdom of
Jordan.

Depreciation expense recognised in the consolidated income
statement is analysed as follows:

=F-——-F =F-%%

2011 2010

TER FTHET

HK$°000 HK$’000

SHER A Cost of sales 54,879 53,468
— MR AT X General and administrative expenses 40,150 48,543
95,029 102,011

BEE1812,233,0008 T (ZE—FF :
B)ESA—METHEZA -

KEEBERARAA —FT-—FFHK
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited 2071 Annual Report

Impairment loss included in general and administrative
expenses amounted to HK$12,233,000 (2010: Nil).
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8 BEEE-&4 8 Intangible assets - Consolidated
EFHfF
[ (RS Customer Bt
Trademarks Goodwill  relationships Total
THERT THERT TER TERT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000

R-ZE-F5—HF—H  At1January 2010

B AR Cost 221,387 53,117 2,219 276,723
ZEtEBERBE Accumulated amortisation
and impairment (14,021) (39,058) (2,219) (55,298)
i [ F & Net book amount 207,366 14,059 = 221,425
BZ-_Z-ZF Year ended 31 December 2010
+t-HA=+-BLEE
FAREFE Opening net book amount 207,366 14,059 — 221,425
EHER Exchange differences — 594 — 594
WEEK B A R (FiizE36)  Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 36) — 33,750 — 33,750
e Amortisation (8,856) — — (8,856)
B Impairment (54,000) = = (54,000)
FAREFE Closing net book amount 144,510 48,403 = 192,913
R-ZE-Z& At 31 December 2010
+ZA=+-H
B AR Cost 221,387 87,461 2,219 311,067
2 BEKAE Accumulated amortisation
and impairment (76,877) (39,058) (2,219) (118,154)
iR B Net book amount 144,510 48,403 — 192,913
Bz_Z2—-F Year ended 31 December 2011
+tZA=+-RHILEE
FMREFE Opening net book amount 144,510 48,403 = 192,913
EiE Exchange differences — 198 — 198
B Amortisation (4,314) — — (4,314)
A E Impairment (112,000) (14,851) — (126,851)
FRIREFE Closing net book amount 28,196 33,750 — 61,946
R-ZE——-F At 31 December 2011
+=HA=+-H
B AR Cost 221,387 72,808 2,219 296,414
2t EBERBE Accumulated amortisation
and impairment (193,191) (39,058) (2,219) (234,468)
i [ & Net book amount 28,196 33,750 = 61,946

—T-—FFH kEEEBRARLA
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8 BREE-&#tw

R REEE 131,165,000 T (=&
—ZF : 62,856,000/ 7T) Bt A —R K
THRAXA -

[SEEV-AER

#1215 & A [ Diadora | B 12 12 R EI A B
BB ORI £ E RHEM T [Diadora B
BRNEmNERN BENTERESED
SREFTRAFHARAENSHEE
ETHEEET - REZD L BEN
BEARBBAEABENREENE
KWARBIE

BE-_ZE——F+-A=+—-HLF
B RIEFTET O EFERRREE
& 112,000,0008 T (= & — & F
54,000,000 ) °

BEGEFEANEIERRNOT :

8

Intangible assets — Consolidated (Continued)

Amortisation and impairment loss of HK$131,165,000 (2010:
HK$62,856,000) was included in general and administrative
expenses.

Impairment test for trademarks:

Trademarks represent the rights to use the ‘Diadora’
trademarks for the manufacture and sale of products bearing
the ‘Diadora’ trademarks in Mainland China, Hong Kong and
Macau. The recoverable amount of the trademarks is
determined by reference to a valuation performed using the
relief from royalty valuation method over their estimated
useful lives. Under this method, the value of the trademarks
represents the present value of the hypothetical royalty
income from licensing out the trademarks.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, an impairment
loss of HK$112,000,000 (2010: HK$54,000,000) was
recognised based on the impairment assessment performed.

Key assumptions used in the valuation of trademarks are as

follows:
—E-—-F CZE2-Zf%
2011 2010
EERE Royalty rate 2.9% 6.0%
REERZ (M) Long-term growth rate (Note) 2.5% 5.0%
Bi Al AL IR = Pre-tax discount rate 16.2% 13.8%
Mz : FERANROAERZTEBELEHE Note: The long-term growth rate used does not exceed the long-

BHRABRE - WBERZALUES
BEHUINRERE -

SE-——FEH
2011 Annual Report

kEREBEERARAA
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

term growth rate for the business in which it operates and is
used to extrapolate cash flow beyond the budget period.
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8 EFEE-&6t@ 8 Intangible assets - Consolidated (Continued)
BERERNR Impairment tests for goodwill:
HAEIRERBEXEE»BRIBENEE Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s CGUs identified
PRAEEREEEENNT according to business segment and geographical location

and is as follows:

BRXEK
EFk EFk =R
DEHEK 2ER PR 8 £ &
(Kt &£ (a) DEEL Golf and
Sportswear  Sportswear high-end
distribution retail and fashion
business  distribution apparel 5t
(Note (a)) business manufacturing Total
TER TER TER TER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
I E Geographical location HE Kk &ERPEAE
Mainland Hong Kong
China and Mainland
China
REFE Net book amount
R-Z—ZF£—H—H Asat1January 2010 14,059 — — 14,059
s B Bt 1B 8 ) Acquisition of subsidiary
(Pt E36) (Note 36) — — 33,750 33,750
BN E5 Exchange difference 594 — — 594
R-Z-25% As at 31 December 2010
+=ZB=+—-H 14,653 — 33,750 48,403
R=Z2——%—-—H—-H Asat1January 2011 14,653 - 33,750 48,403
R Exchange difference 198 - — 198
A (M EE32(b)) Impairment (Note 32(b)) (14,851) - - (14,851)
R=ZB——% As at 31 December 2011
+=HA=t+—-8 — - 33,750 33,750
Mt (a) Note (a):
ZHEELBNCHARZE——F+ZA= Such CGU was included in discontinued operations as at 31
T - HEBRILEEEKR - December 2011.

ST fFH AkEREEBRRARLA
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SO HmRMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Intangible assets — Consolidated (Continued)

The recoverable amounts of the CGUS are determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period for the golf and
high-end fashion apparel manufacturing business and one-
year for the sportswear distribution business. Cash flows
beyond the period covered in approved budgets are
extrapolated using the key assumptions stated below. The
growth rates do not exceed the long-term average growth
rates for the businesses in which the cash-generating units
operate.

—E2——fF —E-2F
2011 2010

BEARR EIRIE SEAER EBRIH

= 4% B 14 ES = A B 18 EY A

PR &5 4 2 B K pE PR &0 & = B K B

Golf and Sportswear Golf and Sportswear

high-end distribution high-end distribution

fashion business - fashion business —

apparel Mainland apparel Mainland

manufacturing China manufacturing China

BEERE Budgeted gross margin 26% 11% 34% 29%
FAEHEEBETEEE  Growth rate used to

BeREZHERER extrapolate cashflows
beyond the budget period 2% 0% 0%
Bi A0 AL IR = Pre-tax discount rate 1% AER 11% 11%

undiscounted

EEEREBAEEERENT SRR
EHETEEENE

E-——f+-HA=+—-HL#F
lEUmbroZ $5 8 (Fff &£ 32(b)) KA
%%ﬁﬁﬂﬁmgﬁmsmow
—ZF ECEIREPE
JUm bro"f‘ﬁ'%ﬁ%  WEFTAB K
EEBNEENR

z=
==

7

7

’
I

)

B > o R K B
Sﬁﬁi

H‘ﬁﬁ_ﬂﬁl

BE-2-——-5+-A=1+-RL#HF
B UERSEARKSREEREGE
EXBREELENBRIME -

SE-——FEH
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Management determined budgeted gross margin based on
past performance and its expectations of market

development.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, an impairment
loss of HK$14,851,000 (2010: Nil) was recognised on the
goodwill allocated to the Umbro distribution business in
Mainland China following the termination of the Umbro
distribution rights (Note 32(b)), which was included in the
results of discontinued operations.

No impairment was recognised in respect of the golf and
high-end fashion apparel manufacturing business CGU
during the year ended 31 December 2011.



& {3t Bt #& 3} R Mt 3= Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-ZT—TH5+-A=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 De

RMBARZRE-AAT 9 Investments in subsidiaries - Company

cember 2010

—g—-% =-3-%%

2011 2010
THERT THET
HK$’000 HK$'000
REF EHRMH > BERAAMR Investment in unlisted shares, at cost 538,341 538,341
WK EAREEE — F5E Amounts due from subsidiaries, net
(B = (a)) (Note (a)) 967,016 866,201
1,505,357 1,404,542
THAR=ZZ——F5+=ZA=+—HH The following are details of principal subsidiaries, all of which
TEMBAR (R LH)FHE are unlisted, as at 31 December 2011:
HERAELEER ke
EEERER BRTRBERAFE Interest held TEERREELY
A% Place of incorporation and  Particulars of Z%--F  ZZ-ZE Principal activities and
Name type of legal entity issued paid up capital 2011 2010 place of operation
EETHERAA ZERZEE ((RLEE) . 100%7 100% 100% EERXER/FE
Bowker Asia Limited BERERAT US$100 Trading of garment products/
British Virgin Islands (BVI"), Hong Kong
limited liability company
BRAKEN (TR ARAR HhEAK HEBELE 4,200,000% 70 100% 100% £ERKER/TEKE
Bowker Garment Accessories  Mainland China, wholly foreign  US$4,200,000 Manufacturing of garment
(Heyuan) Company Limited owned enterprise products/Mainland China
EERREMERAR £# BREALR 10,000 1t 100% 100% REERREE
Bowker Garment Accessories  Hong Kong, HK$10,000 ARER/ER
Company Limited limited liability company Investment holding and
trading of garment
products/Hong Kong
EERXE(ER)ERAA  hEAK . NBRELE 22,000,000 7t 85% 85% AERKER/TEAKE
Bowker Garment Factory Mainland China, wholly foreign HK$22,000,000 Manufacturing of garment
(Yunfu) Company Limited owned enterprise products/Mainland China
BEEXBERAA BB HREELA 100008 E B R 100% 100% BEHXER/EH
Bowker Garment Factory Hong Kong, 200,000 THRF Trading of garment products/
Company Limited limited liability company BERH (Hr5 (b)) Hong Kong
HK$10,000 ordinary
HK$200,000 non-voting
deferred (Note (b))

ST fFH AkEREEBRRARLA
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HE-Z—ZTHF+-_A=F+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

9 RMEBAGIZKRE-AAT @ 9 Investments in subsidiaries - Company (Continued)

AMRIHER i RE
EEERER BRTRBERAFE Interest held TEERREELY
% Place of incorporation and  Particulars of —E--k ZZ-ZE  Principal activities and
Name type of legal entity issued paid up capital 2011 2010  place of operation
EEDEM (TR ERLT  HEAE NEBELR 55,508,460% T 100% 100% 4EDRRNEER/
Bowker Printing Factory Mainland China, wholly foreign HK$55,508,460 KR
(Heyuan) Company Limited owned enterprise Manufacturing of printing and
embroidery products/
Mainland China
EREDRE (TR ERAR HhEAK NERELE 15,400,000% 7t 100% 100% %ERKER/PEAKE
Bowker Sportswear (Heyuan) ~ Mainland China, wholly foreign ~ US$15,400,000 Manufacturing of garment
Company Limited owned enterprise products/Mainland China
BRAEAKM (TR ARAA PEAAKE HNEBELE 80,000,000% 7 100% 100% 4£EHRKER/TEAE
Bowker Venture Garment (Yunfu) Mainland China, wholly foreign  HK$80,000,000 Manufacturing of garment
Company Limited owned enterprise products/Mainland China
Bowker (Vietnam) Garment HE - ARERAR 15,600,000 7o 100% 100% 4£ERKER/HE
Factory Company Limited Vietnam, HK$15,600,000 Manufacturing of garment
limited liability company products/Vietnam
BE8m 2R ERAT % BRERLA 1,000,000% 100% 100% REEZRRIEAK
Bowker Vietnam Hong Kong, HK$1,000,000 ER/BH
Holding Limited limited liability company Investment holding and
trading of garment
products/Hong Kong
BERE (BMEXRERRT HEAE NEBELR 16,000,000% 7 100% 100% %ERKER/PEAKE
Bowker Yao Wao (Huizhou) Mainland China, wholly foreign HK$16,000,000 Manufacturing of garment
Garment Company Limited owned enterprise products/Mainland China
EEREHREOTR) BRAR REAK HERELE 120,000,000% 7t 1% % AERKER/TEAE
Bowker Yee Sing Garment Mainland China, wholly foreign HK$120,000,000 Manufacturing of garment
Factory (Heyuan) owned enterprise products/Mainland China

Company Limited

e k= &EEERERARD —F-—FFH
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited 2077 Annual Report
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HE_ZT-—ZF+-A=1+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

9 RHMBLARAZRE-AAT@ 9

&R

Name

EBEXERLA

Charmtech Industrial Limited

B8 (BB) BKERAT

Charmtech (Qing Yuan)
Garment Manufacturing
Limited

Corus Investments Limited

BESRRERR (R
ERLH

Diadora Sportswear (Shenzhen)
Limited

BENEERARRERAR
Guangzhou Win Sports Limited

EATHREZKERAR
Guangzhou Yuming Garment
Limited

AYXEGHERLT

Kaiping Win Hanverky Textile
Company Limited

FEEEHRARAT
Qing Yuan BowCharm Garment
Manufacturing Limited

ERR IR
EEREER

Place of incorporation and
type of legal entity

&% EREMLT
Hong Kong,
limited liability company

MEAKE AERELE
Mainland China, wholly foreign
owned enterprise

&% BRERLA
Hong Kong,
limited liability company

hEAKE AERELE
Mainland China, wholly foreign
owned enterprise

HEAE  MERELE
Mainland China, wholly foreign
owned enterprise

HEAKE AERELE
Mainland China, wholly foreign
owned enterprise

HEAE  MEEELE
Mainland China, wholly foreign
owned enterprise

hHEAE  AEBELE
Mainland China, wholly foreign
owned enterprise

Investments in subsidiaries - Company (Continued)

BRIRARRAFSE
Particulars of

issued paid up capital

50,000/ 1t
HK$50,000

12,112,202 1t
HK$12,112,242

10,000% ¢
HK$10,000

A %100,000,0007
RMB100,000,000

20,000,000 7t
HK$20,000,000

2,600,000 7t
HK$2,600,000

5,522,813% Tt
US$5,522,813

17,500,000 70
HK$17,500,000

s iE
Interest held TEERREENY
—E--F ZE-Z5  Principal activities and
2011 2010  place of operation

75% 5% REBRREEMX
ER/ER
Investment holding and
trading of garment
products/Hong Kong

75% 5% AERKER/TEAE
Manufacturing of garment
products/Mainland China

#100% 100% MERE/ER
Property holding/Hong Kong

60% 60% EEAKER/TEAKE
Trading of garment products/
Mainland China

75% 5% EERTEAKER/
PEARE
Trading and retailing of
garment products/
Mainland China

70% 0% XERKER/TEAE
Manufacturing of garment
products/Mainland China

100% 100% 4EREEHER/ PEAKE
Manufacturing and trading of
fabrics/Mainland China

75% — HEARER/TEAK
Manufacturing of garment
products/Mainland China

SFE-—FFH ABEERBARALA
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SO HmRMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REBRARIZRE-ADT@ 9

iR

Name

Portico Il Limited

#5 (R ERAR
Rich Form (HK) Limited

EFTERNAKEARAR
Sport City Garment Factory
Company Limited

EYUARLT

Sports Corner Limited

Team & Sports (BVI) Limited

REREAR (R ERAR
Team & Sports
(Shenzhen) Limited

REFTARDR (R (35(a)

Team & Sports Limited
(Note 35(a))

XHERAA
Win Form Apparel Limited

XE(HE) ERAR
Win Hanverky (China)
Company Limited

XESE(FB)ERAR
Win Hanverky Limited

kEREBEERARAA
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

AMRIHER
EEREEY

Place of incorporation and
type of legal entity

&K BREAR
Canada,
limited liability company

% EREMRD
Hong Kong,
limited liability company

MEAKE NERELE
Mainland China, foreign
equity joint venture

g4 BEREMRL
Hong Kong,
limited liability company

RS AREALF

BVI, limited liability company

MEKKE MEEELE
Mainland China, wholly foreign
owned enterprise

& ERERD
Hong Kong,
limited liability company

% EREMRLT
Hong Kong,
limited liability company

& BRERD
Hong Kong,
limited liability company

g% BREMLT
Hong Kong,
limited liability company

—E——FEH

2011 Annual Report

(2T —TFF+-_A=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

Investments in subsidiaries - Company (Continued)

s E
BREARAZRAFE Interest held
Particulars of —E--% “E-2E
issued paid up capital 2011 2010
100/ 70 100% 100%
CA$100
10,0003 7t 70% 70%
HK$10,000
550,000% 72.7% 72.7%
US$550,000
500,000% 7t 75% 75%
HK$500,000
10,000% 1t 100% 100%
US$10,000
AR %5,000,0007T 100% 60%
RMB5,000,000
900,000% 7t 100% 60%
HK$900,000
10,000% 7t 100% 100%
HK$10,000
10,0007 7t 100% 100%
HK$10,000
10,000 T & B R 100% 100%

1,000,008 T# R F
BERH (B3 (b))
HK$10,000 ordinary
HK$1,000,000 non-voting
deferred (Note (b))

TERBREELE
Principal activities and
place of operation

RERERE,/ MEX
Provision of agency service/
Canada

BERKER/ER
Trading of garment products/
Hong Kong

LEARER/PEAKE
Manufacturing of garment
products/Mainland China

SEERRER/BR
Retailing of garment
products/Hong Kong

REER/ BB
Investment holding/
Hong Kong

BERKER/TEKE
Trading of garment products/
Mainland China

BEARER/BR
Trading of garment products/
Hong Kong

BEAKER/BR
Trading of garment products/
Hong Kong

BERKER/ER
Trading of garment products/
Hong Kong

BERKER/BR
Trading of garment products/
Hong Kong
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HE_ZT-—ZF+-A=1+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

9 RMEBLARIZRE-AAT @ 9

Investments in subsidiaries — Company (Continued)

HRRIHER fri g
EEERER BRTRBERAFE Interest held TEERREELY
1 Place of incorporationand  Particulars of “B--% ZE-ZF  Principal activities and
Name type of legal entity issued paid up capital 2011 2010  place of operation
XEGHEERAT B AREALA 2,000,000% 7 100% 100% 4EREEHES/
Win Hanverky Textile Limited ~ Hong Kong, HK$2,000,000 BRRPEAE
limited liability company Manufacturing and trading of
fabrics/Hong Kong and
Mainland China
EEREARES (L8) hEKE MEBELE 5,000,000 T 75% 5% EERBEAKER/
BRAF Mainland China, wholly foreign  HK$5,000,000 e KR
Win Sports Trading owned enterprise Trading and retailing of
(Shanghai) garment products/
Company Limited Mainland China
XEBRARAA BB AREALT 260,000,003 7t 60% 60% REZR/FE
Winor International Hong Kong, HK$260,000,003 Investment holding/
Company Limited limited liability company Hong Kong
ENTEERKARAR HEAE  MEEELE 86,292,165% T 100% 100% %£ERKER/PEKE
Wuzhou Bowker Garment Mainland China, wholly foreign ~ HK$86,292,165 Manufacturing of garment

Company Limited owned enterprise products/Mainland China

# BLANROEAXTDEERSE  Ht
AEAREEESS -

# The shares of this company are held directly by the Company;
others are held indirectly by the Company.

M5

Notes:

(a) FEUSHIE D RIBZE A AR E O AEE B (a) Amounts due from subsidiaries represent equity funding by the

(c)

DRARENRARE - DEAD ALK
BRARRENEFTHRAE -

ERZREEROUFBAEEME
B oZERODUEREZE  BRIEFEL
B &9 4 Fi#8 1 100,000,000,00058 7T * &
AlEEESKRE  MAKRFEEBEATM
HEBRISE AB2IK100,000,000,000
BT BAREREREERDNDIR

REEZE-Z——H5+-A=t—-HILHF
EEMERE - MEQXSLEEME BT
BREER(ZE-2F 1 &) -

ETHEBLAIAREBEXR LM
AASBEEEERBEBENTNERE
NEEHRL °

(b)

(c)

Company to the respective subsidiaries and are measured in
accordance with the Company’s accounting policy for
investments in subsidiaries.

The non-voting deferred shares are not owned by the Group.
These shares have no voting rights, are not entitled to dividends
unless the net profit of the relevant company exceeds
HK$100,000,000,000 and are not entitled to any distributions
upon winding up unless a sum of HK$100,000,000,000 has been
distributed by the relevant company to the holders of its ordinary
shares.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any
time during the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: None).

The English names of certain subsidiaries represent the best

effort by the management of the Group to translate their

Chinese names as they do not have official English names.

e i
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SO HmRMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-Z—ZTHF+-_A=F+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

10 Interests in associates — Consolidated

ZE——-F CZEZ-ZF

2011 2010

TET TET

HK$’°000 HK$°000

F1) Beginning of the year 32,107 27,044
EINE R B R Increase in share capital subscribed — 2,388
FERERGREZD Share of reserve movements for the year 1,252 639
FEEWL (BB wF Share of (losses)/profits for the year (349) 2,036
FR End of the year 33,010 32,107

UTARZZE-——5+ZA=+t—-HX
SEBELT (IRLED) WHE

EREEFEES (TR
BRAR

Fu Hsun Bowker Dyeing Factory
(Heyuan) Company Limited

EEREBRAH
Fu Hsun Investment
Company Limited

Fu Jin Bowker Company Limited EZ#E  EREAAT
BVI, limited liability company

AEEREHELRNEE  BFE W&

REZWMT :

gE
&f&E
&

FE (B8R EF

type of legal entity

PEAE  NEBELE
Mainland China, wholly foreign ~ US$7,670,000
owned enterprise

RIHE BREALA
BVI, limited liability company US$7,820,000

ML HR
TERBRER

Place of incorporation and

BRORMERAFE

Particulars of
issued paid up capital

7,670,000% 1t

7,820,000% 7t

2,900,000% 7T
US§2,900,000

BEfsRE
Interest held indirectly
=%--F C%-%%
2011 2010
30% 30%
30% 30%
30% 30%

results of the associates are as follows:

Assets

Liabilities

Revenue

(Losses)/profits for the year

The following are details of the Group’s associates, all of
which are unlisted, as at 31 December 2011:

TEXBREELY
Principal activities and
place of operation

HANRRME/HE AR
Fabrics dyeing and supply/
Mainland China

REERRAHDER
e/ a8

Investment holding and
fabrics dyeing and supply/
Taiwan

RIS/ 48

Sourcing of fabrics/Taiwan

The Group’s shares of the assets, liabilities, revenue and

—®=—FN —_2-TF
2011 2010
TER TER

HK$’000 HK$°000
64,424 48,947

31,010 16,840

133,235 80,520
(349) 2,036

kEREBEERARAA
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

SE-——FEH
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HE_ZT-—ZF+-A=1+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

11 €M IAE-44

11 Financial instruments - Consolidated

RAYE
BN §il
BERZ
EREE THEE
Financial tREE
XK assets Financial
ERIES  at fair value assets
Loans and through available- @5t
“E--5+ZA=1-H 31 December 2011 receivables profit or loss for-sale Total
TET TERT TERT TET
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000
REEAERITHNEE Assets as per balance sheet
ERTHE AR (F14) Loans to an associate (Note 14) 107,245 - - 107,245
RELHESZ Investment in unlisted securities
RE& (W) (Note (a)) - 31,790 - 31,790
EKESRHREE (K13) Trade and bills receivable (Note 13) 436,552 - - 436,552
1B R AR WIE X Deposits and other receivables 39,289 - - 39,289
BEARTER Pledged bank deposits 1,839 - - 1,839
REHRER=MA Bank deposits with initial terms of
ZEAER over three months 10,016 - - 10,016
BEeRBEEEN Cash and cash equivalents 790,975 - - 790,975
REEABRITHNER Liabilities as per balance sheet
EAEZEHREE (HE16) Trade and bills payable (Note 16) (353,232) - - (353,232)
B8 (Mz18) Borrowings (Note 18) (4,659) - - (4,659)
REMBAAFER Loan from a non-controlling shareholder
REME T (Frz37(d) of a subsidiary (Note 37(d)) (7,500) - - (7,500)
—rz-—s#y5 xzxsmzrsr2a EEEEG
2011 Annual Report  Win Hanverky Holdings Limited
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ABEBI TSR F ST Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-Z—ZTHF+-_A=F+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

11 Financial instruments - Consolidated (Continued)

RATE
SRR
BERZ
tREE e
Financial tREE
EHR assets Financial
YIRS at fair value assets
Loans and through available- A5t
“2-ZE+t-H=1-H 31 December 2010 receivables  profit or loss for-sale Total
TER TEL TEL TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REEREBRIITHNEE Assets as per balance sheet
THEESREE Available-for-sale financial asset
(BEE (b)) (Note (b)) — — 500 500
EKESRAREE (H513) Trade and bills receivable (Note 13) 568,660 = = 568,660
e RE M EWIRS Deposits and other receivables 42,424 = = 42,424
BEERARTER Pledged bank deposits 1,184 — — 1,184
FEBRER=@A Bank deposits with initial terms of
ZRTER over three months 18,866 = = 18,866
BERBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 763,974 = = 763,974
REEEBRITNER Liabilities as per balance sheet
EREZRAREE (Hi16) Trade and bills payable (Note 16) (332,658) — — (332,658)
{4 (H3t19) Borrowings (Note 18) (45,083) _ _ (45,083)
REMEDAHFER Loan from a non-controlling shareholder
REMER (HE37(d) of a subsidiary (Note 37(d)) (7,500) — — (7,500)

KEEBERERL2A
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited
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(a) RAVEFARNABEEZE

MEE -G
RIFLTEZZRE

HE_ZT-—ZF+-A=1+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

11 Financial instruments - Consolidated (Continued)

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss -

Consolidated

—®——F _Z-TF
2011 2010
TER FER
HK$’000 HK$’000

Investment in unlisted
securities 31,790 —

F R XN&EHEHShine Gold
Limited ([Shine Gold|) R H E#% %
BAFIGE Bt AEERE
BN & 4 %8 570,000,000 T &Y
Shine GoldAJ# R &% » FRAES
EoMMEBT  c IRARESHER
THHREASESFSRNAES
B UIREFABRZHERA
Shine GoldE % 1T R & K 60% %
70% BFEETHRETE - TRK
BHEAGETRMIBESE -

RZZE——FNA+7B  A&H
B AN € %8 531,200,0008 TH B
RABRES - HER26.7%WEE
R REMERE  AEER
ZERERMAEZEEZE K ¥ Shine Gold
N BEREEREREEEATE
h BMRZE——F+=-A=1+-—
H Shine GoldB X EBHE & A
7 o

R-ZB-——H5+ZA=+—H " ff
BT (REAREYEBEENE Y
EEMT) BT RRESETLFE
e R=ZFB-——F+-A=1-
B BARTRREFOIRDESRER
ENATERSE  ERIBRES
FRRPRITARE HE -

During the year, the Group entered into an agreement
with Shine Gold Limited (“Shine Gold”) and its beneficial
owners, pursuant to which the Group agreed to subscribe
for convertible bonds of Shine Gold in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$70,000,000 which would be
issued in two tranches. The convertible bonds bear
interest from its date of issue at a rate of 5% per annum
on the principal amount, and may be converted in full into
60-70% of the issued share capital of Shine Gold any
time over five years, depending on certain conditions.
The convertible bonds were not traded on an active
market.

On 16 August 2011, the Group acquired the first tranche
of convertible bonds with principal amount of
HK$31,200,000, which represents 26.7% potential voting
rights. Upon the first tranche completion, the Group
nominated representatives on the Board of Directors and
has significant influence on the financial and operating
policy decisions of Shine Gold, and thus is an associate
of the Group at 31 December 2011.

As at 31 December 2011, the convertible bonds were fair
valued by Jones Lang LaSalle, an independent firm of
valuers not connected to the Group. As the carrying
values of the convertible bonds approximate their fair
values as at 31 December 2011, no gain/loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

ST fFH AkEREEBRRARLA

2011 Annual Report -~ Win Hanverky Holdings Limited



SO HmRMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-Z—ZTHF+-_A=F+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

1M E&€MIAE -G8 w 11 Financial instruments - Consolidated (Continued)

(b) THHESHEE - &6

(b) Available-for-sale financial assets - Consolidated

—g-—-% =%-%%

2011 2010

TER FTHET

HK$’°000 HK$’000

n—H—H At 1 January 500 500
YT BB B B 2 B (Ff5E36)  Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 36) — 780
HE Disposal — (780)
B AE Impairment (500) —
R+t=A=+—~H At 31 December — 500

REEEE - FIRENBESREGF
MR LT DB 10%RE © %

The Group has a 10% equity interest in an unlisted
company incorporated in the United States of America,

AARZEEREEZHREREDR
MBstEDHE  ZBREUNERT
B THEAIHEEESREE -
BE-_Z——f5+-A=t—HL
FE EREADRKRBAENR
€ MBEBE_Z——F+=-A=

which is engaged in the design and distribution of active
wear and sportswear in the USA. This investment is
denominated in United States Dollars and is classified as
available-for-sale financial assets. During the year ended
31 December 2011, an impairment loss of HK$500,000
was recognised for the year ended 31 December 2011 as

T —-BILFERRRERES00,000
B WA -RRTBEAX - 8
E_E-EF+-A=1t-HLHE
B WEBRIETMRESSE -

a result of the decrease in future profitability of the
investee company and has been included in general and
administrative expenses. No impairment loss was
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2010.

12 GE-&66 12 Inventories - Consolidated

—®=—FN —_2-TF

2011 2010
FTHER TR

HK$’000 HK$'000

R A1 Raw materials 270,329 211,723
EHm Work in progress 134,418 88,522
SR Finished goods 233,930 209,542

638,677 509,787

FERARK,774,415,0008 T (=ZF — The costs of inventories recognised as expense and included
T £ :1,632,601,0005 T) B A H in cost of sales amounted to approximately
X WEFAHERRK © HK$1,774,415,000 (2010: HK$1,632,601,000).

FERERENE11,696,0008 T (=ZF

—ZF : BOF54,414,0008 ) ' B
FTABERAR o

Provision for impairment of inventories amounting to
approximately HK$11,696,000 (2010: net write-back of
HK$4,414,000) was included in cost of sales.

I k= &EBEERERARD —F-—FFH
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited 2077 Annual Report
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HE_ZT-—ZF+-A=1+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

BERESREIREE -&6 13 Trade and bills receivable - Consolidated

—g—-% =-3-%%

2011 2010
TERT TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE W B Z 1R 5K Trade receivables
-REE=H — from third parties 428,169 576,374
- REBER (HzE37(c) — from related parties (Note 37(c)) 1,705 5,198
e W = 15 Bills receivable 14,495 16,561
444,369 598,133
o ORERE Less: provision for impairment (7,817) (29,473)
436,552 568,660
EWEZERREBERAEEZFEENA The carrying amounts of trade and bills receivable
FEEE - approximate their fair values.
ERESERETERBEERFEEL Majority of trade receivables are with customers having an
BHEF AEBEOHEEFRENEE appropriate credit history. The Group grants its customers
BN FI0ZE90K - KREBWHERR S credit terms ranging from 30 to 90 days. Most of the Group’s
URRAXNEST MENEEFNHEE sales are on open account, while sales made to a small
FRRTEENERAREI T RHERT number of customers are covered by letters of credit issued
HHARIEEE - REZHHFEN by banks or settled by documents against payment issued by
EREZRAREZEZENRRITOT : banks. The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivable

based on invoice date is as follows:

—®——F _Z-TF

2011 2010

TER FTERT

HK$’000 HK$’000

0£30K 0 — 30 days 270,823 247,163
31£60X 31 — 60 days 132,132 206,678
61£90K 61 — 90 days 27,920 105,054
91£120K 91 — 120 days 4,349 7,226
1212180k 121 — 180 days 5,748 3,580
1812 365K 181 — 365 days 2,239 3,100
366K M k£ Over 365 days 1,158 25,332

444,369 598,133

ST fFH AkEREEBRRARLA

2011 Annual Report -~ Win Hanverky Holdings Limited



SO HmRMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-Z—ZTHF+-_A=F+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

13 EWESKRAREE -S4 @ 13 Trade and bills receivable — Consolidated (Continued)

ERESERRBBDLRIOR —RARIME Trade receivables that are less than 90 days past due are
HE R-F——F+-A=+—-H" generally not considered impaired. As at 31 December 2011,
BHBBEOREFRERECERE S trade receivables of HK$4,480,000 (2010: HK$1,570,000)
1R X 5 4,480,000 T (Z T —FF © were more than 90 days past due but considered not to be
1,570,000/ 7t) + S E TR EiE impaired. These relate to a number of customers for whom
RN EFERE ZERREZERX there is no recent history of default. The past due ageing
ME SRR MAOT : analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

—g--& -z-3*F

2011 2010

TER FTHET

HK$’000 HK$’000

91£ 120K 91 — 120 days 1,794 1,009

121£ 180K 121 — 180 days 1,378 425

181£ 365K 181 — 365 days 1,120 136

366K Bl £ Over 365 days 188 —

4,480 1,570

R-ZE-——-F+=ZB=+-H EBHfE As at 31 December 2011, trade receivables of HK$7,817,000

WEREEBE2EWE ZIENA7,817,000 (2010: HK$29,473,000) were impaired and had been fully

B (ZE—Z% 29,473,000 T) ° provided for. These receivables relate to a number of

ZERNIEREE TEF (BEEB R customers, including customers in unexpected difficult

BHzRBERECEF) B - ZZEW economic situations. The past due ageing of these
R BRI T receivables is as follows:

—®=—FN —_2-TF

2011 2010

TER TERT

HK$’000 HK$’000

0£30K 0 — 30 days 367 —
31£60K 31 — 60 days 681 51
61£90K 61 — 90 days 1,285 396
912120k 91 — 120 days 2,909 401
121£ 180K 121 — 180 days 1,288 990
1812 365K 181 — 365 days 323 2,313
366K M k£ Over 365 days 964 25,322
7,817 29,473

I k= EEERBERARD —F-—FFH
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited 2077 Annual Report
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HE_ZT-—ZF+-A=1+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

13ENESRAREE -46 @ 13 Trade and bills receivable - Consolidated (Continued)

ERESZEAREENRERESZSN Movements of provision for impairment of trade and bills
T receivable are as follows:

—E-—F ZEZ-FF

2011 2010
TERT TR
HK$°000 HK$’000
F4 Beginning of the year 29,473 33,063
EHER Exchange differences 1,377 968
WERE (BERE) Provision for/(write-back of)
R impairment, net 19,709 (4,170)
FRMBEIERIEN Receivables written off during
& U IR 3R the year as uncollectible (9,826) (388)
HBEFOARILREER Transferred to discontinued operations (32,916) —
EXR End of the year 7,817 29,473
EREERIERBENERREDRE 5T The creation and release of provision for impaired
A—BETHEX - StABERENE receivables have been included in general and administrative
BB EREINR € s o expenses. Amounts charged to the allowance account are

written off when there is no expectation of recovering
additional cash.

AEBNERESRRREBUTIE The Group’s trade and bills receivable were denominated in
wtE the following currencies:

—®——F _Z-TF

2011 2010

FER FERT

HK$’000 HK$'000

ESy United States Dollars 294,567 447 957
FREARY Chinese Renminbi 136,221 132,866
7B T Hong Kong Dollars 13,231 17,202
Hh Others 350 108

444,369 598,133

RBEAHBEANEERRA LR EKR The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is
RRANAFE REFLBEFEEME the fair value of the receivables mentioned above. The Group
il does not hold any collateral.

ST fFH AkEREEBRRARLA
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HE-Z—ZTHF+-_A=F+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2010

SO HmRMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

14 &  ARFEREMEWIET 14 Deposits, prepayments and other receivables

&t b N
Consolidated Company
“E--% -Z2-2%2f ZB--f —EZ-ZF
2011 2010 2011 2010
TER TER TEx TER
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
B & Current
e KEERRHAMIES Rental, utility and other deposits 22,983 23,114 - —
EEMTMNEMNRE Prepayments for operating expenses 3,407 5,542 201 198
FENENSRE Prepayments for inventories 11,399 10,929 = =
] Uy el 2 (B B Value-added tax recoverable 9,940 6,781 - =
EWEFHNRE Claims receivable from customers 6,590 9,370 — =
f& Bt Tax reserve certificate 22,794 22,794 - —
H fth B I iR TR Other receivables 9,716 9,940 326 -
86,829 88,470 527 198
3 BN 5 Non-current
ERFHZ AT (fsF(a)) Loans to an associate (Note(a)) 107,245 — - —
194,074 88,470 527 198
BE - B RIE R E b FE UOIR 5 (E The carrying amounts of deposits, prepayments and other
BRENAFEEE - RBEARANE receivables approximate their fair values. The maximum
ERBALMBEBENDATLE AEBEL exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of
BREEMERR - the items mentioned above. The Group does not hold any
collateral.
AEEBWEMERIERUATIE®T The Group’s other receivables were denominated in the
8 following currencies:
—B2——F CZE-FF
2011 2010
THER FTHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
E United States Dollars 9,621 17,325
R AR Chinese Renminbi 21,659 19,106
BT Hong Kong Dollars 39,507 33,019
Ht Others 1,236 2,549
72,023 71,999

RN = E£BEERARLIA —F——FFH
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited 2077 Annual Report
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& {3t Bt #& 3} R Mt 3= Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Be - BARIERH b FE R IR R
(&)

MiEE -

(a) ERTHELDFA

R-ZZE——F N A KE&EMBEEHEShine
GoldiT X EXMME > Hlt » AEEM@
Shine Goldiit H— 2 EX@ME - R=F
——%+=ZH=+—H ' [@Shine Gold
#t BB EEE 107,245,0008 T ° B
BEXBTER-—FREER YTREF
8%sT & ©

BEEARTER EEHRE
B=BEAZRTER BAER
ReEEY

14 Deposits, prepayments and other receivables

(Continued)
Note:
(a) Loans to an associate

In September 2011, the Group entered into a loan agreement
with Shine Gold, under which the Group granted a loan facility to
Shine Gold. As at 31 December 2011, total loans made to Shine
Gold amounted to HK$107,245,000. The loans will not be
repayable within one year and carry interest at 8% per annum.

15 Pledged bank deposits/Bank deposits with initial

terms of over three months/Cash and cash
equivalents

& YNNG
Consolidated Company

%--% -T-TF -“%--§F -2-%F

2011 2010 2011 2010

TER TET THERT TR

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000

BERARITER Pledged bank deposits 1,839 1,184 - —
FEHRBB=@AZ Bank deposits with initial terms

BITEX of over three months 10,016 18,866 - =

RORFERS Cash at bank and on hand 24,438 26,831 856 43

RERRTEX Short-term bank deposits 766,537 737,143 87,227 —

790,975 763,974 88,083 43

802,830 784,024 88,083 43

R-ZEB——F+-A=+—-H ' UFH
ARESHENETFERAS1,839,0008 T
(ZE—ZF 1,184,000 © FE N R
T ERBRTRTETESZHERGEN
EHm - R-FE-——F+-A=1+—
B ZEEANNELEEFNEE2.4%
(ZE—ZF  FRE33%) °

RZE——E+-A=+—-H &xEH
FEEHREBB=(A 2RTHERMEF
HENZEAIN%(ZE-—ZE . FR=R
2.3%) c EHRITERMELHERNREY
B1I% (ZE—ZF  FRE1.1%) ° &
HRTERNERHA=BEARIUT -

Bank deposits, which were denominated in Chinese
Renminbi, of HK$1,839,000 at 31 December 2011 (2010:
HK$1,184,000) were placed in a bank as collaterals against
certain trade finance facilities granted by a bank. The
weighted average interest rate on these deposits was 2.4%
per annum at 31 December 2011 (2010: 3.3% per annum).

As at 31 December 2011, the weighted average interest rate of
the Group’s bank deposits with initial terms of over three
months was 3.1% per annum (2010: 2.3% per annum). The
weighted average interest rate of short-term bank deposits
was 1.7% per annum (2010: 1.1% per annum). The short-term
bank deposits have maturities of 3 months or less at inception.

—E-—FFH
2011 Annual Report -~ Win Hanverky Holdings Limited
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15 EEFRTER REHRA 15 Pledged bank deposits/Bank deposits with initial

132

kEEBERBERRQA
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B=@MAZHETER BEK
BeEEY @
EEMRTER  EEHREB=(EA

ZROERARRERREEBYUT
FIEMETE

terms of over three months/Cash and cash
equivalents (Continued)

Pledged bank deposits, bank deposits with initial terms of
over three months and cash and cash equivalents were
denominated in the following currencies:

CRiii b YN

Consolidated Company
—¥-—-F -F-%TF -B--F -T-%%
2011 2010 2011 2010

TER TER TER TER
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

E United States Dollars 460,624 414,655 62,913 —
HEARY Chinese Renminbi 317,008 353,892 24,794 =
BT Hong Kong Dollars 24,631 14,792 376 43
2 Others 567 685 - —

802,830 784,024 88,083 43

AEBUTEARBFENCERRT
R REHRBE=Z@AZRITER
URBEERACEBYERRPEAE
MRTT - REZZPEARBERRIN
BURSESEHPEAESIZPEK
BERFREMNIEEHEERRER
BRE -

RESAHNEAFERRECERR
TER RRURBEB=EAZRTE
HURBERBESESEYNIREEMR

4+

= o

—E——FEH

The Group’s pledged bank deposits, bank deposits with initial
terms of over three months and cash and cash equivalents
denominated in Chinese Renminbi were deposited with banks
in Mainland China and Hong Kong. The conversion of
Chinese Renminbi into foreign currencies and the remittance
of funds out of Mainland China is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
Mainland China Government.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date
approximates the carrying values of the pledged bank
deposits, bank deposits with initial terms of over three
months and the cash and cash equivalents.
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4 3t B 7% 3 R Mi 5= Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16 Trade and bills payable - Consolidated

—g—-% =-3-%%
2011 2010
FET F#%

HK$°000 HK$’000

&1 B 5 1R =K Trade payables
- FE=H — to third parties 256,806 263,977
- TEAER (MzE37(c) — to related parties (Note 37(c)) 66,293 26,531
EfEE Bills payable 30,133 42,150

353,232 332,658

BRRRAHMFAENENESRARRE

The ageing analysis of the trade and bills payable based on

REDMAOT : invoice date is as follows:
—®——F _Z-TF
2011 2010
FTERx TERT
HK$’000 HK$'000
0£30Kk 0 — 30 days 158,648 167,222
31£60X 31 — 60 days 106,443 104,195
61£290K 61 — 90 days 56,925 37,508
912120k 91 — 120 days 24,036 14,156
1212180k 121 — 180 days 4,448 6,648
1812365k 181 — 365 days 2,202 1,832
366K M k£ Over 365 days 530 1,097
353,232 332,658

AEENENEZRARTEUTHE

The Group’s trade and bills payable were denominated in the

WA following currencies:
—E-—-F CZE-ZfF
2011 2010
TER FTAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
E United States Dollars 216,114 183,797
BT Hong Kong Dollars 97,447 81,999
RFEARY Chinese Renminbi 39,637 66,862
HAith Others 34 _
353,232 332,658

ST fFH AkEREEBRRARLA
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17 FESTHR R K E £t FE 4 0k 3

18

17 Accruals and other payables

R b
Consolidated Company
“E--% -Z2-2%2f ZB--f —EZ-ZF
2011 2010 2011 2010
TER TEx TEx TER
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
EERR AR ARETIER Accrual for employment benefit costs 131,693 109,812 10,615 5,547
EREEES Royalty payable - 5,494 - =
AT B EH Value added tax payable 11,567 8,551 - -
BEWEFRE Deposits received from customers 17,238 14,483 = =
Hih & B B IR Accrual for other operating expenses 51,072 52,725 3,777 400
st SR Accrued marketing, advertising
BEEREERL and promotion expenses 1,549 1,212 = =
BEYE KR Payable for purchases of property,
PES LT plant and equipment 4,905 7,888 - —
BHEFELHERE L Deposit received for leasehold
nEe land held for sale 6,170 = — —
WEKRBAREMRE Consideration payable for
acquisition of subsidiaries 30,359 30,750 - —
H B IR Other payables 8,265 8,775 81 1
262,818 239,690 14,473 5,948
BE-56 18 Borrowings - Consolidated
—E-—F ZEZ-FF
2011 2010
TET FTHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BN EA Current
RHRTER Short-term bank loans — 41,440
ERBBEORTER Trust receipts import bank loans 4,659 3,643
4,659 45,083

ALRERERECR-FREER - BR
MRNFELFER  WEHEENIK

HEHEEQFERE -

RZBE——F+-A=+—-H ' Bt
153 O 4R 17 & 74,659,000 T (=& —
ZF : 3,643,0008 ) HA D AREHN

EEERTUER -

kEREBEERARAA

Win Hanverky Holdings Limited

All of the Group’s borrowings were repayable within one year.
The carrying amounts of the short-term borrowings

approximate their fair values as the impact of discounting is

not significant.

SE-——FEH
2011 Annual Report

As at 31 December 2011, trust receipts import bank loans of
HK$4,659,000 (2010: HK$3,643,000) were secured by a
corporate guarantee given by the Company.
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18 fEE - &6t

RZB-ZE+-A=+—-H EHR
17 B 3041,440,00058 T A D A H B9
CEERTUERF - EHRITERER
FREZHEE-

AREEENREEMATIHIERIE :

18 Borrowings — Consolidated (Continued)

As at 31 December 2010, short-term bank loans of
HK$41,440,000 was secured by a corporate guarantee given
by the Company. The short-term bank loans were fully repaid
during the year.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings were
denominated in the following currencies:

—E-——-F C—Z-ZFF

2011 2010

FTEx TERT

HK$’000 HK$'000

HEAR® Chinese Renminbi — 41,440
E United States Dollars 4,659 3,643
4,659 45,083

R-ZE——5+=-A=+—-H ' ' x&E
M5 & 54,659,000 T (ZE—FTF :
33,243,000 7t) @ HIRFEEERGFE
REEBNMEFLS (F) FEMOT

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s borrowings of
HK$4,659,000 (2010: HK$33,243,000) were on floating rates.
The weighted average interest rates (per annum) at the
balance sheet date were as follows:

—2——F —E-2F
2011 2010
AR¥ EY ARY EY
RMB Us$ RMB Us$
BHRTER Short-term bank loans - - 5.6% —
ERWIBEORITER Trust receipts
import bank loan — 2.0% — 1.8%

R-ZZE-——%¥+ZA=1t—-0 F5H

As at 31 December 2011, the Group has

the following

MABABTEENT : undrawn banking facilities:
—F-——-F% =ZT-%F
2011 2010
TERT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
FENFIE Floating rates
- R—FEREH — expiring within one year 226,796 309,726

R-FRIHNEERFERSE AR

The facilities expiring within one year are annual facilities

“E-_FLZEABBEHER subject to review at various dates during 2012.

SF-—FFH
2011 Annual Report
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19 BIEFFEH - &6

BEFEHEERBRETENHH A
EEANHRARERSEZEANERE

SO HmRMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

19 Deferred income tax — Consolidated

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets

ERELZFEHEERE BB ERE
B HAEAREE - URFEAMT :

against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes relate to the same tax jurisdiction. The net amounts are

as follows:
—2——F CZZE-ZF
2011 2010
FERT FTET
HK$’000 HK$'000
EEMBEE : Deferred tax assets:
— 1218 B & W = £ — Deferred tax assets to be recovered
EEBIEEE after more than 12 months 4,993 4,745
— 1218 B AUk = £ — Deferred tax assets to be recovered
EEBEEE within 12 months 7,201 4,393
12,194 9,138
REREEE : Deferred tax liabilities:
- NREBEEEN — Deferred tax liabilities to be settled
EEBBEE after more than 12 months (10,038) (4,954)
- NREBREREN — Deferred tax liabilities to be settled
EEBEEE within 12 months (5,832) (268)
(15,870) (5,222)
EEFE (BE) /EE - F% Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets — net (3,676) 3,916

BEMEBHIEESBFEMNT ¢ The net movement on the deferred income tax account is as

follows:

—B2——F CZE-FF
2011 2010
FTERT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
F4 Beginning of the year 3,916 15,336
WEE—RKMB L (Mf5E36)  Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 36) — (30)
[ 5 =5 Exchange differences 65 258

RAERER Recognised in the
income statement (7,657) (11,648)
FH End of the year (3,676) 3,916

K K ZEEZRERRQA

Win Hanverky Holdings Limited
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19 BEEFBHR-E6 @ 19 Deferred income tax - Consolidated (Continued)
EEFBEEREEEY (RARE—H The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities without
BEAEBRNEREENER) OT taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the

same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:
BEEHEAE Deferred tax liabilities:
KOBEBA
A MB
Withholding
BETE REBER tax on
Tax  Unrealised undistributed @t
Depreciation loss earnings Total

TER TER TERT TER
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000

K-—E-Z2F-H-8 At 1 January 2010 (3,535) — (610) (4,145)
Wi — KB = (KfEE36)  Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 36) (30) - — (30)
RABRER Recognised in the income statement (709) — (2,619) (3,328)
RZE—ZFF+ZH=+—H At31December 2010 (4,274) — (3,229) (7,503)
RABRER Recognised in the income statement 1,711 (11,125) 640 (8,774)
R=ZB——H+=A=+—8 At31December 2011 (2563)  (11,125) (2589)  (16,277)
EEBEEE : Deferred tax assets:
RER
HBER bl
Tax  Unrealised Hitr st
losses profit Others Total

TER TER TERT TER
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RZE-ZF—H—H At 1 January 2010 12,378 6,258 845 19,481
RAERER Recognised in the income statement (7,740) (1,365) 785 (8,320)
B 5 =5 Exchange differences 258 — — 258
R-ZZE—-ZFF+-H=+—H At31 December 2010 4,896 4,893 1,630 11,419
RAERER Recognised in the income statement (3,778) 2,269 2,626 1,117
E 7 ZEL Exchange differences 65 — — 65
RZE——&E+ZH=+—H At31December 2011 1,183 7,162 4,256 12,601

—T-—FFH kEEEBRARLA
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19 EEFRBH - &6 @

A ERARERT A EBHBHRE
A BRSNS EEEERIAELEMSE
HEE R-_ZBE-——F+-A=1+-
B REE &R E18427,052,0005 7T
(ZZ—ZF :386,531,000/8 7T) A
45 B 6H R SR BE R B U A BV IR T P 15 B
& E 95,794,000 T (=& — = F
84,729,000/ 7t) ° M ARERRBERL
%8 127,958,000 T (= & — & &
87,756,000/ 7t) Al AR B 4L 8 » WM&
SR EEE11,414,0008 T (ZE—F
£ 110,951,000/ 7T) ~ 49,014,000/ T
(ZZ —F F : 47,028,000% 7T ) °
83,893,000 T (= & — T &

129,132,0007%& 7t) ~ 89,167,00078 7t (=
Z — Z F : 111,664,000% 7t )

65,606,0008 T (—E—FF : )5
AR-FE——F . —Z2—=F--F—
MEs —E-—HFR-_ZE—~FHH -

HRETHELRAEEBRNA R B R
BEZHBLARAZEAEERFERR
B MUERZERANESZRBNME
RIELFMBHEE2,339,0008 T (ZF
—Z £ :1,840,0008 ) c R=ZF——
F+-A=+—-H MARZLEBAEH
% 46,781,0008 T (= & — T F
36,789,000 7T) °

—E——FEH

SO HmRMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

19 Deferred income tax — Consolidated (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax
benefit through future taxable profits is probable. As at 31
December 2011, the Group did not recognise deferred
income tax assets of HK$95,794,000 (2010: HK$84,729,000)
in respect of losses amounting to HK$427,052,000 (2010:
HK$386,531,000) that can be carried forward against future
taxable income. Total unrecognised tax losses of
HK$127,958,000 (2010: HK$87,756,000) can be carried
forward indefinitely; while cumulative tax losses of
HK$11,414,000 (2010: HK$10,951,000), HK$49,014,000
(2010: HK$47,028,000), HK$83,893,000 (2010:
HK$129,132,000), HK$89,167,000 (2010: HK$111,664,000)
and HK$65,606,000 (2010: Nil) will expire in 2012, 2013,
2014, 2015 and 2016 respectively.

Deferred income tax liabilities of HK$2,339,000 (2010:
HK$1,840,000) have not been recognised for the withholding
tax that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of
certain subsidiaries, as it is management’s intention to
reinvest such amounts in the foreseeable future. Unremitted
earnings totalled HK$46,781,000 at 31 December 2011
(2010: HK$36,789,000).
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20 B 20 Share capital
R+=—B=+-—H
As at 31 December
—E——-F C—Z-FF
2011 2010
FTERT TERT
HK$000  HK$'000
RIE Authorised
3,000,000,0008% & & I% 3,000,000,000 ordinary shares
BREE1ET of HK$0.1 each 300,000 300,000
ZEREE
Number of
ordinary
shares
F i TERT
’000 HK$'000
BRITRAE Issued and fully paid up
RZE-—ZFRZZE——F At 31 December
+=ZHA=+—8H 2010 and 2011 1,268,400 126,840
BRE Share options

RARRENMEERESENT @ The Company operates two share option schemes as

described below:

(i)

BRARERAERESTS

HRETESER —SEAALEE
R#% o BMAQARHEEREERD
MERABRE R=-ZTZT F -
RARBEERXARERABRE
sF & - $% H44,400,00017 &% BR 7
MIRER1.14BTE2.28B TFEW
BERRBBAARRMD - REBEFEITH
BEX HEBRER-_ZSTAE
EZT N\F=ZFERAREE LRN=
E-X"EEATARYY - XEEYL
BLEQETNEAURSBES
BELEERE REBRAOHE
RAIBRESTE > RARFTER
o 2B S0 BB BRAE o

(i) Pre-IPO share option scheme

Pre-IPO share options were granted by the Company to
certain directors and a consultant for their services to the
Group. In 2006, the Company granted 44,400,000
options under the Pre-IPO share option scheme to
subscribe for shares in the Company at prices ranging
from HK$1.14 to HK$2.28 per share. These options
vested according to a pre-determined schedule over
three years from 2006 to 2008 and will expire on 10 May
2016. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation
to repurchase or settle these options in cash. No
additional options can be granted under the Pre-IPO
share option scheme.

SFE-—FFH ABEERBARALA
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20 B @) 20 Share capital (Continued)

BRE @ Share options (Continued)

(i) BRETE (i) Share option scheme
RARFEM—ERE10E 2=2F The Company has adopted a share option scheme, which
—ANENAZBNBRETS > T will remain in force for 10 years up to August 2016. Share
BERERTENES  EE B options may be granted to any director, employee,
BEF > #ER - RBEA 58 consultant, customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser
ABAEEERSAEH - THEE of or contractor to the Group. The exercise price is
HEZSRE  EFATERRER determined by the Board and shall not be less than the
HE; (1BBEERZMERA A higher of (i) the nominal value of a share; (ii) the closing
(BRI RIEEAH(EAEE price of one share as stated in the daily quotation sheets
A BENBEBRRAANERE T issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
B RGINBEBEIMNBEREAR “Stock Exchange”) on the date of offer, which shall be a
HALEEXASENARKTE business day; and (iii) the average closing price of the
NERAFHUTENRSE - K& shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by
BUEEZEREENEEUREE the Stock Exchange for the five business days
[B] =, 24 1 It Z BB AR AE o immediately preceding the date of offer. The Group has

no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle
these options in cash.

RITEBREZE REBNMETHT The number of share options outstanding and their related
FEMT : weighted average exercise prices are as follows:
—E2——F —E2-2F
2011 2010
BR¥H BR¥Y
TEE TEE
Average Average
exercise exercise
price BB AR price R
per share Options per share Options
BT T4 BT T4
HK$ ’000 HKS$ '000
R—A—-BR At 1 January and
+=B=+-—H 31 December 1.466 21,000 1.466 21,000

Tl x=&@mzREaRAEA —T——F&H
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited 2077 Annual Report
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20 R @)

BRE @

BEZ_Z-ZER-_ZE——H+=-8=
+-RLFEE ROTEEREHE XME
BHMETHTHEEL RS - HE=
EZ-ZFKR-FT——F+=-A=+—AH
LEE FEBRETTITE-

REARTEBRENIHAHRT
BT :

Z|H B H Expiry date

—2-"¥RATH
—2-X"¥RATH
—2-X"¥RATH

10 May 2016
10 May 2016
10 May 2016

=

& 43t 51 7 38 % B 3 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20 Share capital (Continued)

Share options (Continued)

There is no movement in the number of share options
outstanding and their related weighted average exercise
prices during the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2011.
All the share options are exercisable as at years ended 31
December 2010 and 2011.

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the
following expiry dates and exercise prices:

BRE

BRITEE Share options
Exercise price @Z—Z——% C"Z-ZF
per share 2011 2010
B T4 T
HK$ ’000 '000
1.140 9,000 9,000
1.596 10,000 10,000
2.280 2,000 2,000

21,000 21,000

RBE-Z-——F+-A=t+—-HLF
B YERSHABRNKREIMBERE
EE(ZE-2F 8 -

No share option cost was charged to the consolidated income
statement during the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010:
Nil).

—T-—FFH kEEEBRARLA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial étatements

21 e 21 Reserves
(a) &6 (a) Consolidated
U EERE
HEST (Hit) AeRE
R#AEE  Share-based Statutory Foreign AR RERH
Share payment reserves currency Other Retained @
premium reserve (Note) translation reserves earnings Total
THR Tén THT TAR Tén THR THR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-2-%£-5-H At 1 January 2010 666,939 9,282 4,579 66,410 190,450 791,972 1,729,632
EMBEER Currency translation differences
-15H - Group - - — 22,035 — - 22,035
-BERT - Associates - - - 639 — - 639
BE-ZHBAGESE  Setlement of consideration receivable
BUEERES from non-controlling interests in relation
ZRERE to disposals of interest in a subsidiary - - - - 10,031 - 10,031
BRRE Dividends paid
-ZEENERE - 2009 final - - - - — (%) (190%)
-ZZ-ZERERSBH - 2010 interim and special - - - - - (48,199) (48,199)
ARAREREA Proft atiributable to equity
i holders of the Company — = = — = 120,472 120472
ERZIERE Transfer to statutory reserves - - 4464 - - (4464) -
R-E-%% At 31 December 2010 666,939 9,282 9,043 89,084 200,481 840,755 1,815,584
TZRA=t-H
EMBEEE Currency translation differences
-5&H - Group - - - 20,142 - - 20,142
-BENT - Associates — - — 1,252 = = 1,252
HEHEEZHHERT  Changes in ownership interests in
KWEAAEGE subsidiaries without change
EHO2E (1350 of contol (Note 35(a) - - . — (15614) — (156M)
EfRE Dividends paid
-ZE-BERBREA - 2010 final and specil - - . - —(80%2)  (380%)
-ZE--5h8 ~ 2011 interim - - . - — ) (B340)
ARAREREA Profit attributable to equity holders
i RF of the Company — - — — - 230,19 230,196
ERZiTRE Transfer to statutory reserves - - 1,067 = = (1,067) =
R-B--F At 31 December 2011 666,939 9,282 10,110 110,478 184,867 968,412 1,950,088
tZA=t-H
g Representing:
BS-E--ERHKE  Proposed 2011 final dividend 38,052
At Others 930,360
968,412

142
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21 @B @ 21 Reserves (Continued)
(a) & BF @ (a) Consolidated (Continued)

M&E Note:

REFEAENRG  RAFRPEKX As stipulated by regulations in Mainland China, the Company’s
ERIRKENHEARDRREEES subsidiaries established and operated in Mainland China are
EfEENLEREREBEIFESE required to appropriate a portion of their after-tax profit (after
MBRBEEFNBIBA-—REERLE offsetting prior years’ losses) to the general reserve and the
XBRES  —RBEITHAERHEBE enterprise expansion fund, at rates determined by their
FEBERBTAR MEERRES respective boards of directors. The general reserve can be
BIREREEYK RBE-F——F+ utilised to offset prior year losses or be utilised for the issuance
“A=+—HLEFE ' 1,067,000% T of bonus shares, whilst the enterprise expansion fund can be
(ZZ—FF : 4,464,000 ) BAEZE utilised for the development of business operations. During the
—-BEERCEERES - year ended 31 December 2011, HK$1,067,000 (2010:

HK$4,464,000) was appropriated to the general reserve and the
enterprise expansion fund.

(b) XA (b) Company
DY
ARG
R#%EE  Share-based HERE REEA
Share payment Contributed Retained @t
premium reserve surplus earnings Total
TER TEL THER TER THER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=2-ZF-5-H At 1 January 2010 666,939 9,282 528,331 32,842 1,237,394
ARARESEA Profit attributable to equity
FEf5 R holders of the Company - - - 101,571 101,571
EARE Dividends paid
-ZBENERY - 2009 final — — — (19,026) (19,026)
~ZE-ZEAHRER - 2010 interim and special - - - (48,199) (48,199)
RZZ-%fF At 31 December 2010 666,939 9,282 528,331 67,188 1,271,740
TZA=t-H
ARARERE A Profit attributable to equity
JE{5 R A holders of the Company — — — 147,256 147,256
BRRE Dividends paid
-ZE-ZERERHER - 2010 final and special - - - (38,052) (38,052)
-ZE--Enf - 2011 interim — — — (63,420) (63,420)
RZB--F At 31 December 2011 666,939 9,282 528,331 112,972 1,317,524
t=A=t-A
= Representing:
BZ-—ERHME  Proposed 2011 final dividend 38,052
Eft Others 74,920

112,972

ST fFH AkEREEBRRARLA
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B3R % MEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

22 Hflg A 22 Other income

—B-—-f% CZZT-ZH
2011 2010
FTET TEx
HK$’000 HK$’000
HEWA Rental income 385 348
HERBA Royalty income 240 11
Hty Others 1,601 4,044
2,226 4,403

23 Hitl i — B8 23 Other gains - net
g% —®-%%
2011 2010
FBT TEx

HK$’000 HK$°000

HEME  HERREN (Loss)/gain on disposal of property,

(B518) & plant and equipment (36) 5,788
fE 5 U&= FE Net exchange gains 9,524 2,368
Hit Others 391 —

9,879 8,156

VN k= EBEERBERARD —F-—FFH
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24 BHEEE D HFAX

FXBREEERE  HERDHEHAN
R—BRRITEMAX  2WWT :

24 Expenses by nature

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution
costs and general and administrative expenses are analysed

as follows:
—2-—F C"2-%F
2011 2010
THERx TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
EFEANEMERERER Raw materials and consumables used 1,477,049 1,180,292
BEHMN G Purchases of finished goods 345,445 310,621
NIRZBEHR Processing and subcontracting charges 139,402 127,330
EEEERX Manufacturing overheads 39,187 35,577
B Sample expenses 24,181 17,136
HEMRERD Changes in inventories of finished goods
FELH and work in progress (126,719) 2,687
M WBERFZETE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 90,676 85,589
M - MBERFZERE Impairment of property, plant and equipment 2,746 —
HELHK i Amortisation of leasehold land
{50 A R 4 88 and land use rights 1,020 1,001
B EEHE Amortisation of intangible assets 4,314 8,856
B EERE Impairment of intangible assets 112,000 54,000
At ES R Impairment of available-for-sale
EERE financial assets 500 —
B &R FIB X (Ff5E25) Employment benefit expense (Note 25) 758,766 614,239
EE - XMIRRBAX Freight, delivery and insurance expenses 81,575 76,028
HEERY Royalties expense 145 144
HERS Sales commission 1,218 1,600
mEHERE - EER Marketing, advertising
EEMAX and promotion expenses 12,668 12,190
EEMLAERE L Operating lease rental in respect of office
REFNKEHE equipment and land and buildings
-BREASETRK — minimum lease payments 61,655 45,976
-HAEE — contingent rent 9,915 9,919
A il A Auditor’s remuneration 3,498 3,426
FE W b SR (B Impairment/(write-back)
J(BE) - F8 of receivables, net
-~ BREZRRAREE — trade and bills receivable 6,040 (1,052)
—-Ee - BARR — deposits, prepayments and
H fth & W K 0E other receivables 1,597 7,937
FERME/ (BE) - F8E Provision for/(write-back of) inventories, net 12,782 (3,802)
H B> Other expenses 155,331 149,596
HERE - HERDHAKA  Total cost of sales, selling and distribution costs
UKk —BERTBE AR and general and administrative expenses 3,214,991 2,739,290

—E - —FEH
2011 Annual Report

AEEERBRERLA

Win Hanverky Holdings Limited



146

SO HmRMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

24 RUHEEE WX @ 24 Expenses by nature (Continued)
REFEEGEFERNE TEEREFIF Certain employment benefit expenses of HK$19,800,000 in
% 19,800,000 tE HEERAEH 5 prior year consolidated income statement have been
BA-MRTEAX  UFEERFEEN reclassified from cost of sales to general and administrative
25 - expenses to conform with the current year’s presentation.
25 EERAMX 25 Employment benefit expense
=F-——-F =F-%%
2011 2010
THER TET
HK$°000 HK$’000
I e Az Wages, salaries, commission,
EERIEAL allowances and bonus 701,572 575,492
BIRER Retirement benefit
- REMKGE — defined contribution schemes 39,037 22,520
BRI E A &= Welfare and other benefits 18,157 16,227
758,766 614,239
(a) BUKBARAN - RER—KRFE (a) Retirement benefit costs - defined contribution plans

AEBEZHBEEBRERES MAEHM
ARREE (RS E])  »h
ABYXTAEENRE /AT
2o-REBESHE AKE (B
I RHEBEEARBENMELAREN
EHE BN RBERAS%EREA
"H-BEREESENEAHRK
LRA1,0008 T - MEMHERS
BRMEN - AEBERE RN B RE
REAKRBNOEE -

BREPEAENRERAH A&
EAAHEPEAERETEIAER
EBRASTIAFELHR - FKE
BEABRERBUA (BEIE -
B RERIEA) H8%m st &4
R MAKEERBEKANS%E
28%fEH R - MEREKS - A&
ERAAERARBNERMRD
Ef -BREPRASHEEER
BRAETXNEMRAE -

KEEBERARAA —FT-—FFHK
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited 2077 Annual Report

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to
join a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme managed by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of
the Group (the employer) and its employees make
monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund legislation. The monthly contributions of
each of the employer and the employee are subject to a
cap of HK$1,000 and thereafter contributions are
voluntary. The Group has no further obligations for post-
retirement benefits beyond the contributions.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland China,
the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement
schemes for certain of its employees in Mainland China.
The Group’s employees make monthly contributions to
the schemes at approximately 8% of the relevant income
(comprising wages, salaries, allowances and bonus),
while the Group contributes 5% to 28% of such income
and has no further obligations for the actual payment of
post-retirement benefits beyond the contributions. The
state-sponsored retirement schemes are responsible for
the entire post-retirement benefit obligations payable to
the retired employees.
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26 BEERAEX @

(a) BIBRIRA - REHRKETE

(%)

AEERERBECHBARGE
BESZSMENKE - XAREER
B(EE)RHEEEERAKESRA
WA(BEIE HE - ZERE
AL) B 16%EIET EIE R - REBERH
RO BAERBRARBENOEE -

BREMEBERS  AEEALEH
ERERNNEREE -

(b) EEM=

BE-2-—-£+t-RA=t-RL
EE ARAZEBNMENT :

25 Employment benefit expense (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Retirement benefit costs - defined contribution plans
(Continued)

The Group participates in a retirement scheme for
qualified employees of its subsidiary in Vietnam. Each of
the Group (the employer) and its employees make
monthly contributions to the scheme at 16% of the
employees’ relevant income (comprising wages, salaries,
allowances and bonus). The Group has no further
obligations for post-retirement benefits beyond the
contributions.

The Group has no material obligation for post-retirement
benefits beyond contributions to the above schemes.

Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of each director of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2011 is set out below:

FHERE

BihSHE  HNROME
EEMH  Share-based
Employer’s compensation

BEEL EEEE contribution in respect of
he %4 Discretionary Housing to retirement share @it
BEfF Name of Director Fees Salaries bonuses  allowances schemes options Total
THET TET TER THET TR THET TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HiTEE Executive directors
ZER Li Kwok Tung Roy - 3,822 2,500 = 12 = 6,334
2EY Lai Ching Ping - 3,234 2,500 = 12 = 5,746
RE Cheung Chi — 2,067 2,300 — 12 — 4,379
ZER Lee Kwok Leung — 1,680 1,900 = 12 = 3,592
BUFHES Independent non-executive
directors
Ex% Ma Ka Chun 100 — — — — — 100
BtE Chan Kwong Fai 100 - - - - - 100
BRE Kwan Kai Cheong 150 - - - - - 150
REX Wun Kwang 100 - - - - - 100
450 10,803 9,200 — 48 — 20,501
—rx-—s#y5 xzxsmersrea EEIEIEING
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25 EERAME @ 25 Employment benefit expense (Continued)
(b) EEME @ (b) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
BE-Z-ZH5+-HA=+—-BL The remuneration of each director of the Company for the
FE ADAZEENHEOT ¢ year ended 31 December 2010 is set out below:
FRERE

BAeTE  HREME
EEMF  Share-based
Employer’s compensation
BEEL EEREE contribution in respect of

e #4 Discretionary Housing to retirement share b
YT Name of Director Fees Salaries bonuses  allowances  schemes options Total

TiEn TER TEn TiEn TER Tin TiEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

HTES Executive directors

ZERK Li Kwok Tung Roy — 3,579 1,200 — 12 — 4791

REY Lai Ching Ping — 3,028 1,200 — 12 - 4,240

w8 Cheung Chi — 1,955 1,100 — 12 - 3,067

ZERZ Lee Kwok Leung = 1,652 900 — 12 - 2,564

BUFHTEE Independent non-executive

directors

S Ma Ka Chun 100 — — — - — 100

RxE Chan Kwong Fai 100 — - = = = 100

BRE Kwan Kai Cheong 150 — - - = = 150

BEX Wun Kwang 100 - - = = - 100
450 10,214 4,400 — 48 - 15,112

REBE-Z——f+=-HA=t—H No directors waived any emoluments during the year

LEE MRSEERETAME (= ended 31 December 2011 (2010: Nil).

Z2-Z2F 8-

N kK EEERBRERRARA — - —FFH
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26 BEERAEX @

(c) ABmREAHFAL

BE-F-—-Fft-A=t-AL
EEFAREIEREHALEEN
H(ZE-Z2F MR EF - HEF
MMESCHRELDH - FAEH
SEAEH-B (Z2-FF -

25 Employment benefit expense (Continued)

(c) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011
include four (2010: four) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments paid/payable to the remaining one individual

B)ALTHBEMT ¢ (2010: one individual) during the year are as follows:
—E-—-F CZE-ZfF
2011 2010
TET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
B ERRER Basic salaries, housing allowances
H {2 By and other allowances 1,210 1,260
BB TEAL Discretionary bonuses 4,338 5,161
RIRER Retirement benefit
- RE MG S — defined contribution schemes 12 12
5,560 6,433
FMAFUTEER : The emoluments fell within the following bands:
AE
Number of individuals
—E-—F Z—EZ-FF
2011 2010
FHeEE (&) Emolument bands (in HK Dollars)
5,500,000 JT — HK$5,500,000 —
6,000,0007% 7T HK$6,000,000 1 —
6,000,001 7T — HK$6,000,001 —
6,500,00078 JT HK$6,500,000 — 1

(d) B2=F——F+=-A=+—-HL
FE RORUEIAMEFEM
ESQnERETFAL  EFANA
R3S A 2R £ B A 5 B o B L
B(ZE-—TF 8| -

(d) During the year ended 31 December 2011, no
emoluments were paid by the Company to any of the
directors or the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office (2010: Nil).

SFE-—FFH ABEERBARALA
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26 BEW AR KA

26 Finance income and costs

—®=—FN —_2-TF
2011 2010
FTET FTERT
HK$’000 HK$’000
AMEUW A Interest income from
—RITFER — Bank deposits 10,555 6,921
-HEMBARERTEE  — Other receivable from disposal of
Y H i FE LT IR FX interest in a subsidiary — 401
—ARRESFEEN — Interest receivables
FEW R B2 from convertible bonds 590 —
—-BERT—XEEQT — Interest receivables from loans
EENEKRRE to an associate 2,185 —
- BEFERFEEFH — Customers for extended credit terms 79 71
MEWRA Finance income 13,409 7,393
EIE= N Finance cost
- RITEEREX — Bank borrowings and overdrafts (1,523) (604)
AMEWRANFEE Net finance income 11,886 6,789

27 FrERiAX

ERAEGHERBERAEEMGTERTE
MIZFHE16.5% (ZF—FF : 16.5%) 5
REE -

HREARERIREEHNHE QSR B
ERNAREAFEREBXHEZHNTE
ABEEEMER (ZT—FF 1 25%) °
BEBRBE ZEETRARERLA
NEBELERFICELENHED
ARBERT BATER-TENFE
OEMEUERRANEERSES
MER=ZFREFER -

BN (BEEBRPE KRR B HOHE
ERAFEATERBENZAEEEL
EEBERERERAR RS -

kEEBBERERAD —F-——FFH
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited 2077 Annual Report

27 Income tax expense

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2010: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the
year.

Subsidiaries and associates established and operated in
Mainland China are subject to Mainland China Enterprise
Income Tax at rate of 25% for the year (2010: 25%). In
accordance with the applicable tax regulations, subsidiaries
and associates established in Mainland China as wholly
owned foreign enterprises or sino-foreign joint ventures are
entitled to full exemption from Enterprise Income Tax for the
first two years and a 50% reduction in Enterprise Income Tax
for the next three years, commencing no later than 2008.

Taxation on overseas (other than Hong Kong and Mainland
China) profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profits for the year at the applicable rates of
taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.



wh w

27 FiB8HBEX @
BEHABERNBNTEHETIE

.

& {3t 51 7 38 % B 5 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

27 Income tax expense (Continued)

The amounts of income tax expense charged to the
consolidated income statement represent:

-5 =%-%%
2011 2010
FE5n Fi85

HK$’000 HK$°000

BNEAFT 5% Current income tax
EBREH Hong Kong profits tax 13,635 35,088
B ARERERSESH Mainland China enterprise income tax 4,983 5,671
BIHNTER Overseas income tax 604 —
RBEFERETR (BERE) Under/(over) provision in prior years 2,040 (9,879)
21,262 30,880
EEFEH Deferred income tax 8,267 3,435
29,529 34,315

SE-—FEH ABREEEBRARLF
2011 Annual Report -~ Win Hanverky Holdings Limited
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27 FiBHA X @ 27 Income tax expense (Continued)
REERAEFAEF B EEGFERE The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from
AReHEREMNNMETLIBEE N the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted
MERSEMNEZRNT : average tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated

entities as follows:

—E-—F ZEZ-FF
2011 2010
TET TR
HK$’000 HK$'000

TEEREEKE DT (BE) / Profit before income tax excluding share

i F B9 BR P 15 86 Bl A of (losses)/profits of associates 8,934 149,340
H0RE 39 7R tth 3 AR B R Weighted average applicable domestic tax rates 17.0% 18.4%
LERREB S Tax calculated at domestic tax rates

B =X Fl B9 7K i i 2= applicable to profits in the respective

STEMHIE places/countries 1,518 27,451

HEZE Tax effects of:
- BERBBA — Income not subject to tax (3,252) (2,610)
—FA B E X — Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 25,812 14,182
- BERRZEE — Effect of tax concession (8,422) (8,984)
—WEEDIELRSH N — Tax losses for which no deferred income

REBEFHE tax was recognised, net 15,244 14,697
-HABEIAEABEREE  — Utilisation of previously unrecognised

tax losses (4,179) (3,332)
—-MEARREE AR — Withholding tax on undistributed earnings

K7 BB FIFENB of subsidiaries and associates (30) 2,619
-RBEFERE — Under/(over) provision

TR/ (RERE) in prior years 2,040 (9,879)
—Ht — Others 798 171
BB X Tax charge 29,529 34,315
LA MERE S EARN RS EEH The change in weighted average applicable domestic tax
RAREBADNREEFASEE rates, as stated above, is mainly caused by a change in mix
o ZEMBEFNRTRABEHF of profits earned by different group companies which are

subject to different tax.

28 AR B REFE AELGT 28 Profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company
AT RERSE AELLEFI147,256,000 The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is
B (ZZE—ZF 101,571,000 7t) 5t dealt with in the financial statements of the Company to the
ARAB B HERER o extent of HK$147,256,000 (2010: HK$101,571,000).

P kE=EBEERERARD —F-—FFH
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29 BREF 29 Earnings per share
(a) EX (a) Basic
BREXRNDREADARER The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
B AEL 4G %F£230,196,000%8 the consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the
T (ZE—ZF : 120,472,000 7T) Company of approximately HK$230,196,000 (2010:
REEERTEERMETLHEN HK$120,472,000) and on the weighted average number
1,268,400,0008% (= & — & F of approximately 1,268,400,000 (2010: 1,268,400,000)
1,268,400,0008%) 5t & ordinary shares in issue during the year.

—g--# =-z-3F

2011 2010
ARTREZEAEN  Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders
wAl/ (B518) (F#Bmx)  of the Company (HK$'000)
- FELEER — Continuing operations 43,851 147,848
—DRIEREER — Discontinued operations 186,345 (27,376)

230,196 120,472

ERTEBRN Weighted average number of ordinary
MEEF T (T ) shares in issue ('000) 1,268,400 1,268,400

SREXRA (FE) Basic earnings/(losses)

(BAL) per share (HK cents)
-~ FEKSEER — Continuing operations 3.4 11.7
-BRIEREEK — Discontinued operations 14.7 (2.2)
18.1 9.5

(b) #F (b) Diluted

BREBFRNDBERIRFAERE Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
EBEYENEBRMBAZMET weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
HERTEBRYEHE - REE to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
B RE 5T 2l (Ff5E20) AT 34T E@Hﬁﬁ?% shares. Shares issuable under the share option schemes
KE-EBTHEYENEAR - & (Note 20) are the only dilutive potential ordinary shares. A
RERBRITEEREMHRERE calculation is made in order to determine the number of
MEBEEELTEANEE TR shares that could have been acquired at fair value
ANEENDADRDRDAEEEREN (determined as the average market price of the
EHMERE) WENROEE - L Company’s shares in the relevant periods) based on the
MAFTENRDEE ERETEE monetary value of the subscription rights attached to
f% e 34T RO AR D BU B 1E i Eb 8% o outstanding share options. The number of shares

calculated as above is compared with the number of
shares that would have been issued assuming the
exercise of the share options.

SE-—FFH ARERABRBAERLA
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29 ERER @ 29 Earnings per share (Continued)
(b) 8% &) (b) Diluted (Continued)
—E-—-F CZE-Zf
2011 2010
RATREZEAENL  Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders
BRI, (B#B) (FBm)  of the Company (HK$'000)
-~ FELEER — Continuing operations 43,851 147,848
-BRIEREER — Discontinued operations 186,345 (27,376)
230,196 120,472
MEFEIHE #1T Weighted average number of ordinary
BRHOHAE (TR shares in issue ('000) 1,268,400 1,268,400
BRERE (TR) Adjustment for share options (*000) — 263
SRBERFWMEEY Weighted average number of ordinary
BHEE (TR shares for diluted earnings per share ('000) 1,268,400 1,268,663
SREBERA (H8B) Diluted earnings/(losses) per
(BAL) share (HK cents)
- BELEER — Continuing operations 3.4 11.7
- BRIEREER — Discontinued operations 14.7 (2.2)
18.1 9.5
30 BRE 30 Dividends
=F-——-F =Z2-%%
2011 2010
FTET TET
HK$:000  HK$'000
ENFHRESRERARS.0EL Interim dividend paid of HK5.0 cents
(ZZ—ZF ! 2.4%814) (2010: HK2.4 cents) per ordinary share 63,420 30,442
ENBIRESRERAR @ & Special dividend paid of Nil
(ZZ—ZF 1 1.484) (2010: HK1.4 cents) per ordinary share — 17,757
BEAPRESRETERSI.0EAL Proposed final dividend of HK3.0 cents
(ZZ2—-ZF 1 1.284) (2010: HK1.2 cents) per ordinary share 38,052 15,221
EREIRESREER & Proposed special dividend of Nil
(ZZ—Z5F 1 1.8%1) (2010: HK1.8 cents) per ordinary share — 22,831
101,472 86,251
RZE-——F=A1THNEETHNEER At a meeting held on 14 March 2012, the Board proposed a
b EZERRREREREERI.0B final dividend of HK3.0 cents (2010: HK1.2 cents) and a
i (ZE—FF : 1.281l) RESZSFIRE special dividend of Nil (2010: HK1.8 cents) per share. The
(ZE—ZFF 1.8%81) -BERERK proposed dividend has not been reflected as a dividend
RABBKREEARBRBEMSKE » i payable in these financial statements, but will be reflected as
ERMABE-E——F+=ZB=1+— an appropriation of retained earnings for the year ending 31
ALEENREBAEA - December 2012.

B k= EBEERERARD —F-—FFH
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31 ReERERME 31 Notes to cash flow statement
(a) EEFMBHESHIR (a) Reconciliation of cash generated from operations

—E-—F —EZ-FF

2011 2010
TERT TR
HK$°000 HK$’000
BRETEH A=A Profit before income tax 169,602 117,293
BTHIRERE Adjustments for:
- B EEEH — Amortisation of intangible assets 4,314 8,856
-HELH KL — Amortisation of leasehold land

& RAE# and land use rights 1,020 1,001
- HEDHEEN KRS — Gain on disposal of distribution rights (214,500) —
—HEME HERRE - Loss/(gain) on disposal of property,

MR/ (k) plant and equipment 755 (5,762)
- W%  HERKREITE — Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment 95,029 102,011
— ¥ % HEKRERE - Impairment of property,

plant and equipment 12,233 —
-BEEERE — Impairment of intangible assets 126,851 54,000
-AHEEEH — Impairment of available-for-sale

EERME financial assets 500 —
-FERE/ — Impairment/(write-back) of

(B[E) —F5 inventories, net 11,696 (4,414)
—ERIRARE-F%E - Impairment of receivables, net 21,205 3,685
—MERA - FE — Finance income — net (11,249) (4,271)
— i HE A A — Share of losses/(profits)

B8, CaF) of associates 349 (2,036)
-ERWE - FE — Exchange gains, net (15,018) (6,488)
EEESEE . Changes in working capital:

-RFE — Inventories (148,446) (29,451)
-EWESIKRZXREE - Trade and bills receivable 112,014 (6,192)
&€ BARRR — Deposits, prepayments

H fth & Ui 1R FX and other receivables (23,318) (23,625)
-ENESIRAKEE - Trade and bills payable 18,777 60,578
—FESHIR R R H Al — Accruals and

FE 15 R K other payables 44,030 10,398
EEMBES Cash generated from operations 205,844 275,583

SE-—FEFH ABEEBRAERLA
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31 RERERMET @

(b) REERERD  HEWE - S
REEABREEE

SO HmRMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 Notes to cash flow statement (Continued)

(b) In the cash flow statement, proceeds from disposal of
property, plant and equipment comprise:

—®=—FN —_2-TF
2011 2010
TER TER

HK$’000 HK$°000

HEWE #EKRME . Disposal of property, plant and equipment:

MR B Net book amount 1,045 6,529
HEWME  BER (Loss)/gain on disposal of property,

BB (BB s plant and equipment (755) 5,762
HEMHE BER Proceeds from disposal of property,

BERBRE plant and equipment 290 12,291

(c) EAiﬁ,ﬁmu;%qﬂ ) H&l%ﬁﬁ%’&ﬂﬂ%
EANRE (MKRBANRE)E

(c) In the cash flow statement, cash used in acquisition of
subsidiaries, net of cash acquired, represent:

—g-—-% =-%-%%
2011 2010
FRT FE%

HK$’000 HK$’'000

BANBRERESLEEY Cash and cash equivalents

(P £ 36) acquired (Note 36) — 2,774
EBANRTES Bank overdrafts assumed (Note 36)

(Pt £ 36) — (197)
ERNRERE Cash consideration paid — (3,000)

Uk B B B A R B A A Cash used in acquisition of subsidiaries,
Be HIREAKNESE  net of cash acquired — (423)

(d) FR - RKBXEFTEIMESM
M UIL {4 #931,200,000% 7t B 430
BRRBULNEE D HEMEBNE
214,500,00038 7T °

kEEBBERERAD —F-——FFH
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(d) During the year, the payment to UIL for the acquisition of
additional interests in T&S HK of HK$31,200,000 has
been net-off with the proceeds from the disposal of
distribution rights from UIL of HK$214,500,000.
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N BEUHEZHARBEERER
IFREERE - a0

(a) &+ HtifE

32 Non-current assets held-for-sale and

discontinued operations — Consolidated

(a) Disposal of land use rights

R-ZZB——F+=ZH=+H K&
BEITE—2FE=FRHEETEKX
EETIHERARITLEERHE
18 5 36,634,0008 T - ZBR 5
BHR-Z-——FWAREK K=
F——F+ZA=+—-8 ' BWE
71 %£6,170,0008 T c KM E > L
{55 A 4% BR 11 82, 20,463,00078 7T (Fff
HO)EFIABELENERTE
E °

(b) REFTEBZERLERER

%

RIBE——FEAZ+—H8 &K
E E Umbro International Limited
(TUILD BB AR IEBA-ZSES L
F_BNBNDHEHREM L — 5
WE ZoHEBGERTREETE
EBERDEE IR-ZEZLE=
RE_ZE_ZH5+_FHBEEHER
KR BFIRABE D
UmbromIEER - REZD HEW
X 18 & 27,500,000 &t (&£ K
214,500,000/ ) » M&ZX %2R
“E-—FRAZHZEK o Bt
s AKERBE=ZE——&+=
B=1+—BLEFERILLEUmbro
D SERER W22 214,500,00078 TT ©

i RZFE——FMAZ+ —
B AREFHUILRHBEESET Y
BERKEHSE Bl REETE
B¥R=-Z——-FE~HB-HZE=Z
——FEXNA=THEEBUILKHZEH
HERBRUERYE  UBPEEER
REXEFTEERLSHEERD
EEBBERCEHEHE R - £
it BR 7% &9 R #% & % 5,000,0003% 7T
(¥ % 139,000,000 7t) ° F bt
5 UL REFTEERENR_-F
——EXAZHEZZE—-Z-F5xA8
=+ EHB 2 #EUmbromEERKN
HEBRDHEE  UBREETE
B RMEmBERE  REBEZE=
E-——F+-"B=1+—HLEFEW
BARIEREXEBREBENBRRANBE
IR # & W A 5 20,558,00058 Tt ©

(b)

On 20 December 2011, the Group entered into a sales
and purchase agreement with a third party in Heyuan in
relation to the sale of certain land use rights in Mainland
China for a consideration of HK$36,634,000. The
transaction is expected to complete in April 2012. As at
31 December 2011, a deposit of HK$6,170,000 has been
received. In this connection, the land use rights with
carrying amount HK$20,463,000 (Note 6) is reclassified
as non-current assets held for sale.

Discontinued operations of Team & Sports Group
(“T&S Group”)

On 21 April 2011, the Group entered into an agreement
with Umbro International Limited (“UIL”) for the early
termination of the distributor agreement dated 8 February
2007 which granted T&S Group exclusive distribution
rights of the Umbro branded products in Mainland China,
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan from March 2007 to
December 2020. The consideration for the surrender of
such distribution rights was US$27,500,000 (equivalent to
HK$214,500,000) and this transaction was completed on
2 June 2011. In this connection, the Group recognised a
gain on the termination of Umbro distribution rights of
HK$214,500,000 during the year ended 31 December
2011.

In addition, the Group entered into a Transition Services
Agreement with UIL and its related entities on 21 April
2011, under which T&S Group will provide services to UIL
and its related entities for the period from 2 June 2011 to
30 June 2012 to assist them in avoiding disruption in the
transition and operation of the distribution business after
the termination of distribution rights by T&S Group. The
fees for the above services are US$5,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$39,000,000). In this connection, UIL granted T&S
Group new non-exclusive distribution rights for the
distribution of Umbro branded products from 2 June 2011
to 30 June 2012 to enable T&S Group to provide the
above transition services. Transition service fee income
recognised in the results of the discontinued operations
during the year ended 31 December 2011 amounted to
HK$20,558,000.

e i
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2 BEHEZERBEERE K
IEREEK - 50w

(b) REFTEBZ2CRILEEEHE
% @@

RIBEUILET L 1755& » UmbroE m
DHEEBBR-_BE-——FEXA=T
HEEAL - Bt REGEHH
BERD HEZZHNECRIELE
% MEEERAGASEAU
EAHR -

AEFTEE(LEARNEER

to the Consolidated Financial Statements

32 Non-current assets held-for-sale and
discontinued operations — Consolidated (Continued)

(b) Discontinued operations of Team & Sports Group
(“T&S Group”) (Continued)

Pursuant to the agreements with UIL, the distribution
business of the Umbro products will be wholly ceased on
30 June 2012. Therefore its results are presented as a
discontinued operation and its assets and liabilities are
classified as a disposal group in the consolidated
financial statements.

The major classes of assets and liabilities of T&S Group,

BENEESENT the disposal group, are as follows:
R-B——%
+=A=+—H
As at
31 December
2011
FExT
HK$’000
IABELHENEE : Assets classified as held for sale:
S ERR EVET — property, plant and equipment 341
-8 — inventory 15,622
- ERE SRR — trade receivables 6,097
-&e - BEARER — deposits, prepayments and
H 1t P& IR 3R other receivables 21,623
-HERBEEEEY — cash and cash equivalents 9,577
HEARNEELLE Total assets of the disposal group 53,260
HIABELENEE Liabilities directly associated
FEERENEE: with assets classified as held for sale:
-ENEZRR — trade payables 1,027
— FE ST IR 7R R HL 4t & 43 R 5X — accruals and other payables 24,195
-BEmEHasE — current income tax liabilities 1,612
HEARNE ERAR Total liabilities of the disposal group 26,834
HEARNFEELE Total net assets of the disposal group 26,426

B k= &EBEERBERARD —F-—FFH
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N2 BEHEZEARBEERD K 32 Non-current assets held-for-sale and

I REEK - &6 @) discontinued operations - Consolidated (Continued)
(b) REFTEBZERILEREE (b) Discontinued operations of Team & Sports Group
% @) (“T&S Group”) (Continued)
TXHIERAEBAREFTEEN Financial information relating to T&S Group for the year
BEER - FEREERLEEX is set out below. The income statement distinguishes
BREBELEXBIFZ2S - K& discontinued operations from continuing operations.
HECDEED o Comparative figures have been re-presented.
8=z

T A=+—HLFE
For the year
ended 31 December

—®——F _Z-TF

2011 2010
TERT TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
= Revenue 113,099 212,481
HERK Costs of sales (78,271)  (138,443)
ER Gross profit 34,828 74,038
HERDHEE Selling and distribution costs (42,835) (63,243)
—RRTBMAX General and administrative expenses (70,188) (46,454)
Hi gt A Other income 20,574 —
Hihl s —F 58 () Other gains — net (Note) 219,275 4,094
mEER (BE) Operating profit/(loss) 161,654 (31,565)
BEWA Finance income 251 445
BLE R AR Finance costs (888) (2,963)
MERAX - FH Finance costs — net (637) (2,518)
BRETE8 AR, (B#B) Profit/(loss) before income tax 161,017 (34,083)
BRI A (BAX) Income tax credit/(expense) 610 (10,177)
EREREERN Profit/(loss) from discontinued
wF (E58) operations 161,627 (44,260)
UTALTEMBLILELE Profit/(loss) from discontinued
EBRNERN (BE) - operations attributable to:
—ARAFREFEA — Equity holders of the Company 186,345 (27,376)
—FERER — Non-controlling interests (24,718) (16,884)

161,627 (44,260)

SFE-—FFH ABEERBARALA
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N2 BFEHEZERBEERE K 32 Non-current assets held-for-sale and

I REEK - 56 @) discontinued operations - Consolidated (Continued)
(b) REFTEBZERILEREE (b) Discontinued operations of Team & Sports Group
% @) (“T&S Group”) (Continued)
MEE Note:
,‘%%Ji:Umbroﬁﬁ‘é’\*’éﬂ?Hﬂi‘§214,500,000 The gain on termination of Umbro distribution rights amounting
BILR AR W — FH o to HK$214,500,000 was included in other gains — net.
BZE

TZA=t—HLEE
For the year

ended 31 December

2§ CZEZ-ZF
2011 2010
TER TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
RERERE Operating cash flows (587) 4,289
BRERERE Investing cash flows (1,750) (4,911)
MEHSRE Financing cash flows (30,200) (29,074)
REeREHE Total cash flows (32,537) (29,696)
FPACRLEREERNBEIZ MM Expenses included in the discontinued operations are
T analysed as follows:
- CZEZ-ZF
2011 2010
TER TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BERM M Purchase of finished goods 37,827 122,793
HEMEFENE S Changes in inventories of finished goods 40,813 16,208
M BWBERZBENE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 4,353 16,422
Y% WERRERE  Impairment of property, plant and equipment 9,487 —
BEREERE Impairment of intangible assets 14,851 —
ZE R £ Auditor’s remuneration 1,087 856
EBWEZIRAREE Impairment/(write-back) of trade
RE, (#E) —F%  and bills receivable, net 13,568 (3,200)
FERE - FHE Write-back of inventories, net (1,086) (612)
RBETFERNBHRER Under-provision of current
HEET R income tax in prior years — 1,964
EEFFBH (WA) /B Deferred income tax (credit)/expense (610) 8,213

G = &£BEERARLIA —F——FFH
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33 AER

R-Z-——F+ZA=1t—-0  FX5H
THEREARIREB(ZZ-ZF  §) -

33 Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities (2010: Nil).

34 BRE-AXKEH

34 Commitments - Group

(a) BARESE (a) Capital commitments
REER BRI NERBENER Capital expenditure contracted for at the balance sheet
BT : date but not yet provided for is as follows:

—E-—F —EZ-FF
2011 2010
TERT TR
HK$’000 HK$'000

MR HERRE
BARERER

Property, plant and equipment
Contracted but not provided for 1,654 6,859

R=F-——-%+=-A=t-HB &
SEAFZEOETRHPERERILY
MEBABEABNIER  TELE
#42,722,0008 L (ZE—ZF :
48,150,000% 7T) °

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had commitments to
inject additional capital into certain subsidiaries
established in Mainland China, totalling approximately
HK$42,722,000 (2010: HK$48,150,000).

R=ZZE——FN\NA+x8:x&H
B Shine GoldR EBHEA AR X
— iz Bt AEERERE which the Group agreed to subscribe for convertible
& # %8 £ 70,000,00078 7T #Y AT 2 bonds in an aggregate principal amount of
RES BE_ZE——F+=-A= HK$70,000,000. As at 31 December 2011, the Group had

On 16 August 2011, the Group entered into an agreement
with Shine Gold and its beneficial owners, pursuant to

+-HLEE  AEECRABIHE
IR 1& % 31,200,000 7t @+ It B B &
HER BT 7&K E 3 38,800,000
BT °

acquired convertible bonds of HK$31,200,000 and had
commitment to acquire the remaining convertible bonds
of HK$38,800,000.

SFE-—FFH ABEERBARALA
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4 RE-XEEH @

(b) BEHERSE

AEEERTIHESLHEHS
HEZHZTERE HWAZE RER
WOERME - HESHFRMKN
BETRIRERRE - FRERE
TAREEEHEZRRERES

34 Commitments — Group (Continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments

The Group leases various retail offices,

warehouses and office equipment under non-cancellable

shops,

operating lease agreements. The leases have varying
terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights. The future

aggregate minimum lease payments under non-

BMEBWT cancellable operating leases are as follows:
—g--% =-2-%F
2011 2010
TER TER
HK$’000 HK$’000
—£R Within one year 56,474 51,523

—EZRF Later than one year and not later

than five years 118,096 110,293
EFE# Later than five years 30,405 38,392
204,975 200,208

TR EREEREELRAAS A
B IFEERIECSES (AR
) (B AL ZEEME-K
BARREEZARBDLHER
EEFHEEE  REAT AR
EREBEERERENMEE2EHE -

kEREBEERARAA
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited
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The above lease commitments only include commitments
for basic rentals, and do not include commitments for
additional rental payable (contingent rents), if any, which
are to be determined generally by applying pre-
determined percentages to future sales less the basic
rentals of the respective leases, as it is not possible to
determine in advance the amount of such additional
rentals.
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3 EEFHEESBNERTHE
AREEREZNED

35 Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

(a) WEBHIE 2 A NEINER

(a) Acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries

R-ZE——FWMA-H AEEH
UILFT 33 » B4 fE31,200,0007%
TEUILEBEXEXTERAR (X
E|)BM0%MRIE - WEBE R =
E——FARAZHER HtE XK
SERXERENEDTNREH
60%3IB Z100% © U i B /M FE 22 NF
EHHREREMB DO AZEHEN

R = 09 0k B A 15,586,00078 7T °
AEBBRIAEEREZ R D
15,586,000 TR N DA HEH AFE
1l 7 2= 8 4 15,614,00058 7T (Ff &
21) R RREBEEEZNE
BUARATABEBEABRGRENTE
BT

On 2 April 2011, the Group entered into an agreement
with UIL to acquire an additional 40% equity interest in
Team & Sports Limited (“T&S”) at a consideration of
HK$31,200,000 from UIL. The acquisition was completed
on 2 June 2011. Thereafter, the Group’s equity interest in
T&S and its subsidiaries was increased from 60% to
100%. The acquisition of the additional interest did not
result in change of control of T&S and its subsidiaries.
The carrying amount of the non-controlling interests in
T&S on the date of acquisition was HK$15,586,000. The
Group recognised a decrease in non-controlling interests
of HK$15,586,000 and a decrease in equity attributable
to owners of the Company of HK$15,614,000 (Note 21).
The effect of changes in the ownership interest of T&S on
the equity attributable to owners of the Company during
the year is summarised as follows:

—®——F _Z-TF
2011 2010
TER TEx
HK$’000 HK$’000

HEFERER Carrying amount of non-controlling

IR E & interests disposed of 15,586 —
XA F IR Consideration paid to

ERNKE non-controlling interests (31,200) —
R Excess of consideration paid recognised

IHHREBELD within equity (15,614) —

ST fFH AkEREEBRRARLA
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B EEFIEESLHNBERTHE
DRAEEEEZNES @

35 Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control (Continued)

(b) EEHERSHNERTHE

(b) Disposal of interest in a subsidiary without change of

164

B 2 B R &

R-ZZE-—ZF—HF=-H  KEEN
X 181,337,0008 T HER S (BB
BRAF ([H A1) 30%K#E o It
% AEERMAREMBLRAMN
BRAER100%HE70%  HEEIRW
BEYAREEAEHB AN E
BoMAHNFERER ZIREAER
HEEHA1,337,0008 7T - A5
B 22 9k 1= A% A & 15 hn 1,337,000

AREEARGEEDZNS ERA M
T

control

On 2 January 2010, the Group disposed of 30% equity
interest in Rich Form (HK) Limited (“Rich Form”) at a
consideration of HK$1,337,000. Thereafter, the Group’s
equity interests in Rich Form and its subsidiaries was
decreased from 100% to 70%. The disposal of interests
did not result in loss of control of Rich Form. The carrying
amount of the non-controlling interests in Rich Form on
the date of disposal was HK$1,337,000. The Group
recognised an increase in non-controlling interests of
HK$1,337,000. The effect of changes in the ownership
interest of Rich Form on the equity attributable to owners
of the Company during the year is summarised as
follows:

—g-—-% =%-%%
2011 2010
FET FE%

HK$’000 HK$'000

HEFERERN Carrying amount of non-controlling

iR H & interests disposed of — (1,337)
BFERES Consideration received from

W B R AE non-controlling interests — 1,337
HERBRANTE Effect of disposal within equity — =

KEEBERARAA —FT-—FFHK
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited
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3 EEFHEESBNERTHE

35 Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries

RAEEEEZNEH @

(c) EEHBELBNERTHE

without change of control (Continued)

(c) Effects of changes in ownership interests in

R=—ZE-ZFLtA-B > xEEU
33,750,00078 7t U 8 B # & B 75%M% 1
R i 52 Wk B8 P 4 RO 7 2 33,750,00058
T HRKEME  AEEEDREEH
BEERER  WHEZRARR -

57 B8 7 4 #9758 33,750,000 T T3 55
REAGEEREHEBENERSHEARS
RNEWBERERRRBELRE

ERABELTITRENRAER - T
ZBREN  BIEREEREREK
BEENCAERGRUBRAAND®E
REE URREBEENFERESR
R A DFE-

AFIBEEEEZNEDE AL subsidiaries without change of control on equity
AEEABERENTE attributable to owners of the Company
—E-—-F CZE2-%
2011 2010
TET FTEx
HK$’000 HK$’000
KARHEE AELM Total comprehensive income for
FE2HKELE the year attributable to owners
of the Company 251,590 153,177
KARHEE AELW Changes in equity attributable to
BESLBELS owners of the Company arising from:
— IR BB B B 2 7] — Acquisition of additional interests
RERSMER in subsidiaries (15,614) —
235,976 153,177
36 XK 56 36 Business combinations

On 1 July 2010, the Group acquired 75% of the equity
interests in Charmtech Group for HK$33,750,000 and a
goodwill of HK$33,750,000 arose from this acquisition. As a
result of the acquisition, the Group expects to broaden its
product base and have an additional source of revenue.

The goodwill of HK$33,750,000 arising from the acquisition is
attributable to acquired product base and economies of scale
expected from combining the operations of the Group and
Charmtech Group.

None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible
for income tax purposes. The following table summarises the
consideration paid/payable for Charmtech Group and the
amounts of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed
recognised at the acquisition date, as well as the fair value at
the acquisition date of the non-controlling interest in
Charmtech Group.

ST fFH AkEREEBRRARLA
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ABEBI TSR F ST Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36 ¥B46 @ 36 Business combinations (Continued)
FET
HK$’000
KE : Consideration:
-H$ — Cash 3,000
- HARE — Contingent consideration 30,750
BRE Total consideration 33,750
HEINEEENE A Acquisition-related costs (included
(BEREZE-Z-Z& in general and administrative
+ZA=+—-HBLEFE expenses in the consolidated income
EHABRAN KRR statement for the year
THHAX) ended 31 December 2010) 312
EWBTRIEERE Recognised amounts of identifiable
REBBNEHRILE assets acquired and liabilities assumed
BeRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 2,774
M HEBERFZE (M) Property, plant and equipment (Note 7) 5,639
AHHEESFHEE (F3E11(b) Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 11(b)) 780
7E Inventories 8,229
BREZEARZE Trade and bills receivable 9,690
e BARER Deposits, prepayments and
H 1 FE TR X other receivables 426
BNEZEIREE Trade and bills payable (1,081)
FE 5t iR 7% % L 4t FE 45 1R X Accruals and other payables (24,849)
BEFEHAE Current income tax liabilities (1,381)
RITEX Bank overdrafts (197)
EEB B S (519 Deferred tax liabilities (Note 19) (30)
AHAFEEAE Total identifiable net assets —
FEBERE Non-controlling interest —
2 (FfEs) Goodwill (Note 8) 33,750

O xkE=&BERERAAD —F-——FFH
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& {3t Bt #& 3} R Mt 3= Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

¥%56w@

EHEENERRRECITNVESF S
SERKBRABANEERRZELD
EAEINEEEAAEEELEE -
AEERKBR2HEEERERS
R-IB-—-—F¥R-ZF-ZH+°A=1
—B HRARGEAHEENEREER
BRILEZD  HHRRAEEERIANE
BYEEMEE -

AEERKUBEHMZEEERREFE
ENLAIBINFEREZAT

BELXS

W—FREIEEIBEENS -FH
HE-THHEREBERRREATE
N UREAREHNIABLABEATE
E ARREES -

AEERERBELEEAMA LA
) Quinta Asia Limited (E#ZZR A F)
BE > ZLRAR=ZE——F+ZA=1
—BEELRRDTH58.56%KH o NAD T
EE R A Quinta Asia Limited B R &R 12
RAF °

BRRALKES I BERRPE MDD
BEN AEEEBEEASETUATE
EX5

36

37

Business combinations (Continued)

The selling shareholder of Charmtech Group has
contractually agreed to indemnify the Group for any
additional tax liability falling on Charmtech Group resulting
from its operations and transactions prior to the acquisition
date. The indemnification asset was valued at Nil by the
Group at the time of the acquisition. There has been no
change in the amount recognised for the indemnification
asset as at 31 December 2011 and 2010, as there has been
no change in the range of outcomes or assumptions used to

develop the estimate of the liability.

The Group recognised the non-controlling interests at
proportionate share of Charmtech Group’s net assets at the
acquisition date which equalled zero.

Related party transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered
to be related if they are subject to common control or
common significant influence.

The Group is controlled by Quinta Asia Limited (the
immediate holding company), a company incorporated in the
British Virgins Islands, which owns approximately 58.56% of
the Company’s shares as at 31 December 2011. The
Company’s directors regard Quinta Asia Limited as being the
ultimate holding company.

Apart from those disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the following significant transactions
were carried out with related parties:

e i
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SO HmRMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3V BEARRZ @ 37 Related party transactions (Continued)
(a) HEEmRR® (a) Sales of goods and services

—E-—F ZEZ-FF

2011 2010
TET TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
HEER : Sales of goods:
MBLRAMIEERER  Entities controlled by non-controlling
BEHNER - shareholder of a subsidiary —
EBLEBRAF Amerseas Enterprises Ltd 35,248 19,580
ZBRERAMCTR) Amerseas Sporting Goods
BRA A (Heyuan) Co Ltd 6 186
BMNXEEE Am Guangzhou Tien Sung Sporting Goods Co Ltd
BRA A 11 _
TSG (Bangkok) Ltd TSG (Bangkok) Ltd 21 389
RE B (BR) TSG International Ltd
BERQH 1,094 750
MBATKEZERBKR - Non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary —
Umbro International Umbro International Limited
LimitedE £ up to 2 June 2011
—E-—-fXA=H 12,781 98,831
REBRNBE AT - Associate of the Group —
EEEEFEmHE Fu Hsun Bowker Dyeing Factory
CR) BREMEA R (Heyuan) Co Ltd 188 186
HERS Sales of services:
LINERNGITE 2SS Entity controlled by non-controlling
BEHNER - shareholder of a subsidiary —
EBLEERAT - Amerseas Enterprises Ltd —
MIWA processing income 493 —
49,842 119,922
EmkBRBEEFHENER Goods and services are sold at prices mutually agreed by
= both parties.

G = E£BEERARAIA —F——FFH
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4 3t B 7% 3 R Mi 5= Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3V BEARZ @ 37 Related party transactions (Continued)

(b) BEEmRR® (b) Purchases of goods and services

—E-—F —EZ-FF

2011 2010
THER THET
HK$°000 HK$’000
BEER: Purchases of goods:
MEBARKNEZRBKRE - Non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary —
Umbro International Umbro International Limited
LimitedE £ up to 2 June 2011
—E-—-FXAZH 1,941 9,139
EZECEERAFA Amerseas Enterprises Ltd — 102
FEBMBE QAR - Associates of the Group —
Fu Jin Bowker Fu Jin Bowker Company Limited 230,764 161,125
Company Limited
EIE&ETERD Fu Hsun Fiber Industrial Co Ltd 58,565 22,562
BRA A
BERY : Purchases of services:
MEBARKEZERBKRE - Non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary —
EECEBERLA - Amerseas Enterprises Ltd —
PEE subcontracting fee 439 115
Umbro International Umbro International Limited
Limited— S & (BEZ — royalty (up to 2 June 2011)
—E-—-FXA=H) 8,478 25,319
300,187 218,362
ERkRBEREFHENERE Goods and services are purchased at prices mutually
B agreed by both parties.

SE-—FFH ABEEBRARAA
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(c) HE BEERRRBAELE

37 Related party transactions (Continued)

SO HmRMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(c) Year-end balances arising from sales/purchases of

ZERER goods and services
—E-—-F CZE2-Zf
2011 2010
TER FTHET
HK$’000 HK$°000
EWRREESLRE (B Receivables from related parties
REREZRRA) : (included in trade receivables):
REBWHE AR - Associate of the Group —
EEESAREE Fu Hsun Bowker Dyeing Factory
CR) BRREFEAE (Heyuan) Co Ltd 34 56
VINERNGITE 23 Entities controlled by non-controlling
EHNER - shareholder of a subsidiary —
EBLEBRAF Amerseas Enterprises Ltd 1,323 386
ZREERARCTR) Amerseas Sporting Goods
BRAH (Heyuan) Co Ltd 3 14
EMNREEE R Guangzhou Tien Sung Sporting Goods Co Ltd 5 —
BRAOF
TSG (Bangkok) Ltd TSG (Bangkok) Ltd 11 104
RERK (BB TSG International Ltd 329 232
BRAOF
MEBARKFEZERBKE - Non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary —
Umbro International Umbro International Limited
LimitedE £ up to 2 June 2011
—Z2——%XAZH — 4,406
1,705 5,198
FEWEELRE (B Receivable from a related party
RiEE  BARE (included in deposits, prepayments
R E A EWIRRA) and other receivables):
MBLRMEZERER - Non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary —
Umbro International Umbro International Limited
LimitedE & up to 2 June 2011
—E——HXAZH — 5,087
—_ 5,087

170 KEEBERERL2A
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37 BEFRS @

(c) HE BEERRBRBAELE

37 Related party transactions (Continued)

(c) Year-end balances arising from sales/purchases of

ZERESH @ goods and services (Continued)
—E-—F CZE-Zf
2011 2010
TER FERT
HK$’000 HK$°000
EAEELRE (B Payables to related parties
RERGEZRRRA) : (included in trade payables):
VNN VE 2 Entity controlled by non-controlling
ZEHNER - shareholder of a subsidiary —
EBLXEERLF Amerseas Enterprises Ltd —_ 115
MEBABMNIEZEBKRKER - Non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary —
Umbro International Umbro International Limited
LimitedE £ up to 2 June 2011
—2-—fXA=H — 936
REBREE AR - Associates of the Group —
Fu Jin Bowker Fu Jin Bowker Company Limited 56,977 23,324
Company Limited
EIEAETERD Fu Hsun Fiber Industrial Co Ltd
BRAF 9,316 2,156
66,293 26,531
EABELRE (B Payables to related parties
REFIRRK (included in accruals and other payables):
Ht EAIRRA) ¢
REBMEE AR - Associate of the Group —
Shine Gold Limited Shine Gold Limited 4,910 —
MBABMNIEZEBKRKER - Non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary —
Umbro International Umbro International Limited
LimitedE & up to 2 June 2011
“E——%xXHZH — 6,258
RERSKE- Yuen Chi Leung —
WEREMARE Pre-acquisition dividend payable 1,239 2,764
B EEEEEENS Consideration payable for acquisition
K& of Charmtech Group 30,359 30,750
31,598 33,514

e i
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SO HmRMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3V BEFRS @) 37 Related party transactions (Continued)

(c) HE BEERRBEREL (c) Year-end balances arising from sales/purchases of
ZERESH @ goods and services (Continued)
FERE (ENREREERER All amounts except for amounts payable to Yuen Chi
MNBEERARER-RESEED Leung are unsecured and payable within normal trade
AT o credit terms.
ERREREENEHBERA The balances due to Yuen Chi Leung are unsecured,
REREAR-Z——F+=A=+ interest-free and payable on or before 31 December
—BHZAEE - 2011.

(d) REBEFTHER (d) Loan from a related party

—®=—FN —_2-TF

2011 2010

TER TET

HK$’000 HK$’000

MEBLRAFERRER Non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary

-RER — Yuen Chi Leung 7,500 7,500
ERABREKE £ERERRE The loan is unsecured, interest free and only repayable
HEAEE-HERKEERE  REEZ on the unanimous demand of Yuen Chi Leung and the
HEMERREELEREERRE Group, which is to be repaid to both shareholders in their
LT LA EE o respective proportions of outstanding shareholders’ loans

at the time of repayment.

(e) ERTHE QT (e) Loans to an associate
—®=—FN —_2-TF
2011 2010
TER TERT
HK$’000 HK$’000
Shine Gold £ Shine Gold Group
-8B — Loans 107,245 —
m B A BN E IR T F8%:T & The loans to an associate bear interest at 8% per annum
TARERRET+ @B AEE - and will not be repayable in the coming twelve months.
(f) BERHEARRE () Amounts due to subsidiaries
BB ARINESLAEEE 7 Amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
BERAEMEHRERE - and repayable on demand.

e kE=EBEERBERARD —F-—FFH
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37 BEFRS @ 37 Related party transactions (Continued)

(g) TEEBEAEME (9) Key management compensation

—2——-F —E-ZF

2011 2010

FET FHET

HK$’000 HK$’000

He o AR Salaries, bonus and allowances 29,036 18,098
BRIKEF Retirement benefits

- REMHREE — defined contribution schemes 96 84

29,132 18,182

SE-—FEH ABREEEBRARLF
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5 Glossary

EXRERP BRXEZERIEN  UTHZE In this annual report, unless the context states otherwise, the

EBUTHEE following expression have the following meanings:

EX3-0 AAEESE “Board” the board of Directors of the Company

[ 8] EHMBEXERAA » AR “Charmtech” Charmtech Industrial Limited, a 75%-
AEBETS%RENHB AR owned subsidiary of the Company

R=FESE] EBREWEB AR “Charmtech Group” Charmtech and its subsidiaries

[RDF ] XeESEBERERLR “Company” Win Hanverky Holdings Limited, an
A_BZERFE+ZAT= exempted company incorporated in the
AEHERSTMALI Cayman Islands with limited liability on
ZHRREBROA 13 December 2005

[BEE A L] tHRAFERE “Connected Person” has the meaning ascribed to it under

the Listing Rule

[DiadoraE ] ENFEDiadora@ZHER - “Diadora Products” products bearing the Diadora trademark
TREE PEIRERR and distributed in Hong Kong, Mainland
M 2 85 China and Macau

[E£] KAFES “Director(s)” the director(s) of the Company

PNGES mEAE BN -BFER “Greater China” Mainland China, Macau, Hong Kong
REHE and Taiwan region

[RE&EE] TRARAREMBLRFE “Group” or “we” or the Company and its subsidiaries

“our” or “us”
[&#] HEEEFRTHE “Hong Kong” the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region in Mainland China

[EmHE] EARARNHABEEIRE “Listing Date” the date of commencement of dealings
EMBEH B-ZEARF in our Shares on the Main Board, which
AARB(REZ) is on Wednesday, 6 September 2006

[Em#R Al ERMERSZMBRL A “Listing Rules” the Rules Governing the Listing of
#HELImHAA Securities on The Stock Exchange of

Hong Kong Limited

=X X S B 3T P Bl 3 AR AT AR B “Main Board” the stock market operated by the Stock
RIBRENRED S (TE Exchange prior to the establishment of
FHETE)  BEHEER the Growth Enterprise Market of the
P B 2E AR B0 B P B 3T BT R Stock Exchange (excluding the options
E(ARLER ERFEE market) and which stock market
%2 B Bl #E4R) continues to be operated by the Stock

Exchange in parallel with the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange
(for avoidance of doubt, the Main Board
excludes the Growth Enterprise Market
of the Stock Exchange)

W xE=EBEERERARD —F——FFH
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[RRELEERS]

[ERARER
A B B AE

[AR®

M1

R=R]

[Shine Gold]

[Shine Gold
£8 ]

[ B 32 Ff

[REFIT&RE]
[REF1T]

[TSG BVI]

[REEHE]
[REBIR]

REARENE TR
BB BEMREE

FRELEBNER B
??EF‘SZHE@EF@B?
BURANRNERS

(I ﬂutuuﬂﬁ“ﬁﬂa”"_ﬁ
BE

mAE (HRE

RALDE
VET 1E R8O

EE:
FEAEEEEREARYE

AABAREAPEREE
0.107% 7T B9 % 12

ARERR

Shine Gold Limited @ —
FREBRE LB EME
YWDR - BERFIRAE
B HERNELEZEHR
B

Shine Gold Limited® &
NG|

EBRMAREMAERA
B RBEBRERGEM
BERAGANZENB LA

ABFTRAMBLR

REFTERAT AL
AE-ZE--—FXAZH
itz 2 EHEA T

TSG (BVI) Limited » R &
BELZHEEZMR LN
A OEEBELIERE

TSG BVIR E KB 2§
RERT (BB AR
B REBEMALZA
8 BRTSGBVIZ2EME
D E

“Mainland China”

“OEM”

“Pre-IPO Share
Option(s)”

“‘RMB”

“Share(s)”

“Shareholders”

“Shine Gold”

“Shine Gold Group”

“Stock Exchange”

“T&S Group”

“T&S HK”

“TSG BVI”

“TSG Group”

“TSG International”

2011 Annual Report
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the People’s Republic of China,

excluding Hong Kong, Macau and
Taiwan

acronym for original equipment
manufacturer, a business that

manufactures or purchases from other
manufacturers and possibly modifies
goods or equipment for branding and
resale by others

the options granted by the Company to
certain employees, among others, prior
to the listing of the Company

Renminbi, the lawful

Mainland China

currency of

the share(s) of HK$0.10 each in the
share capital of the Company

shareholders of the Company

Shine Gold Limited,
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
and is wholly owned by Mr. WONG Yiu
Sun as at the date of this annual report

a company

Shine Gold Limited and its subsidiaries

the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited

T&S HK and its subsidiaries

Team & Sports Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company commencing
from 2 June 2012

TSG (BVI) Limited,
incorporated in the BVI,

a company
a substantial
shareholder of Win Sports

TSG BVI and its subsidiaries

TSG International Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong, being a
wholly owned subsidiary of TSG BVI

—FE——fFFH
Win Hanverky Holdings Limited
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[Umbro
D]

[Umbro%E |

[Umbro
HEEHR

[UmbroZ & |

(RE&E]

[KE]

[KEEE]
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Umbro International
Limited » RSB S it B X2
ZDR - REFTBREZ
T--FXRAZHZEE
IR R

Umbro International
Limited (UmbroE B #) &
F-RHEELNTF) HREE
THRAILBEHAE=ZZZL
F_ANBWMDHEGE
DWHEARFEHFER D H
Umbrof @ & it Umbro
B8 AUmbroZE & » I E
KR UmbroE & # i3

Umbro International & &

B E

REFTEUmbrofE B &
& Umbro Licensing
Limited®R=ZEZE—-FH A
“t+EBRIMNEEER
B OUEPEARERER
HERDHEUmMbroE R

1B Umbrom k& » 3t B 7K
EEREUmbron i3
DHENEEESRR M
Em

ENBERH

FEEERARARLS
ARBAFET5%RERME

N
REREWEBLR

XEEBRAERLT AKX
DRI B 60%E 2 A
BAA

KEREHELDR

i

“UIL”

“Umbro Distributor

Agreement”

“Umbro Group”

“Umbro Licence
Agreement”

“Umbro Products”

“yUs?

“Win Sports”

“Win Sports Group”

“Winor”

“Winor Group”

g

Umbro International Limited, a company
incorporated in the United Kingdom, a
substantial shareholder of T&S HK up to
2 June 2012

the distributor agreement dated 8
February 2007 and entered between
Umbro International Limited, one of the
members of the Umbro Group, and T&S
HK in respect of the sale and
distribution of Umbro Products in the
Greater China and purchases of Umbro
Products from the Umbro Group,
the Umbro

superseding Licence

Agreement

Umbro International and its subsidiaries

the licence agreement entered into
between T&S HK and Umbro Licensing
Limited, a member of the Umbro Group,
on 24 May 2001 in respect of the sale
and distribution of Umbro Products in
Mainland China and Hong Kong

a selected range of sportswear and
other products bearing the Umbro brand
and distributed by the Group pursuant
to the Umbro Distributor Agreement

the United States of America

Win Sports Limited, a 75%-owned
subsidiary of the Company

Win Sports and its subsidiaries

Winor International Company Limited,
being an indirect 60%-owned subsidiary
of our Company

Winor and its subsidiaries






	Cover

	Inside Cover

	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Financial Highlights
	Chairman’s Statement
	Management Discussion and Analysis
	Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
	Corporate Governance Report
	Report of the Directors
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Balance Sheets
	Consolidated Income Statement
	Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
	Glossary
	Back Cover


